DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

ANNUAL AND REGULAR MEETING
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 9, 2013

DuPAGE FLIGHT CENTER
FIRST FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM

TENTATIVE AGENDA
CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
APPROVAL OF MINUTES TAB #1 PAGE #4

November 14, 2012 Regular Board Meeting
November 14, 2012 Capital Development, Leasing
and Customer Fees Committee Meeting
November 14, 2012 Finance, Budget and Audit Committee Meeting
September 11, 2012 Internal Policy and Compliance
Committee Meeting
September 26, 2012 Golf Committee Meeting

PUBLIC COMMENT
DIRECTOR’S REPORT PAGE #18

REVIEW OF NOVEMBER 2012 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TAB #2 PAGE #22

REPORT OF OFFICERS/COMMITTEES

Internal Policy and Compliance Committee

Finance, Budget & Audit Committee

Golf Committee

Capital Development, Leasing & Customer Fees Committee
Business Park

pROACD

RECESS REGULAR MEETING
CONVENE ANNUAL MEETING

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL



3. ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR THE 2013 FISCAL YEAR

Chairman
Vice-Chairman
Treasurer
Secretary

Assistant Treasurer
Assistant Secretary

papoTD

o

4. REVIEW OF COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS TAB #3 PAGE #23

5. APPROVAL OF 2013 MEETING CALENDAR TAB #4 PAGE #24

6. ADJOURNMENT OF ANNUAL MEETING

RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

Proposed Ordinance 2013-260; Adopting Budget and Appropriations
ordinance for the DuPage Airport Authority for the Fiscal Year
Beginning January 1, 2013 and Ending December 31, 2013.

TAB #5 PAGE #26

Proposed Ordinance 2013-261; An Ordinance of the DuPage Airport
Authority Promulgating Regulations Under the Freedom of Information
Act. TAB #6 PAGE #69

Proposed Ordinance 2013-262; An Ordinance Enacting an Ethics
Ordinance and Repealing Ordinance 2012-258.
TAB #7 PAGE #81

Proposed Resolution 2013-1703; Authorizing the Execution of an
Amended Intergovernmental Agreement with the County of DuPage
Relating to a Shared Ethics Officer. TAB #8 PAGE #110

Proposed Resolution 2013-1701; Resolution Approving the Use of
Outside Attorneys and Auditors for the Year 2013.
TAB #9 PAGE #115

Proposed Resolution 2013-1711; Authorizing Execution of a Contract
with Serafin and Associates Inc. for Marketing and Communications
Services. TAB #10 PAGE #120

Proposed Resolution 2013-1705; Award of Bid to Reinders, Inc. for the
Procurement of TORO® Network VP Irrigation Satellite Controllers for
Prairie Landing Golf Club. TAB #11 PAGE #122



10.

11.

12.

13.

h.

Proposed Resolution 2013-1706; Award of Contract to Liebold, Inc. for
Procurement of Installation of Golf Irrigation Satellite Controllers for
Prairie Landing Golf Club. TAB #12 PAGE #125

Proposed Resolution 2013-1707; Authorizing Execution of FBO Services
Agreement with Paragon Aviation Group. TAB #13 PAGE #129

Proposed Resolution 2013-1708; Ratifying the Execution by the
Executive Director of U.S. House of Representatives District Office
Lease with Peter J. Roskam. TAB #14 PAGE #140

Proposed Resolution 2013-1709; Ratifying the Execution by the
Executive Director of a Purchase Order Contract to Kellogg Brown and
Root Services, Inc. for 3™ Floor Office Renovations located at 2700
International Drive. TAB #15 PAGE #144

RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE DISCUSSION OF PENDING,
PROBABLE OR IMMINENT LITIGATION; EMPLOYEE MATTERS; THE
PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR THE USE OF THE DUPAGE
AIRPORT AUTHORITY; THE SETTING OF A PRICE FOR SALE OR LEASE OF
PROPERTY OWNED BY THE DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY; AND THE
DISCUSSION AND SEMI ANNUAL REVIEW OF LAWFULLY CLOSED EXECUTIVE
SESSION MINUTES.

RECONVENE REGULAR SESSION

OTHER BUSINESS

Proposed Resolution 2013-1702; Disclosure of Executive Session
Minutes. TAB #¥16 PAGE #147

ADJOURNMENT



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Wednesday, November 14, 2012
DuPage Flight Center, 2700 International Drive, West Chicago
1*t Floor Conference Room

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority was convened at the
DuPage Flight Center, 2700 International Drive, West Chicago, Illinois, 1* Floor Conference Room;
Wednesday, November 14, 2012. Vice Chairman Gorski called the meeting to order at 3:17 p.m. and a
quorum was present for the meeting. Chairman Goodwin joined the meeting at approximately 3:22 p.m.
and proceeded to chair the meeting.

Commissioners Present: Donnelly, Gillett, Goodwin, Gorski, Huizenga, LaMantia, Sabathne’
Commissioners Absent: Davis, Thompson

DuPage Airport Authority Staff Present: David Bird, Executive Director; Mark Doles, Director of
Aviation Facilities and Properties; Patrick Hoard, Director of Finance; Byron Miller, Director of Operations;
John Schiaman, General Manager/Prairie Landing Golf Club; Anna Marano, Procurement Analyst; Anna
Normoyle, Marketing Coordinator; Pam Miller, Executive Assistant and Board Liaison.

Others in Attendance: Phil Luetkehans, Schirott & Luetkehans; Michael Vonic, CH2M Hill; Dan Pape,
Crawford Murphy and Tilly.

Members of the Press: None

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Vice Chairman Gorski asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the September 26, 2012 Regular
Board Meeting and there were none. Commissioner LaMantia made a MOTION to approve the minutes of
the September 26, 2012 Regular Board Meeting and Commissioner Donnelly seconded this motion. The
motion was passed by roli call vote (6-0).

Executive Director Bird asked that action by the Board for the minutes of the September 11, 2012 Internal
Policy and Compliance Committee Meeting be deferred until the January 2013 Board Meeting.

Vice Chairman Gorski asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the June 13, 2012 Capital
Development Leasing and Customer Fees Committee and there were none. Commissioner LaMantia made a
MOTION to approve the minutes of the June 13, 2012 Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees
Committee Meeting and Commissioner Donnelly seconded this motion. The motion was passed by roll
call vote (6-0).

Vice Chairman Gorski asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the September 26, 2012 Capital
Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee Meeting and there were none. Commissioner
Sabathne’ made a MOTION to approve the minutes of the September 26, 2012 Capital Development,
Leasing and Customer Fees Committee Meeting and Commissioner LaMantia seconded this motion. The
motion was passed by roll call vote (6-0).

Vice Chairman Gorski asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the September 26, 2012 Finance,
Budget and Audit Committee Meeting and there were none. Commissioner Huizenga made a MOTION to
approve the minutes of the September 26, 2012 Finance, Budget and Audit Committee Meeting and
Commissioner Donnelly seconded this motion. The motion was passed by roll call vote (6-0).

Vice Chairman Gorski asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the October 26, 2012 Special
Finance, Budget and Audit Committee Meeting and there were none. Commissioner Donnelly made a
MOTION to approve the minutes of the October 26, 2012 Special Finance, Budget and Audit Committee



Meeting and Commissioner Huizenga seconded this motion. The motion was passed by roll call vote (6-
0).

PUBLIC COMMENT
None

The meeting was recessed briefly by Vice Chairman Gorski to await Chairman Goodwin’s arrival. Chairman
Goodwin arrived at 3:22 p.m. and proceeded to chair the meeting.

DIRECTOR'S REPORT
Executive Director Bird provided a progress report on the following topics:

Monthly Operating Statistics:

Fuel sales for the month of September showed an increase; total gallons sold for Jet A increased 3.5% and
100 LL increased 4.2% Fuel sales for the year were down in total nearly 3%. Operations in September for
both local and itinerate were up with a total increase of nearly 9%; total operations were down for the year.
Operating statistics are trending with the rest of the airports in the Chicagoland area, but are exceeding
some of airports around the country. This is reflective of the success of the Ryder Cup event for DuPage
Airport; 50% of the fuel sold during that time was tied to the Ryder Cup. For October, fuel sales were
increased a total of 4.3%; 6% in Jet A fuel sales.

The City of West Chicago presented DuPage Airport Authority with their “Brilliance in Business”Award. A
copy of the press release from the City of West Chicago announcing this award was provided.

Runway 2R 20L Extensionis completed and Is ready to open during the week of Thanksgiving. The project
team worked together great; Airport Authority Maintenance Staff, CH2M Hill and Martam Construction.

The project was on schedule, on budget, and the quality of construction is excellent. This is one of the only
projects of this type done with 100% local funding by any airport in the country.

HARPO Productions Flight Department is now operating from DuPage Airport. The Airport Authority is
working with two other flight departments to locate at DuPage Airport; one of which would be a newly
established flight department. The key for airports such as DuPage is to have the maximum amount of
based aircraft purchasing fuel.

The annual Transportation Improvement Program meeting was held on October 18 with the Illinois Division
of Aeronautics (IDOA) in Springfield regarding the Airport Authority’s Capital Improvement Program. IDOA
indicated support for the proposed widening of the primary runway and was optimistic that the Airport
Authority would receive federal funding for this project if budgeted for 2014. This would still require that
the design and bids be done in 2013 in order to be ready for the project to get started in 2014,

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Executive Director Bird stated that Patrick Hoard is in the final stages of updating the financial reporting
systems. He asked Mr. Hoard to review the Financial Statements. Mr. Hoard updated the Board on
financial information from August, September and October and advised that the full financial package would
be provided at the January 2013 Meeting. Discussion followed.

REPORT OF COMMITTEES

Internal Policy and Compliance Committee:

Commissioner Gillett reported the Internal Policy and Compliance Committee had no reason to meet since
the last Board Meeting; no report was given.

Finance, Budget and Audit Committee:

Commissioner Huizenga reported that the Finance Committee met earlier in the day and at a Special
Committee Meeting on October 26, 2012 to review the Proposed 2013 Tentative Budget and Appropriations.
He stated the Committee discussed items included under Tabs 3, 4, 5 and 6 relating to various bid awards
as well as the Tentative Budget and Appropriations; all recommended for Board approval and will be
discussed later in the meeting.



Golf Committee:
Commissioner Donnelly advised that the Golf Committee had not met since the last Board Meeting.

Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees:

Commissioner Gorski reported that the Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee met
just before the Board meeting; all committee members were present with the exception of Commissioner
Davis. The Committee recommended approval of the full Board for items 9.e. through 9j. relating to
runway construction projects, an Easement Agreement with the City of West Chicago and a Cash Farm
Lease. He continued that Executive Director Bird provided a report on the ongoing capital projects.
Commissioner Gorski also stated the Committee went into Executive Session to discuss a matter that will
come before the full Board at a later meeting.

DuPage Business Center:

Executive Director Bird advised there were no representatives from CenterPoint in attendance. Executive
Director Bird and Mark Doles recently attended the Marketing Meeting conducted by CenterPoint and Jones
Lang LaSalle. Executive Director Bird reported that CenterPoint and Jones Lang LaSalle are ramping up
marketing efforts and seem to be much more optimistic about the future of the Business Center. He
advised that at the January Board Meeting Ed Harrington will provide a full report on CenterPoint’s future
marketing plans. Discussion followed.

OLD BUSINESS
None

Chairman Goodwin recessed the meeting at 4:30 p.m. and the meeting was reconvened at 4:45 p.m.

NEW BUSINESS

Proposed Ordinance 2012-259; Adopting Tentative Budget and Appropriations Ordinance for
the DuPage Airport Authority for the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2013 and Ending
December 31, 2013.

Executive Director Bird advised that staff is presenting a status quo budget to the Board with no significant
program enhancements and only one new position included for Prairie Landing; this position will support the
increased number of banquets to be hosted in 2013. He continued there will be some revenue impacts with
the termination of two leases at the end of the year. He continued that HARPO Productions has located their
flight department. at DuPage Airport as well as another new tenant anticipated to lease space in the Flight
Center Building in early 2013; this will help to offset the other losses of revenue. Executive Director Bird
advised that Prairie Landing’s increased expenditures in 2013 reflect the increased number of banquets
booked for 2013. He added that any further expenses for CenterPoint have been eliminated and the
increased Non Operating Expenditures are related to marketing efforts and reconfiguring the websites for
the Airport Authority and Prairie Landing.

Chairman Goodwin discussed the possibility of abating the property tax levy again for 2013 and stated that
he recommends the Board should consider this abatement at the same level as before. Discussion followed
and the Board unanimously agreed with Chairman Goodwin. Mr. Hoard will make this adjustment in the
2013 Tentative Budgct and Appropriations document which will be submitted to DuPage County Board
Chairman Cronin on December 3, 2012. Mr. Hoard continued his review of the budget document and
discussion continued.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Huizenga to approve Proposed Ordinance 2012-259; Adopting the
Tentative Budget and Appropriations Ordinance for the DuPage Airport Authority for the Fiscal Year
Beginning January 1, 2013 and ending December 31, 2013. The motion was seconded by Commissioner
Donnelly. Discussion continued briefly and Commissioner Huizenga amended the motion to adopt the
2013 Tentative Budget and Appropriations subject to including the property tax abatement. The
amendment to the motion was seconded by Commissioner Gorski and was passed unanimously by rall
call vote (7-0).



Proposed Resolution 2012-1689; Directing the Use of Property Tax Revenue.

Executive Director Bird advised that discussion occurred at the September Finance Committee Meeting
regarding the manner in which the Capital Reserve Accounts are reported from an accounting standpoint.
He continued that Commissioner Huizenga recommended the Board’s directive on the use of property tax
dollars for capital projects should be memorialized by resolution. Mr. Hoard stated it is important to note
that this resolution is meant to acknowledge the manner in which the Airport Authority currently utilizes
property tax dollars to fund capital projects and is not adding anything new into the current policy.
Discussion continued.

Commissioner Huizenga made a MOTION to approve Proposed Resolution 2012-1689; Directing the Use of
Property Tax Revenue. Commissioner Donnelly seconded the motion and discussion continued. The
motion was passed unanimously by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2012-1700; Authorizing the Execution of a Non-Federal Reimbursable
Agreement Between the Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration and the
DuPage Airport Authority.

Executive Director Bird explained this Agreement with the FAA is considered each year for payment of
nighttime staffing hours for the Air Traffic Control Tower. He continued that this reflects the FAA’s rules to,
have two people in the control tower at all times which Increases the cost to the Airport Authority.

Executive Director Bird advised the Airport Authority is agreeable to these mandates as it is very important
for marketing to potential users and is significant when approaching corporate flight departments to locate
at DuPage Airport; O'Hare and Midway Airports are the only other Air Traffic Control Towers maintained on
a 24 hours basls In the Chicagoland area.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Donnelly to approve Proposed Resolution 2012-1700; Authorizing
the Execution of a Non-Federal Reimbursable Agreement Between the Department of Transportation Federal
Aviation Administration and the DuPage Airport Authority. The motion was seconded by Commissioner
Huizenga and was passed unanimously by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2012-1690; Award of Bid to Foxfield Construction for the Flight Center
Renovation Project Phase II.

Executive Director Bird asked Mark Doles to discuss Phase II of the Flight Center Renovations. Mr. Doles
reported that Phase I of the renovations is substantially complete and the Board, at a previous meeting
agreed to proceed with Phase II of this project. GHAFARI and Assoclates has performed the final design
and has prepared the construction documents for Phase 11 bidding; ten bids were received and Foxfield
Construction was determined to be the low, responsive and responsible bidder. Mr. Doles reviewed the
scope of Phase 1I renovations and discussion followed. Staff and the Capital Development Committee
recommended Board approval.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Gorski to approve Proposed Resolution 2012-1690; Award of Bid to
Foxfield Construction for the Flight Center Renovation Project Phase I The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Gillett and was passed unanimously by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2012-1691; Authorizing the Execution of an Agreement with GHAFARI
Associates LLC for Construction Administration Services for the Flight Center Renovation
Project Phase II.

Mr. Doles continued that this proposed resolution is also related to Phase II of Flight Center Renovations.
He explained that GHAFARI Associates will provide the construction administration services for this project
including onsite meetings and review of the work being performed by the contractor. Staff and the Capital
Development Committee recommended Board approval.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Gorski to approve Proposed Resolution 2012-1691; Authorizing the
Execution of an Agreement with GHAFARI Associates LLC for Construction Administration Services for the
Flight Center Renovation Project Phase II. The motion was seconded by Commissioner LaMantia and
was passed unanimously by roll call vote (7-0).



Proposed Resolution 2012-1692; Ratification of the Executive Director’s Action for

Concurrence of Award with the State of Illinois for the Project Described as Runway 10-28 and
Associated Taxiway Connector Overlay; DPA-4122, to the Lowest Responsive Bidder.

Executive Director Bird asked Byron Miller to review this runway project. Mr. Miller explained that earlier in
the year, the Illinois Division of Aeronautics (IDOA) previously went out to bid for this project. He continued
that Plote was the low bidder however, federal funds were not released in time to award the project; IDOA
was forced to rebid this project later in the year and Plote was again the low bidder. He continued that
due to timing issues, the Executive Director needed to concur with this award to the lowest responsive
bidder prior to the Board meeting; this proposed resolution will ratify the Executive Director's action. Staff
and the Capital Development Committee recommended Board approval.

A MOTION was made by Commissloner Gorski to approve Proposed Resolution 2012-1692; Ratification of
the Executive Director’s Action for Concurrence of Award with the State of Illinois for the Project Descried as
Runway 10-28 and Associated Taxiway Connector Overlay; DPA-4122, to the Lowest Responsive Bidder.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner LaMantia and was passed unanimously by roll call vote (7-
0).

Proposed Resolution 2012-1693; Authorizing the Execution of a Participation Agreement with
the State of Illinois for the Project Described as Runway 10-28 and Associated Taxiway
Connector Overlay; DPA-4122.

Mr. Miller continued that this proposed resolution relates to the same runway project and authorizes the
execution of a Participation Agreement with the State of Iilinois to act as our agent for this project.
Executive Director Bird added that construction observation services remain in place with CH2M Hill at the
same price as was established earlier in the year. Discussion continued and Staff and the Capital
Development Committee recommended approval.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Sabathne’ to approve Proposed Resolution 2012-1693; Authorizing
the Execution of a Participation Agreement with the State of Illinois for the Project Described as Runway 10-
28 and Associated Taxiway Connector Overlay; DPA-4122. The motion was seconded by Commissioner
Gorski and was passed unanimously by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2012-1694; Authorizing Entering into a Purchase Order Contract with
Kellogg Brown and Root Services, Inc. to Repair the Roof on the Hangar Buildings Located at
32 W521 and 32W515 Tower Road.

Executive Director Bird asked Mr. Miller to discuss this item and he explained that in July 2012, four
buildings at the Airport received storm damage and significant roof damage occurred to one of the hangars.
He stated that the Airport Authority’s Architects provided a cost estimate of $40,000 for this roof repair and
when bids were received, the cost was approximately $150,000; consequently the project was not awarded.
Mr. Miller continued to explain that a Job Order Contract (JOC) was requested from Kellogg Brown and Root
Services (KBR) for this roof repair project and a proposal was recelved for the amount of $34,804.92.
Discussion followed and Staff and the Capital Development Committee recommended Board approval.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Gorski to approve Proposed Resolution 2012-1694; Autharizing
Entering into a Purchase Order Contract with Kellogg Brown and Root Services, Inc. to Repair the Roof on
the Hangar Buildings Located at 32 W521 and 32W515 Tower Road. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Gillett and was passed by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2012-1698; Authorization to Enter Into a Cash Farm Lease Between the
DuPage Airport Authority and Dale Pitstick.

Executive Director Bird asked Byron Miller to review this proposed resolution. Mr. Miller stated that the
Airport Authority currently farms approximately 190 acres in areas around the airfield. He continued that
bids were solicited for a three-year cash farm lease for these locations and four bids were received. Mr.
Miller advised that Dale Pitstick was the high, responsive and responsible bidder. Staff and the Finance
Committee recommended Board approval.



A MOTION was made by Commissioner Gillett to approve Proposed Resolution 2012-1698; Authorization to
Enter Into a Cash Farm Lease Between the DuPage Airport Authority and Dale Pitstick. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner LaMantia and was passed by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2012-1696; Authorizing the Execution of an Easement Agreement with
the City of West Chicago.

Executive Director Bird asked Mark Doles to discuss the Easement Agreement with the City of West Chicago.
Mr. Doles stated that the City of West Chicago is seeking this easement in order to facilitate the relocation
of a waterline required by Illinois Department of Transportation’s overpass project at Route 38 and Kautz
Road. He proceeded to explain the areas involved and the scope of this agreement; exhibits were provided
for review. Discussion followed and staff and the Capital Development Committee recommended Board
approval.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Sabathne’ to approve Proposed Resolution 2012-1696; Authorizing
the Execution of an Easement Agreement with the City of West Chicago.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Donnelly and was passed unanimously by roll cail vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2012-1697; A Resolution Authorizing the Destruction of Certain Verbatim
Recordings of Closed Sessions.

Attorney Phil Luetkehans stated that as required by Illinois Statute, the Airport Authority records and
maintains recordings of Executive Session discussion and these tapes are stored at the law offices of
Schirott and Luetkehans. He continued that statute also allows for destruction of these recordings after 18
months and with the Board’s approval of this proposed resolution, tapes older than 18 months will be
destroyed.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Donnelly to approve Proposed Resolution 2012-1697; A Resolution
Authorizing the Destruction of Certain Verbatim Recordings of Closed Sessions. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Sabathne’ and was passed unanimously by roll call vote (7-0).

RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION
There was no Executive Session held.

OTHER BUSINESS
None

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Gillett to adjourn the Regular Meeting of the DuPage Airport
Authority Board of Commissioners. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Gorski and was passed
unanimously by voice vote; the meeting was adjourned at 4:45 p.m.

Daniel L. Goodwin, Chairman

(ATTEST)

Dayle M. Gillett
Secretary



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT, LEASING AND CUSTOMER FEES COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2012

The meeting of the Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee of the DuPage
Airport Authority Board of Commissioners was convened at the DuPage Flight Center, 2700
International Drive, West Chicago, Illinois, First Floor Conference Room on Wednesday,
November 14, 2012. Chairman Gorski called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m. and a quorum
was present.

Commissioners Present: Gillett, Gorski, LaMantia, Sabathne’
Absent: Davis

DAA Staff Present: Executive Director David Bird; Mark Doles, Director of Aviation Facilities
and Properties; Byron Miller, Director of Operations; Patrick Hoard, Director of Finance; Anna
Marano, Procurement Analyst; Pam Miller, Executive Assistant and Board Liaison.

Others: Dan Pape, Crawford, Murphy & Tilly; Michael Vonic, CH2M Hill.

Press: None

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT

OLD BUSINESS

Project Implementation

Executive Director Bird reported the Extension of Runway 2R 20L is completed and will be open
for Thanksgiving week. He advised this project was very successful; completed on schedule, on
budget and DAA staff, CH2M Hill and Martam worked well together. Executive Director Bird
advised that DuPage Airport Authority may be the only airport in the country to have undertaken
a project of this size at 100% local funding; this is worthy of a press release and staff will be
working with Serafin and Associates for this announcement. Discussion followed.

NEW BUSINESS

Proposed Resolution 2012-1690; Award of Bid to Foxfield Construction for the Flight
Center Renovation Project Phase II.

Executive Director Bird asked Mark Doles to discuss Phase II of Flight Center Renovations. Mr.
Doles reported that Phase I of this project is completed and Phase II will involve moving from the
center core of the building into the remaining public washrooms, crew lounge, conference room,
VIP lounge and the Customs area as well as minor upgrades to the line service locker rooms and
exercise room for tenants and customers. GHAFARI and Associates has performed the final
design and has prepared the constructions documents for Phase II bidding; ten bids were
received and Foxfield Construction was determined to be the low, responsive and responsible
bidder. Mr. Doles reviewed the scope of Phase II renovations and discussion followed. Staff
recommended approval.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Sabathne’ to recommend Board approval for Proposed
Resolution 2012-1690; Award of Bid to Foxfield Construction for the Flight Center Renovation
Project Phase II. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Gillett and was passed by roll call
vote (3-0). Commissioner LaMantia was not present for this vote,

10



Proposed Resolution 2012-1691; Authorizing the Execution of an Agreement with
GHAFARI Associates LLC for Construction Administration Services for the Flight enter
Renovation Project Phase II.

“Mr: Doles continued that this proposed resolution also relates to Phase II of Flight Center
Renovations and will allow GHAFARI Associates to provide construction administration services
for this project. This will include onsite meetings and review of the work being performed by the
contractor.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Gillett to recommend Board approval for Proposed
Resofution 2012-1691; Authorizing the Execution of an Agreement with GHAFARI Associates LLC
for Construction Administration Services for the Flight Center Renovation Project Phase II. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner Sabathne’ and was passed by roll call vote (3-0).
Commissioner LaMantia was not present for this vote.

Proposed Resolution 2012-1692; Ratification of the Executive Director’s Action for
Concurrence of Award with the State of Illinois for the Project Described as Runway
10-28 and Associated Taxiway Connector Overlay; DPA-4122, to the Lowest
Responsive Bidder.

Mr. Miller explained that earlier in the year, the Illinois Division of Aeronautics (IDOA) went out to
bid for this project and Plote was the low bidder. He continued that federal funds were not
released in time to award the project and IDOA was forced to rebid the project later in the year.
Plote was again the low bidder. He continued that due to timing issues, the Executive Director
needed to concur with this award to the lowest responsive bidder prior to the Board meeting; this
proposed resolution will ratify the Executive Director’s action. Discussion continued. Staff
recommended approval.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Sabathne’ to recommend Board approval for Proposed
Resolution 2012-1692; Ratification of the Executive Director’s Action for Concurrence of Award
with the State of Illinois for the Project Described as Runway 10-28 and Associated Taxiway
Connector Overlay; DPA-4122, to the Lowest Responsive Bidder. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Gillett and was passed by roll call vote (3-0). Commissioner LaMantia was not
present for this vote.

Proposed Resolution 2012-1693; Authorizing the Execution of a Participation
Agreement with the State of Illinois for the Project Described as Runway 10-28 and
Associated Taxiway Connector Overiay; DPA-4122.

Mr. Miller continued that this resolution will approve a Participation Agreement with the State of
Tllinois to act as our agent for this runway project. He continued that construction observation
remains in place with CH2M Hill at the same price as was established earlier in the year.
Discussion followed and staff recommended approval.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Gillett to recommend Board approval for Proposed
Resolution 2012-1693; Authorizing the Execution of a Participation Agreement with the State of
Tllinois for the Project Described as Runway 10-28 and Associated Taxiway Connector Overlay;
DPA-4122. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sabathne’ and was passed by roll call
vote (3-0). Commissioner LaMantia was not present for this vote.

Commissioner LaMantia arrived at 2:20 p.m.



Discussion of Job Order Contracting (JOC).

Byron Miller explained this is a new concept for the Airport Authority to handle smaller to mid size
construction projects faster and at a significantly lower cost. He continued that job order
contracting has existed for a number of years and is now utilized by nearly all branches of
government; DuPage County Department of Procurement utilizes JOC. He proceeded to discuss
the services that can be provided by JOC contractors and reviewed the manner of pricing for
each specific construction project. Discussion followed.

Proposed Resolution 2012-1694; Authorizing Entering into a Purchase Order Contract
with Kellogg Brown and Root Services, Inc. to Repair the Roof on the Hangar
Buildings located at 32W521 and 32W515 Tower Road.

Mr. Miller advised that in July 2012, four buildings at the airport received storm damage with
significant roof damage to one hangar. He stated that the Airport Authority’s Architects provided
a cost estimate of $40,000 for this roof repair and when bids were received, the cost was
approximately $150,000; consequently the project was not awarded. Mr. Miller continued to
explain that a Job Order Contract (JOC) was requested from Kellogg Brown and Root Services
(KBR) for this roof repair project and a proposal was received for the amount of $34,804.92.
Discussion continued. Staff recommended approval.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner LaMantia to recommend Board approval for Proposed
Resolution 2012-1694; Authorizing Entering into a Purchase Order Contract with Kellogg Brown
and Root Services, Inc. to Repair the Roof on the Hangar Buildings located at 32 W521 and
32W515 Tower Road. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Gillett and was passed by roll
call vote (4-0).

LEASING AND CUSTOMER FEES
OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

Proposed Resolution 2012-1698; Authorization to Enter into a Cash Farm Lease
between the DuPage Alrport Authority and Dale Pitstick.

Executive Director Bird asked Byron Miler to review this proposed resolution. Mr. Miller stated
that the Airport Authority currently farms approximately 190 acres in areas around the airfield.
He continued that bids were solicited for a three-year cash farm lease for these locations and
four bids were received. Mr. Miller advised that Dale Pitstick was the high, responsive and
responsible bidder. Discussion followed and staff recommended approval.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner LaMantia to recommend Board approval for Proposed
Resolution 2012-1698; Authorization to Enter into a Cash Farm Lease between the DuPage
Airport Authority and Dale Pitstick. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sabathne’ and
was passed by roll call vote (4-0).

Proposed Resolution 2012-1696; Authorizing the Execution of an Easement
Agreement with the City of West Chicago.

Executive Director Bird asked Mark Doles to address this easement and Mr. Doles stated the City
of West Chicago is seeking this easement in order to facilitate the relocation of a waterline

required by Illinois Department of Transportation’s overpass project at Route 38 and Kautz Road.

He proceeded to explain the areas involved and the scope of this agreement; exhibits were
provided for review. Discussion followed and staff recommended approval.

12



A MOTION was made by Commissioner Gillett to recommend Board approval for Proposed
Resolution 2012-1696; Authorizing the Execution of an Easement Agreement with the City of
West Chicago. The motion was seconded by Commissioner LaMantia and was passed by roll call
vote (4-0).

Discussion of a Proposed Amendment to the Lease Agreement with Travel Express.
Committee Chairman Gorski stated this matter would be discussed in Executive Session.

RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION

A MOTION was made by Commissioner LaMantia to recess to Executive Session for the setting
of a price for sale or lease of property owned by the DuPage Airport Authority. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Gillett and was passed unanimously by voice vote. The Regular
Meeting was recessed to Executive Session at 2:40 p.m. and was reconvened at 3:05 p.m. Upon
roll call, a quorum was present for the remainder of the Regular Committee Meeting.

OTHER BUSINESS
None

Commissioner Sabathne’ made a MOTION to adjourn the Capital Development, Leasing and
Customer Fees Committee Meeting; the motion was seconded by Commissioner LaMantia and
was unanimously passed by voice vote, The meeting was adjourned at 3:06 p.m.

Gerald M. Gorski, Chairman
Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee

13



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
FINANCE, BUDGET AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
Wednesday, November 14, 2012

A meeting of the Finance, Budget and Audit Committee of the DuPage Airport Authority Board of
Commissioners was convened at the DuPage Flight Center, 2700 International Drive, West
Chicago, Illinois, First Floor Conference Room, on Wednesday, November 14, 2012. Chairman
Huizenga called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.

Commissioners Present: Donnelly, Huizenga.
Commissioners Absent. Davis

DuPage Airport Authority Staff Present: Executive Director David Bird; Mark Doles, Director
of Aviation Facilities and Properties; Byron Miller, Director of Operations; Patrick Hoard, Director
of Finance; John Schiaman, General Manager of Prairie Landing Golf Club; Anna Marano,
Procurement Analyst; Pam Miller, Executive Assistant and Board Liaison.

Others: None

OLD BUSINESS
None

NEW BUSINESS

Review of 2012 Financial Statements

Executive Director Bird asked Patrick Hoard to discuss the Financial Statements.

Mr. Hoard reported that the process of finalizing the system upgrade of the general ledger is
nearly complete; a cash flow statement and balance sheet cannot be provided for review at this
time but going forward all will be in place. Executive Director Bird stated that all business units
are doing an excellent job holding the line in expenses. He stated that Mr. Hoard has
implemented and continues to implement tight controls for expenditures. Mr. Hoard reviewed
the financial statements and discussion followed.

Revenues increased overall by nearly 3%. Every business is ahead of budget for
revenues.

Expenditures decreased 4% overall from the budgeted amount. The Airport Authority
and Flight Center are slightly below the total budgeted for expenditures for this time period.
Prairie Landing expenditures increased as a result of the good weather that extended the golf
season.

Net Profit has increased nearly 300% from the budget for this time of year. Gain of sale
of fixed assets is showing a significant increase which is entirely from the exchange of land to
CenterPoint. This is not a cash gain to report but a fiscal gain.

Over all Ending Cash Balanceis $26.7 rillion now and anticipated to be slightly down by
the end of 2012. Every business looks very positive.  Preliminary numbers are not yet available
for October however all airport businesses appear to be basically flat for October.

Proposed Ordinance 2012-259; Adopting Tentative Budget and Appropriations
ordinance for the DuPage Airport Authority for the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,
2013 and Ending December 31, 2013.

Patrick Hoard stated that since the Special Finance Committee Meeting there have been only
minor changes in the budget document; he reviewed these changes. Mr. Hoard also reviewed
the Capital Projects and Major Maintenance items included for 2013 and discussion followed.
Staff recommended approval.

14



A MOTION was made by Commissioner Donnelly to recommend Board approval of Proposed
Ordinance 2012-259; Adopting Tentative Budget and Appropriations Ordinance for the DuPage
Airport Authority for the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2013 and Ending December 31, 2013.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Huizenga and was unanimously passed by rol! call
vote (2-0).

Proposed Resolution 2012-1689; Directing the Use of Property Tax Revenue.

Mr. Hoard explained that at the last Finance Committee Meeting discussion occurred regarding
the manner in which the Capital Reserve Accounts are reported from an accounting standpoint.
He continued that Commissioner Huizenga recommended the Board should memorialize their
directive on the use of property tax dollars for capital projects by adopting a resolution
establishing this directive. Mr. Hoard stated it is important to note that this resolution is meant
to acknowledge the way the Airport Authority currently utilizes property tax dollars to fund capital
projects and major maintenance. He continued this directive will not add anything new into the
current policy and will make sure everyone can be clear on how property tax dollars are
managed. Discussion occurred.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Donnelly to recommend Board approval of Proposed
Resolution 2012-1689; Directing the Use of Property Tax Revenue. The motion was seconded
by Commissioner Huizenga and was passed unanimously by roll call vote (2-0).

Proposed Resolution 2012-1700; Authorizing the Execution of a Non-Federal
Reimbursable Agreement Between the Department of Transportation Federal
Aviation Administration and the DuPage Airport Authority.

Mark Doles explained that each year the Board is asked to consider an agreement with the FAA
for payment of nighttime staffing hours for the Air Traffic Control Tower. He continued this
reflects the FAA’s mandates to have two people in the control tower at all times and has resulted
in increased costs to the Airport Authority. The Airport Authority is agreeable to these mandates
as it is very important for marketing to potential users and is significant when approaching
corporate flight departments to locate at DuPage Airport. Discussion continued briefly and staff
recommended approval.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Donnelly to recommend Board approval of Proposed
Resolution 2012-1700; Authorizing the Execution of a Non-Federal Reimbursable Agreement
between the Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration and the DuPage
Airport Authority. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Huizenga and was passed
unanimously by roll call vote (2-0).

Other Business

Mark Doles advised that Phase I of the Flight Center Renovations have been successfully
completed. He continued that Phase II of the project will be addressed by the Capital
Development Committee and the Board at this meeting. Discussion followed.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Donnelly to adjourn the Finance, Budget and Audit
Committee; the motion was seconded and was passed unanimously by voice vote. The
meeting adjourned at 1:37 p.m.

Peter Huizenga, Chairman
Finance, Budget and Audit Committee

15



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
INTERNAL POLICY AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, September 11, 2012
The Inland Group
Oak Brook, Illinois

The Internal Policy and Compliance Committee of the DuPage Airport Authority Board of
Commissioners convened at the offices of The Inland Group in Oak Brook, Illinois on
Tuesday, September 11, 2012. Chairwoman Gillett called the meeting to order at 11:10
a.m. and a quorum was present for the meeting.

Commissioners Present: Gillett, Gorski,

Absent: Thompson (participated via telephone conference call)

DAA Staff Present: Executive Director David Bird; Pam Miller, Executive Assistant and
Board Liaison.

Others in Attendance: Phil Luetkehans, Attorney.

Members of the Press: None

OLD BUSINESS
None

NEW BUSINESS
Proposed Ordinance 2012-258; An Ordinance Amending the DuPage Airport
Authority Ethics Ordinance and Repealing Ordinance 2012-253.

Proposed Resolution 2012-1674; Authorizing the Execution of an
Intergovernmental Agreement with the County of DuPage Relating to a
Shared Ethics Officer.

Chairwoman Gillett asked Attorney Luetkehans to begin discussion regarding these two
agenda items. Attorney Luetkehans reviewed the DuPage County Ordinance and the
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA). He stated that the Airport Authority Board has
basically two options to consider:

(1) The Board can proceed to enter into this IGA and to adopt the DuPage County
Ethics Ordinance as provided.

(2) The Board can advise the County that the Airport Authority feels with the
amendments made to the Airport Authority Ethics Ordinance earlier in the year,
and as a result of the County’s consultant’s recommendations, the Ordinances
are very similar. The Airport Authority Ethics Ordinance can be modified to
include other language contained in the County’s Ethics Ordinance addressing
the positions of Ethics Officer, Investigator General, and an Ethics Commission.

16



Discussion occurred.  Chairwoman Gillett stated that she felt this is a serious matter
and that the Committee is not prepared to make a recommendation for adoption at this
time. She added that this matter should be taken before the full Board at the
September 26 Meeting; all committee members agreed.

OTHER BUSINESS
None

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Gorski to adjourn the Internal Policy and
Compliance Committee Meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner
Thompson and was passed unanimously by voice vote. The meeting adjourned at 11:48
a.m.

Dayle M. Gillett, Chair
Internal Policy and Compliance Committee

2 16A



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
GOLF COMMITTEE MEETING
Wednesday, September 26, 2012

The Golf Committee of the DuPage Airport Authority Board of Commissioners was convened at
the DuPage Flight Center, 2700 International Drive, West Chicago, 1llinois, First Floor Conference
Room on Wednesday, September 26, 2012. Chairman Donnelly called the meeting to order at
10:02 p.m. and a quorum was present for the meeting.

Commissioners Present: Donnelly, Huizenga, Davis, Sabathne’, Thompson.
Commissioners Absent: None

DuPage Airport Authority Staff Present: Executive Director David Bird; John Schlaman,
Director of Golf for Prairie Landing Golf Course; Pam Miller, Executive Assistant and Board
Liaison.

REVIEW OF GOLF, FOOD AND BEVERAGE AND BANQUET PERFORMANCE.
John Schlaman provided the following review:

Banquet revenue significantly up and trending up through the end of 2012. Weekday golf traffic
is significantly slower and is a result of a lack of business golfers and corporate outings.
Discussion followed on weather related issues that have created problems on the course as well
as dealing with tight revenue streams.

For August 2012, paid golf rounds are down 8%; prepaid member rounds are up 16%; golf
revenue is down 6%; F & B Alacart is up 10% and banquets are up 33%.

September 2012 sales are trending strong in both Golf and F & B due to Ryder Cup traffic.
Banquet revenue is trending well for the remainder of the year. F & B Alacart sales are up due to
a 15% increase in sales per round. September is trending up in total revenues of 38% mainly as
a result of the increased Ryder Cup traffic.

Mr. Schlaman stated that staff is taking a hard line approach in managing the budget.
Executive Director Bird advised that facility upgrades will continue to be made both inside and
outside at Prairie Landing and it is important to review these upgrade very critically. He
continued that new software has been implemented and improvements made in the Banquets
office to provide better conditions for working with clients; also there are plans for additional
landscaping in 2013.

REVIEW OF 2012 CAPITAL PROJECTS; PROGRESS REPORT FOR THE BUNKER
RENOVATION PROJECT.

Mr. Schlaman summarized capital projects for the golf club that are ongoing and reported
specifically on the Golf Course Renovation project. He continued that Robert Trent Jones had not
yet provided the final plans for golf course renovations. He added that GIS Mapping is complete
and some of the bunker repairs have been done. In summary Mr. Schlaman advised that all is
trending well for 2013. Discussion followed.

17



Chairman Donnelly stated that in 2013 plans should be developed for some promotional events in
an effort to generate increased revenue. Mr. Schiaman stated staff is focusing on leads for golf
outings. Discussion continued.

OTHER BUSINESS
None

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Thompson to adjourn the meeting of the Golf
Committee and Commissioner Davis seconded this motion. The motion was unanimously passed
by voice vote and was adjourned at 10:35 a.m.

Charles E. Donnelly, Committee Chairman

17A



——

DuPAGé AIRPORT

AUTHORITY
MONTHLY STATISTICS
November 2012
November
Percent YTD YTD Percent

Nov.12 Nov.'11 12vs 11 Change 2012 2011 12vs."11 GChange
FUEL
100LL 20,250 15,411 4,839 31.4% 218,667 217,191 1,476 0.7%
Jet A 174,021 198,527  (24,508) -12.3% 2,032,178 2,097,916  (65,738) -3.1%
Total Gallons 194,271 213,938 (19,667) -9.2% 2,250,845 2,315,107 (64,262) -2.8%
OPERATIONS
Local 2,124 2,075 49 2.4% 27,018 27,218 (200) -0.7%
ltinerant 4,234 3,927 307 7.8% 47,937 50,593 (2,656) -5.2%
Total Ops 6,358 6,002 356 5.9% 74,955 77,811 (2,856) -3.7%
REGIONAL OPS November

Percent YTD YTD Percent

Nov. 12  Nov.'11 '12vs.'i1 Change 2012 2011 "12vs. 11 Change
Total OPS
DuPAGE 6,358 6,002 356 5.9% 74,955 77,811 (2.856) 3.7%
Palwaukee 7,106 5,903 1,202 20.4% 79,476 78,327 1,149 1.5%
Aurora 5,657 4,487 1,170 26.1% 64,808 70,178 (5,370) 7.7%
Waukegan 3,887 3,291 596 18.1% 44,775 42,353 2,422 5.7%
State of lllinois 160,253 144,349 15,904 11.0% 1,778,221 1,787,451 (9,230) -0.5%
Teterboro 13,279 15,176 (1,897) -12.5% 146,045 147,334 (1,289) 0.9%
Van Nuys 20,329 19,861 468 2.4% 242,045 278,774 (36,729) -13.2%
Centennial 24,949 23,453 1,496 6.4% 277,290 273,963 3,327 1.2%
Local OPS
DuPAGE 2,124 2,075 49 2.4% 27,018 27,218 (200) -0.7%
Palwaukee 1,692 1,456 236 16.2% 19,324 21,268 (1,944) -9.1%
Aurora 2,769 1,964 805 41.0% 31,912 31,142 770 2.5%
Waukegan 1,750 1,441 309 21.4% 19,920 18,864 1,056 5.6%
State of lllinois 30,289 20,649 9,640 48.7% 203,372 295,196 (1,824) -0.6%
Teterboro 0 0 o] 0 0 0
Van Nuys 7,222 6,584 638 9.7% 87,855 89,043 (1,188) -1.3%
Centennial 11,720 10,197 1,523 14.9% 118,486 120,562 (2,076) 1.7%
ltinerant OPS
DuPAGE 4,234 3,927 307 7.8% 47,937 50,593 (2,656) -5.2%
Palwaukee 5413 4,447 966 21.7% 60,152 57,059 3,093 5.4%
Aurora 2,888 2,523 365 14.5% 32,896 39,036  (6,140)  -15.7%
Waukegan 2,137 1,850 287 15.5% 24,855 23,489 1,366 5.8%
State of Illinois 129,964 123,700 6,264 51% 1,484,849 1,492,255 (7,4006) -0.5%
Teterboro 13,279 15,176 (1,897) -12.5% 146,045 147,334 (1,289) -0.9%
Van Nuys 13,107 13,277 (170) -1.3% 154,190 189,731  (35,541) 18.7%
Centennial 13,229 13,256 27) -0.2% 158,804 163,401 5,403 3.5%



—_—

DuUPAGE AIRPORT

AUTHORITY
MONTHLY STATISTICS
December 2012
December
Percent YTD YTD Percent

Dec.'12 Dec.'11 '12vs.']1 Change 2012 2011 "2vs.'11 Change
FUEL
100LL 14,519 14,560 (41} «0.3% 233,186 231,751 1,435 0.6%
Jet A 173,944 168,320 5,624 3.3% 2,206,122 2,266,236 (60,114) -2.7%
Total Gallons 188,463 182,880 5,583 3.1% 2,439,308 2,497,987 (58,679) «2.3%

19



240,000
230,000 -
220,000
210,000

£ 200,000 |

& 190,000

< 180,000

3 170,000 —
160,000
150,000
140,000

35,000 | —
30,000
25,000

20,000

100LL Gallons

15,000

10,000

280,000

r
260,000 —

220,000

Total Gallons

160,000

240000 — — ——— -

Jet A by Month

—t— 2012

201y

—— 3

20



Local OPS

Transient OPS

2,000

1,000

12,000

10,000

8,000

Total OPS
o
[=]
Q
[=]

Local OPS by Month

A J J A S o
Total OPS by Month
— A — " = S—
— , /"; =7 H‘q__'.' — e —
=¥ _-%"_“ﬂ
'y s 4 A s o

.

|
|
l

21



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

ANNUAL AND REGULAR MEETING
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 9, 2013

TENTATIVE AGENDA

6. Review of Financial Statements

Supporting materials will be provided
under separate cover.

22



-.\-_”/

DuUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES

Daniel L. Goodwin, Chairman
Gerald M. Gorski, Vice Chairman
Stephen L. Davis, Treasurer
Dayle M. Gillett, Secretary
Charles E. Donnelly, Commissioner
Peter H. Huizenga, Commissioner
Gina R. LaMantia, Commissioner
David J. Sabathne’, Commissioner
Perry R. Thompson, Commissioner

Patrick Hoard, Assistant Treasurer
Mark Doles, Assistant Secretary

STANDING COMMITTEES

Peter H. Huizenga, Chairman
Charles E. Donnelly, Member
Stephen L. Davis, Member
Mark Doles, Staff
Patrick Hoard, Staff

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT, LEASING & CUSTOMER FEES COMMITTEE

Gerald M. Gorski, Chairman
Dayle M. Gillett, Member
Gina R. LaMantia, Member
Stephen L. Davis, Member
David J. Sabathne’, Member
Byron Miller, Staff
Mark Doles, Staff

GOLF COMMITTEE
Charles E. Donnelly, Chairman
Stephen L. Davis, Member
Peter H. Huizenga, Member
pDavid J. Sabathne’, Member
Perry R. Thompson, Member
John Schlaman, Staff

RNAL 0
Dayle M. Gillett, Chairman
Gerald M. Gorski, Member

Perry R. Thompson, Member
Patrick Hoard, Staff

January 2013

23



January

01/01/13 Tuesday
01/02/13 Wednesday
01/09/13 Wednesday
01/09/13 Wednesday
01/09/13 Wednesday
01/09/13 Wednesday
February

NO S DULED MEETINGS
March

03/06/13 Wednesday
03/13/13 Wednesday
03/13/13 Wednesday
03/13/13 Wednesday
03/13/13 Wednesday
April

N EDULED ETING
May

05/01/13 Wednesday
05/08/13 Wednesday
05/08/13 Wednesday
05/08/13 Wednesday
05/08/13 Wednesday
05/27/13 Monday
June

06/05/13 Wednesday
06/12/13 Wednesday
06/12/13 Wednesday
06/12/13 Wednesday
06/12/13 Wednesday
July

NO SCHEDULED MEETINGS

N,

DUPAGE AIRPORT

AUTHORITY

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MEETING/HOLIDAY CALENDAR

11:00 a.m.
12:00 Noon
1:00 p.m.
2:30 p.m.

3:00 p.m.

11:00 a.m.
12:00 Noon
1:00 p.m.
2:00 p.m.

3:00 p.m.

11:00 a.m.
12:00 Noon
1:00 p.m.
2:00 p.m.

3:00 p.m

11:00 a.m.
12:00 Noon
1:00 p.m.
2:00 p.m.,

3:00 p.m.

2013

DAA HOLIDAY — New Years Day

Internal Policy & Compliance Committee

Golf Committee

Finance, Budget & Audit Committee

Capital Development, Leasing and
Customer Fees Committee

Regular/Annual Board Meeting

Internal Policy & Compliance Committee

Golf Committee

Finance, Budget & Audit Committee

Capital Development, Leasing and
Customer Fees Committee

Regular Board

Internal Policy & Compliance Committee

Golf Committee

Finance, Budget & Audit Committee

Capital Development, Leasing and
Customer Fees Committee

Regular Board

DAA HOLIDAY — Memorial Day

Internal Policy & Campliance Committee

Golf Committee

Finance, Budget & Audit Committee

Capital Development, Leasing and
Customer Fees Committee

Regular Board

The Inland Group
Flight Center
Flight Center

Flight Center
Flight Center

The Inland Group
Flight Center
Flight Center
Flight Center

Flight Center

The Intand Group
Flight Center
Flight Center
Flight Center

Flight Center

The Inland Group
Flight Center
Flight Center
Flight Center

Flight Center

24



August

LED GS

r
09/02/13 Monday - DAA Holiday — Labor Day
09/04/13 Wednesday 11:00 a.m. Internal Policy & Compliance Committee The Inland Group
09/11/13 Wednesday 12:00 Noon Golf Committee Flight Center
09/11/13 Wednesday 1:00 p.m. Finance, Budget & Audit Committee Fight Center
09/11/13 Wednesday 2:00 p.m. Capital Development, Leasing and Flight Center

N Customer Fees Comrmtte .

October

NO SCHEDULED MEETINGS

November

11/06/13 Wednesday 11:00 a.m. Internal Policy & Compliance Committee The Inland Group
11/13/13 Wednesday 12:00 Noon Golf Committee Flight Center
11/13/13 Wednesday 1:00 p.m. Finance, Budget & Audit Committee Flight Center
11/13/13 Wednesday 2:00 p.m. Capital Development, Leasing and Flight Center

_ Customer FeesCommittee i

11/28/13 Nlhursday -~ DAA HOLIDAY - Thanksgiving Day
December

EDULED ETINGS

14

01/01/13 Tuesday -—- DAA HOLIDAY — New Years Day
01/08/14 Wednesday 11:00 a.m. Internal Policy & Compliance Committee The Inland Group
01/15/14 Wednesday 12:00 Noon Golf Committee Flight Center
01/15/14 Wednesday 1:00 p.m. Finance, Budget & Audit Committee Flight Center
01/15/14 Wednesday 2:00 p.m. Capital Development, Leasing and Flight Center

Customer Fees Committee

Address for Meetings:
Regular Board Meeting; DuPage Airport Authority
Finance, Budget Flight Center Building
and Audit Committee; First Floor Conference Room
Capital Development, Leasing 2700 International Drive
and Customer Fees Committee; West Chicago, Illinois 60185
Golf Committee (630) 584-2211
Internal Policy and The Inland Group
Compliance Committee 2901 Butterfield Rd.
Oak Brook, Illinois 60523
(630) 218-4942

25



DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

TO: DuPage Airport Authority

Board of Commissioners
FROM: David Bird ’DB

Executive Director

RE: Proposed Ordinance 2013-260; Adopting Budget and Appropriations Ordinance
for the DuPage Airport Authority for the Fiscal Year beginning January 1, 2013
and Ending December 31, 2013.

DATE: January 2, 2013
SUMMARY:

Pursuant to Illinois Statute, the Airport Authority is required to pass within the first quarter of their fiscal year, a
Budget and Appropriations Ordinance. The Tentative Budget and Appropriations Ordinance was passed on November
14, 2012 and forwarded to DuPage County Board Chairman Cronin on December 3, 2012. As authorized by Illinois
Statute, the County Board Chairman has thirty (30) days to review the Airport Authority Budget and Appropriations
and has the right of line item veto. The Airport Authority has received no comments or questions from the County
Board Chairman’s office with regard to the 2013 Budget and Appropriations. A notice was published in the Daily
Herald announcing the Public Hearing which was held on January 8, 2013, at 10:00 a.m. in the 1% Floor Conference
Room of the DuPage Flight Center. The purpose of the Public Hearing was to provide an opportunity for public
review and comment. There were no comments and no members of the public in attendance. The Airport Authority
has met all of its statutory requirements for passage of the 2013 Budget and Appropriations.

PREVIOUS COMMITTEE/BOQARD ACTION:

November 14, 2012 - the DuPage Airport Authority Board passed Ordinance 2012-259; Tentative Budget and
Appropriations Ordinance for the DuPage Airport Authority for the Fiscal Year beginning January 1, 2013 and Ending
December 31, 2013.

VENUE 1 PLI H
Tllinois Statute requires passage of this Ordinance by the Board to enact the Authority’s annual budget.

STAKEHOLDER PROCESS:
No stakeholders have been identified at this time.

Legal review of this item is not necessary.

ATTACHMENTS:
Proposed Ordinance 2013-260; Adopting Budget and Appropriations Ordinance for the DuPage Airport Authority for
the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2013 and Ending December 31, 2013.

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board can deny, modify or amend this issue.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is the recommendation of the Executive Director that the Board approve Proposed Ordinance 2012-260; Adopting
the Budget and Appropriations Ordinance for the DuPage Airport Authority for the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,
2013 and Ending December 31, 2013.

26



ORDINANCE 2013-260

TENTATIVE BUDGET & APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE
for the DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
for the FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2013
and ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2013

WHEREAS, The Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority, an lllinois Special District, has adopted
a fiscal year beginning January 1, 2013 and ending December 31, 2013, and has estimated the sums of money

necessary to pay the costs of operating the DuPage Airport Autharity and all other expenses and liabilities of the
Authority for Fiscal Year 2013.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority, an
Wlinois Special District, as follows:

SECTION 1: For the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2013 and ending December 31, 2013 the following sums of

money below are hereby budgeted and appropriated for the corporate purposes of the Corporate Fund of the DuPage
Airport Authority:

Estimated Cash Balance - Beginning - Non Designated $ 8,485,590

Estimated Cash Balance - Beginning - Designated $ 17,195,994
$ 25,681,584
OPERATING REVENUES
Airport Operations $ 4,374,898
Flight Center Fuel Operations $ 12,257,310
Prairle Landing Golf Course 2,836,818
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 19,469,026
OPERATING EXPENSES
Airport Operations $ 6,121,157
Flight Center Fuel Operations 10,652,941
Prairie Landing Golf Course $ 2,575608
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 19,349,704
NON OPERATING - DEBT SERVICE/CAPITALITAXES
REVENUES
Miscellanecus Taxes $ 53,500
Property Taxes/Abatement $ 5,558,000
Interest Income 3 150,000
Gain of Sale from Fixed Assets $ 55,000
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES $ 5,816,500
EXPENSES
Property Tax (DAA) $ 198,000
Property Tax (PLGC) $ 256,000
TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES $ 454,000
CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM
AIRPORT OPERATIONS $ 13,804,450
FLIGHT CENTER $ 1,300,000
GOLF COURSE CAPITAL $ 767,000
EQUIPMENT (all businesses) $ 1,001,800
Major Maintenance of Capital Assets $ 732,340
TOTAL CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM $ 17,605,590
Total FY2013 Revenues $ 25,285,526
Total FY2013 Expenditures $ 37,409,294
Cash Balance - Ending $ 13,557,816 *

* Cash Balance - Ending split as follows:
Capital Designated $ 5,148,404
Non Designated Cash Ending $ 8,409,412



SECTION 2: That the fallowing budget and appropriations, conlaining an estimate of the receipts and
expenditures for FISCAL YEAR 2013, be and are hereby adopled as the budget and appropriations of ihe
Corporate Fund of the DuPage Airport Authority for said fiscal year:

AIRPORT ADMINISTRATION / OPERATIONE

REVENUES
AIRCRAFT STORAGE $ 1,390,824
COMMISSIONS $ 31,344
LAND/BUILDING LEASES $ 2,847,480
CUSTOM FEE $ 80,000
MISCELLANEOUS 3 25,250
TOTAL REVENUES $ 4,374,898

CASH ON HAND - BEGINNING $ 6,467,690

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE $ 10,842,588
EXPENDITURES
SALARIES
STAFF & COMMISSIONERS $ 2,183,639
SALARIES TOTAL § 2183639
BENEFITS
FICA H 159,950
UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE $ 39,419
GROUP INSURANCE $ 388,908
UNIFORMS $ 9,006
IMRF $ 197,183
BENEFITS TOTAL $ 704,466
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE
EDUCATION / TRAINING / TRAVEL - 15,780
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS $ 17,185
PRINTING AND POSTAGE $ 20,730
COMPUTER AND SOFTWARE N 35450
COMMUNICATIONS S 50,074
GENERAL OFFiCE 3 §4,800
MISCELLANEQUS § 800
GEN. & ADMIN. TOTAL $ 194,919
OUTSIDE SERVICES
CONSULTING SERVICES $ 103,100
ACCOUNTING / AUDIT $ 46,000
CUSTOMS/CONTROL TOWER s 503,000
MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES ] 135,000
LEGAL H 200,000
BUILDING INSPEGTION SERVICES 1 12,675
SNOW REMOVAL/ICE CONTROL $ 80,000
ARFF $ 400,000
QUTSIDE TOTAL $ 1479775
MAINTENANCE
EQUIPMENT LEASE / MAINT. CONTRACTS $ 60,171
SUPPLIES/HANDTOOLS & SMALL EQUIPMENT $ 700
FUEL/OIL VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT $ 85,000
FIELD MAINTENANCE $ 150,000
BUILDING MAINTENANCE 3 213,000
MACHINE & EQUIPMENT $ 57,000
MAINTENANCE TOTAL $ 555,871
INSURANCE $ 316,538
] 316,538
MARKETING / PUBLIC RELATIONS $ 119,312
$ 119,312
UTILITIES
GARBAGE REMOVAL / JANITORIAL $ 62,518
GAS HEAT $ 130,000
ELECTRIC 3 266,000
WATER/SEWER $ 28,119
TOTAL UTILITIES $ 476,637
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AUTHORITY
ADMINISTRATION & OPERATIONS $ 6,121,157

CASH ON HAND ENDING $ 4,721,431



DUPAGE FLIGHT CENTER FUEL OPERATIONS

REVENUES
FUEL & OIL SALES
SERVICES & CATERING
MISCELLANEOUS INCOME
TOTAL REVENUES

CASH ON HAND - BEGINNING

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

EXPENDITURES
SALARIES
STAFF
SALARIES TOTAL

BENEFITS
FICA
UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE
GROUP INSURANCE

UNIFORMS
IMRF
BENEFITS TOTAL
COST OF SALES
COST OF SALES - FUEL/OIL
COST OF SALES - DEICE
COST OF SALES - CATERING
COST OF SALES TOTAL
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

BUILDING RENT
EDUCATION / TRAINING / TRAVEL
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS
PRINTING AND POSTAGE
SOFTWARE
COMMUNICATIONS
CREDIT CARD EXPENSE
MARKETING

GEN. & ADMIN. TOTAL

OUTSIDE SERVICES

CONSULTING SERVICES/LEGAL
OUTSIDE TOTAL

MAINTENANCE / OPERATIONS

EQUIPMENT LEASE / MAINT. CONTRACTS
SUPPLIES
FUEL / OIL VEHICLES
MAINTENANCE EXPENSE
MAINTENANCE TOTAL

INSURANCE
INSURANCE TOTAL

UTILITIES
ELECTRIC
UTILITIES TOTAL

TOTAL EXPENDITURES FLIGHT
CENTER FUEL OPERATION

CASH ON HAND ENDING

11,880,885
267,425

12,257,310

1,578,385

13,835,695

923,946

AN

923,946

70,682
26,910
245,000
9,632
88,052

LA A P N &

8,574,463
25,000
86,150

@ O a

48,000
7.535
800
30,000
7,000
4,100
167,000
35,000

aler 4 h P H A

299,435

$ 4,700

$ 4,700

$ 122,000
$ 4,300
$ 28,071
$ 27,300
$ 181671
$

$

115,000
115,000

$ 2,300

— e e

$ 2,300

$ 10,652,941

$ 3,182,754

$
$
$ 8,900
$
$
$

440,276

8,685,613

29



PRAIRIE LANDING GOLF COURSE

REVENUES
GOLF OPERATIONS
GREENS FEES $ 1,227,000
ASSOCIATION MEMBERSHIPS $ 153,000
RENTALS $ 7,000
PRACTICE CENTER $ 154,000
PRO SHOP SALES $ 155,000
TOTAL GOLF OPERATIONS $ 1606000
FOOD & BEVERAGE
CLUBHOUSE $ 260,000
KITTY HAWK - DEL} $ 43,200
BANQUET $  £34,243
TOTAL FOOD & BEVERAGE $ 1,137,443
MISCELLANEOUS INCOME N 3,375
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 3375
TOTAL REVENUES $ 2,835,818
CASH ON HAND - BEGINNING $ 439,515
TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE $ 3,276,333
EXPENSES
SALARIES
STAFF $ 1,129,185
SALARIES TOTAL $ 1,129,185
BENEFITS
FICA $ 97,915
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT (SUTA) $ 72,043
WORKMAN'S COMP
IMRF $ 84,253
GROUP INSURANCE $ 139,415
UNIFORMS $ 7,800
BENEFITS TOTAL $ 401,426
COST OF SALES
COST OF SALES - GOLF $ 111,900
COST OF SALES - GRILL,EVENT, BANQUETS $ 302,065
COST OF SALES - KITTY HAWK $ 16,925
CREDIT CARD FEES $ 58,625
COST OF SALES TOTAL $ 489,515
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE
BUILDING RENT
EDUCATION / TRAINING / TRAVEL $ 1,300
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS $ 11,775
PRINTING AND POSTAGE $ 2,400
SOFTWARE $ 5,000
COMMUNICATIONS $ 18,875
GENERAL SUPPLIES $ 58,700
TRANSFER COSTS TO FLIGHT GENTER $ (35,238)
MARKETING $ 55,525
GEN. & ADMIN, TOTAL $ 118,337
OUTSIDE SERVICES
CONSULTING SERVICES/LEGAL $ 28,075
OUTSIDE TOTAL $ 28,075
MAINTENANCE / OPERATIONS
COURSE MAINTENANCE $ 57,500
SUPPLIES $ 93,000
RENTAL EQUIPMENT $ 31,500
FUEL / OIL. VEHICLES $ 25,000
BUILDING MAINTENANCE EXPENSE $ 47,000
MAINTENANCE TOTAL $ 254,000
INSURANCE
$ 64,008
INSURANCE TOTAL $ 64,008
UTILITIES
GARBAGE REMOVAL / JANITORIAL $ 12,560
GAS HEAT $ 11,900
ELECTRIC $ 57,375
WATER/SEWER $ 9,225
UTILITIES TOTAL $ 91,060
TOTAL EXPENSES - PRAIRIE LANDING $ 2,575,606

CASH ON HAND ENDING $ 700,727



NON OPERATING - REVENUE/DEBT SERVICE/CAPITAL/TAXES

MISCELLANEOUS TAXES $ 63,500
PROPERTY TAXES $ 5,558,000
INTEREST INCOME $ 150,000
GAIN OF SALE FROM FIXED ASSETS $ 55,000
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES $ 5.816,500

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

AIRPORT OPERATIONS $ 13,804,450
FLIGHT CENTER $ 1,300,000
GOLF COURSE CAPITAL § 767,000
EQUIPMENT (all businesses) $ 1,001,800
Major Maintenance of Capital Assets $ 732,340
TOTAL CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT $ 17,605,590
PROPERTY TAX
PROPERTY TAX (DAA) $ 198,000
PROPERTY TAX (PLGC) $ 256,000
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE $ 454,000
TOTAL REVENUES FY 2013 $ 26,205,628

TOTAL EXPENDITURES FY 2013 § 137,409,294

CASH ON HAND ENDING $ 13,557,616 °

et
* Cash on Mand « Ending split as follows:
Capital Designaled $ 5,148,404
Operating Cash Ending 3 8,409,412

Said appropriation items shall constitute the Budget for the Corporate Fund of the Authority for FISCAL
YEAR 2013.

In support of sald Budget and as part thereof, the following stalement Is made under Sectlon 3 of "AN ACT
providing for and regulating methods of adapting Budgets and making appropriations by certaln tax levying
hodies of this Siate" appraved July 12, 1937, as amended, (lll. Rev. Stats. Ch. 85, par. 8039) and Secllon
195-1/2 of the "Revenue Act of 1939, as amended (lll. Rev. Stats. Ch, 120, par, 676A).

The amounts specified are the maximum estimated for probable expenditures or
commitments prior ta December 31, 2013, and there is Included in the appropriated
amounts, funds derived from other sources than local taxation, and which may be spent for
the benafit of the authority without aclually being received and expended by it.

All unexpended balance of any item or ilems of any general appropriation made by this Ordinance may b
expended in making up any deficiency In any Item or items in he same general appropriation made by this
Ordinance.

SEGTION 3: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upan its adoption and approval.

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissloners of the DuPage Airport Authority on January oth, 2013.
Record of Rall Call Vote:

Stephen L, Davls
Charles £, Donnelly
Dayle M. Glllett
Daniel L. Goodwin
Gerald M. Gorskl
Peter H. Hulzenga
Gina R. Lamantia
Davld J. Sabathne'
Perry R. Thompson

—

Chairman

(soal)
ATTEST:

Secretary

31



DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

BUDGET
AND
APPROPRIATIONS

2013

32



DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
PAYROLL HEADCOUNT WORKSHEET

FISCAL YEAR 2013 BUDGET
2012 2013
CURRENT NEW/OPEN POSITIONS CURRENT NEWIOPEN POSITIONS
DEPARTMENT PART PART PARY PART
FULL e PuLL mwie  TOTALS) FULL e FULL e TOTALS
|
[DAA COMMISSIONERS ) 0 0 0 8t [} [ [} 0 a
DAA ADMINISTRATION
ADMINISTRATION 9 0 0 0 ] g 0 0 o o
P/R MARKETING 1 D 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1
ACCOUNTING 4 o 0 0 4 4 0 [\] 0 4
TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 14 o 0 0 14 14 0 0 0 14
DAA OPERATIONS
FIELD 10 0 0 2 12 10 0 0 2 12
BUILDINGS 5 0 o 0 5 5 o 0 o 5
EQUIPMENT 2 0 0 0 2 2 0 o Q 2
TOTAL OPERATIONS 17 0 0 2 ﬂq 17 0 [} 2 19
TOTAL ADMIN & OPERATIONS 3 0 0 2 33 M o o 2 0
s
FLIGHT CENTER-FUEL ORS
LINE SERVICE 15 0 o 1§ 15 a 0 0 15
COUNTER 4 1 0 0 5! 4 1 0 0 5
ACCOUNTING 1 o 0 ) 1 1 0 0 0 1
TOTAL-FUEL OPS 20 1 0 0 21 20 1 [} 0 21
PRAIRIE LANDING GOLF*
FOOD,BEVERAGE,BANQUETS 6 15 0 0 20 7 15 o 0 22
ADMINISTRATION 0 0 0 a o o a 0 0
GOLF OPERATIONS 1 0 0 o 1 1 0 0 o 1
MAINTENANCE - 4 0 0 o 4 4 o 0 0 4
*Dosa nol aboul 80 soasonal smployees who work aboul the same numbar of hours each yesr
OTAL PRAIRIE LANDING GOLF 10 15 ] 0 zS| 2 15 ] 0 7
FINAL ENDING TOTAL o1 18] af 2| 79| 83 16] af a 81

33



DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY



%e- bZ'TLE'Y 68E'bIS'Y 119'9€9'y  LZL'¥6L'9  EOL'SEL'S 229'352'9 JWOINI 13N
%0 151619 15L'8EE'S 9zo'06c'e  [80'0EL'S  £08'68Z°9  925°428'9 S3ISNIdX3 VIOL
%001- 0 #16'65¢C 98¢ 992 asuadx3 jsamu|
%l 098'22¢ i6L'E62 §GZ'9SE [T A A A T4 L19'e52 Bupunosay
%L} ¥08'v61 620'991 Zivsel EL¥'06 Spe'ss vSL'es fugauepy pue Wadojeas( ssaulsng
%t S0Z'80) SSE'204 L16's0L Z09'901 L6L'E0 0Zr'L6 SIBUQISSILILIOD)
%0L ¥59'8¢22'e 89E'LE0'2 pZO'ZLL'T  POT'90'Z  LbO'GEL'T  BBZTIET UofEASUILIPY
%9- 6.2'GEV 8e6'Loy 8E1'Z6E gec'¥2y  909'I6E Lgi'aly awdinb3 doyg
%LL- G0L'VEE v8¢'e0Y £EQ'EBE PES'T6E ooo'ozy L1L'9L% Jajuan Wiy
%9 oG+ 280°'L ZrE'als Zig'ow0'L  Lo¥ L6 9ER'BSS £0£'866 suopeusedo Buipiing
%} $18°169°L pLe'L el op2'0ze'L  BE'vTY’L  90L'8LZ'L 0BELZE’L suoneiadQ piaid
ISN3IIHE
% b~ 86£°169'0) _O¥S'6¢8'0L €0E'ZZ0'LL BOZ'YZE'LL 90S'SZYZTL  ¥S1'988'ZL SINNIAIN TVYI1O0L
%0 000°55 000°6S 0029 06265 Loy 68902 S}assy paxi Jo 3|BS UO Ules
%0 000051 ooo'ost o9L’ey oLL'oFl 862961 9zz'l5¢e swoou| jsasa]
%8- 005'cS 000'8S 12L'Ls #1286 SEV'YS $Z5'v9 soxe] jualuaae|doy
%0 000'850'S yzo'ar0'9 96z'a50'0  8Z0'FF0'Q  1ZZ'0ES'9 668'PES'9 soxe] Auodold
%2- yre'egt ooz'sch 60L'skl £65'122  88L'TZE A -TAN OSI - LILPY
%42 096'222 $ES'SLE #98'c02 1Z6'v0F  SEE'eSY 8vl'zsy J9us) Wbl
%l- 86.'¢82'2 §85'626'Z LZL'ZIC'E  /6E'620'C OSP'9EE's  #.L'/98°C suonesedo buipjing
%l 96.'LEZ'L leL'ere’L gL¥'ivb'L  /SL'996'L 80'68S'L  6.G'6¥Z'L suoneiadQ pield
INNIAIY

ZL0Z SA €102 ueyd ueld 102 0102 6002 800Z

eBuey) ebejuaiad £L0z zIoz V101 IvioL Tviol Tviol

ianv lanv lanv Lnanv

SASNIAXT ANV SINNIATYH 40 LNIWALYLS
uonensuiuWpy pue suoelado yodlly [ej0]

35



%I~ S6L'I89'8 S 995'SEL'S S GOZ'IZE'E S
%E- weo'szz?) § (eveeszn) $ losvzwv'sl S
%0 - $ - $ ¥6E96 $
%ST- (000'08) ¢ (6€0'v6) ¢ (666T8) ¢
%I- {o00"002) s (o0g‘z0z) § (8LvTLT) $
%6E {000°e¥E) ¢ (91£'912) $ (6£9°0L2) S
%T- {oo0’09T) $ (ooo'tat) ¢ {620'T9T) 5
%LE {ooo'ser) ¢ (teveor)  § (momwend S
%S {000°00T) $ (000's6) $ (szv'veT) $
%00T- = ¢ (008Y) $ (150'9) $
%0 # $ - ¢ (£9Z'L€T) $
%00T- s $ (L6'550) $ (38€'992) $
%1~ (000'92) ¢ {o00'e2} $ (pL1'92) $
%QE {osv'vE) $ (000'52) ¢ (tze'ee) $
%0 (000 $ (o00") s (61T'h) $
%0 (000'bT) ¢ (000'vT) $ (ST9'6) S
%61 (000°€) $ (ozs5T) $ (Lg1'e) $
%05- (o00'9) $ (ooo'zT) $ (9g¥'s) $
%bl- {0008} $ (00S€) $ (090'¢) s
%6 {ogo‘ooT) $ (9ge'16) ¢ (Le£16) s
%LT {e621L) $ (Lv6'09) ¢ (6ET'tB) $
%t {ooo'sTT) $ (SE0TTT) 5 (r2e€0T) S
%02 {15¢oT) $ (195'8) $ {zos'ot) $
%9 {8sz’05) $ (te9'Ly) $ (898's9) $
%8 (260'2trL) ¢ {22169) ¢ (6¥9'809) s
%0 (aog) $ (00€E) $ (00€E'T) $
%0T {a00‘TT} $ (ooo‘ot) $ (9t8'9T) s
%L {000t T) ¢ {oos'sr) $ {(eat0z) S
%0 bpe'zSY9 ¢ vIT'skv'e  § GGE'EIE9  §
%6E 000'sZ $ 00081 $ 650'tC $
%0 000'ss $ 000'ss ¢ 0079 $
%001~ - $ 002'T s (gs2's) $
%0 000'0ST $ 000'0ST $ 9106y $
%0 000'000'9 & tzo'9s6's  § SGL'Ss0'9
%L1- 000'8S $ 0000 $ T0S'C S
%8- 005'€S $ 000'8S $ TS $
%0 # s - $ S9L'€T $
%0 000'08 $ 00008 S 0SP'SL $
%zZ- wYE'TE $ 000’0 $ SBEZE $
ZT0Z SA €10Z Nvd NVid ROV
aduey) ITeguauad €102 F 41174 TT0T

sueusgure Jolely 10 uopenasdaq 2ujpnpul Jou SWo3l| 18N

asuadng je0L

saIn)pu3dx3 Jeah 101d JO punjoy
Jauesnsy|

|e391

1aMO] |013u0D del] Iy
SWI01SND 'S'M

$23/AI9S IPISINO

$a71A18S BunInsuo)

sa81eyd jueg

a5uadx3 1q2q peg

asuadq 152191u(
suohesunwwoe)

azemyos pue Jandwol
afe)soq pue Bunuiid

sHWIRd ‘suonduasqns ‘sang
uoneanp3

[ELLIT

suoreRY JaWolsn)/AlunuING)
xe| Auadaig

EENG

Idueinsy| dnolo

saxe} JuawAhojdwiaun

saxe| |josAed

sajiejes

puno.gyeg/suisa) 8nia/10Q
sayddns

spesuo) Wie/sesea dinby

anuanay 10l

awodu| SN

S135SY paxid JO djes Uo uien
Qwodu| IB1ey) Iaueuly
Awodyf 3543}

soxe) Auadold

saxe] Alado.ld s1eap Jold
saxe] juawazneday
SNUAASY 2IUBUDIUIBIAL/aSET/IUSY Py UCN
334 swoysn)

SUQ|SSIWWO) OSYS

6669
0L79
SeS9
7€59
T€ss
£es9
S7S%
0Et9
0zy9
0019
06€9
95¢9
0s€9
ore9
GEED
0ge9
0ces
0029
0919

STI9
aTT1e
0013

0EYS
oT¥S

066¢€
186€
086t
0.6
ovee
0g6E
016t
66CE
0ScE
S6TE

sasuadxg pue SAINUSAIY JO JuUaW31es
uopessiulwpy voday - gOTY Juswedag

36



9%9- (gT0'0ZY) $ (LTL'S6E) $ (veseLT) 3
%T wre'1se's)  $ (vie'Tve'T)  $ (evz'029'T) S
%01 (sot'6S) $ (98L€S) $ (91£09) )
%8 (000‘00v) $ (v60'0LE) $ (128's9€) )
%0 (000°09) $ (00009) ¢ (s60'91) S
%8 (001°€) s (€88°7) $ (008'T) S
%C- {ozeT) $ (0sE'T) ¢ (0zET) S
%00T- . $ (oog) g = S
%06T {sep) s {osT) $ (os€) S
%0G- {osL) $ (00S°T) S (898) S
%002 {osT) $ (0S) $ (v9) S
%ET {85€'8S) $ (tov'1s) $ (8eL'LS) s
%6¢- {0o0’9) ¢ (005°8) $ (069°c) S
%9 {oo0’0zT) ¢ (T6T'EIT) $ (osy’€0T) S
%6T {sz0'sT) $ {ot2'21) $ (zoz'ot) $
%€ (929°8p) $ (SET'LY) $ (¥8s'9t) S
%E (s82'9¢9) $ (osT'919) $ (b0'88S) S
%8- (000'ss) $ (699'6S) $ (01Z'29) S
%59- (ooo‘02) $ (¢L0°¢s) S (8Lt ty) S
%0 (ooo‘OT) $ (ooo‘oT) s (6TT'6) S
%GE- {00s'e) s (oov‘s) S (680°€) S
%69- (000Y) $ (0sLZT) $ (vre'T) S
%S- {(ooo‘0sT) ¢ (092°45T) $ (092'90T) S
%T- 96LTET'T § L6T'op2T § SWWIMK'T  $
%T- 9p’I80°T S ZSL'960°T $ T00'06TT S
%0 000°0ST $ 0ov'sbT S [8€/ST S
%SC 0s S op $ 0Of S
ZI0Z SAE10Z NVid NV1d VNV
aduey) a3eiuadad €102 r4174 TI0C

3oueudjuje Jo[ey 10 uonenasdag 3uipnpu] Jou awodu| 12N

asuady [ei0L
3Juesnsu]

144V

S30IAISS APISIND
$321A13S SuiYnNsuo)
SUOIIEIIUNWIIOD
aSejsod pue Buijuld
sHw.a4 ‘suonduasqns ‘sang
uonednpl

EI]

44NI

swopun

Jouesnsuf dnoug

saxe) JudwAo|dwaun
saxe] ||osAed

salie|es

J1393[3 - s3UWN
sanddng jonuo) 3]
sajddng

|eAOWRY 1sepnfadeqien
spesuo) “lutep /saseat dinbg
asuadxg saueuaiely

INUIAIY |30
SNU3AJY 2DURUIUIEIN /35€97/IUdY PlIHIY UON
539} JYSIwIaAQ 7g sumoq a1 ‘dwey

Suimo] ‘s34 3NAIIS ‘S394 UOI1IJ|0D

0449
859
J XA
§¢99
06&9
05€9
ore9
SEE9
0ge9
0919
0€19
0Z19
STT9
ot19
0019
0¢Ls
EEVS
1415749
STHS
018471
s0¢s

66CE
T6TE
06T¢E

mﬂn:ﬂnxw pue S3NUIAIY JO JU3UW RIS
JoueuUUIB P - 00ZY Wawpedaqg

37



%ET- ZpEovL'T $ EVZ'E00T % LEE'796T §
%9 (osp'ze0't)  $ (2vE'9L6) $ (peg'v¥0'T) S
%0T (£80’¢zT) s (£681TT) $ (61Z'96) 3
%¥T {o089) ¢ (00s's) $ {vto's) S
%00T- - $ (o0) 51 = S
%1 {T1L/ST) ¢ {ooo'et) $ (£96¢T) S
%00T- - ¢ (05) s - S
%00T- - $ (o6) $ (sor) $
%00T- = $ (00S) s (ze9) S
%ZT (808°0€) $ (TI¥'L2) $ (z66'1E) S
%tre (909°T) s {oo€'T) ¢ (10s'T) S
%L (s66°9L) $ (888'1L) $ (sTv'v9) S
%0z (sov"9) $ (1sg's) $ (158'9) $
%z {TeL'¥2) $ (oeT've) $ (£8's?) S
%z (szz'see) $ (T£p'STE) $ (zez'9tg) S
%E (06€'€T) $ (ooo'er) s (68Z'vT) S
%9 (o00'90T) $ (ot€'00T) $ (st9's0T) $
%Te- {0oo0'00T) $ (p8p'8eT) $ (8%€'61T) $
%01 (o00'1T) $ (ooo‘or) $ (qz9'01) $
%61- (088'LT) $ {ooo‘ce) $ (z9z's1) $
%0 {£16'9) $ (0002) s (£859) S
%08 (s812) $ (000%) $ (6££'9) 3
%001- R $ 0009 $ §59'8 $
%LE (009°s9T) ¢ (oos‘ozT) $ (be9'soz) $
%L- g62'€82'7 ¢ S8S'6L6T S TLI'TIOE  $
%T1- PLLTVS'T S GLSWELT S S8LSLLT %
%EE 00z $ ost $ 08t S
%0 Yz8'ove'T $ oSgTPZ'T § 9029EC'T S
TTOZ SA €102 NVd NV1d NV
aduey) aderuariad €102 2102 1102

soueuauiepy Jolepy Jo uonenasdaqg Suipnpaul Jou 3wodu} I3N

asuadxg |elol

aouernsuj

SIIIAISS IPISINO

s33IAaS Julnsuo)
SUCIIEIUNWIWO)

a9e1504 pue 3unuid
suua4 'suondudsqng ‘sang
uoeanpl

44N

suojun

aouesnsu| dnoig

saxe} JuawAojdwaun

saxe] |joJAed

saliejesg

JBMIG/IDIRM - SATHIN
JUPB - s3AUIN

seo |ednmeN -S3HiN
safjddng

saJtAIas [eLOMUel

|eAoway dlsep/38eqien
s}RILO) Ul /sased] dinbg
JIDURUIUIRIN 10} dSINQqUIIRDY
asuadxg duBUUIBIN

anuaAay [ex0l
INUIAY IDUBUBUIRIA /ASEIT/IUSY pjalyly UON
Suimo] ‘saag 3aiaiag ‘saaq uoikI3||od

sjequay Jaduey

0449
£2S9
S¢s9
06t9
0s€9
obe9
SEE9
0919
0ET19
0Z19
ST19
0T19
0019
0ELS
0cLS
4]949
oevs
91PS
ST¥S
otvs
90¢S
S0¢S

174
o6l€E
o8te

sasuadxy pue sanuaAay JO JUSLWALLS
ssueuadjuiey Suipjing - 00EY wdwuedaq

38



%TS (sbe'rrr)  $ (1s8'aze)  $ (wLeser) S
%LT- (sozvee) ¢ (see'soy) S (ge9’s8E) $
%T6T (s¢8's) $ (00S'T) $ (¥98'T) S
%zT (€6£°T) ¢ (009'T) $ {z697) $
%ZT {o00°86) ¢ (zg'ts) ¢ (ess) $
%E (06€‘ET) $ (000°€T) $ (920°91) $
%vz- {o00‘Z6) ¢ (coz'ozr) ¢ (9eg’ozr)  $
%S~ {oo0'z2) $ (o1e'62) $ (885'87) $
%TT (oos‘TT) $ (00s'6) $ (0s0°0T) S
%6t~ (og8'te) s (0o00'sy) $ (py1'sh) S
%LT- (tes‘T) $ (009'T) $ (wvz't) S
%19- (986°LT) $ (coo0‘at) ¢$ (o189T) $
%I (ooo'sy) ¢ (oog’zy)  § (£9g°0S) $
%LT 96'ZZz $ vES'SLT S v9s'EOT S
%LT 09672 2§ VES'SIT S ¥98'E0T S
TTOZ SA €102 NV1d NV1d WNLV
aduey) adejuadnsad €102 4174 1102

auBUSIUIEN JOfEW JO uoREBIdag Supnjau; J0U W] 33N

Jsuadxy [e10L
$3D|AIDS IPISINO
SuolEUNWWOY)

xe] Apadoid

Jamas/iazem - satIN
3UPBY - sAYAN

Seo) |einieN -S3IN

saljddns

$2IIAIRS |erIONUe[

|eAOWRY J3SEM/28eqIRD
S1PRIUO) “JuUiRiN/ /535897 dinb3j
asuadxg asuruuie

anusAay [B30L
3NUIAIY IIUBUIUIRIA/3SET]/IUdY P31y UON

Les9
06&8
0079
0€LS
ocLs
OTLS
1013 4]
9TvS
SIvs
0TvS
S0c7s

66ct

SasuadX3 pue SINUIAIY JO JUIWIJRLS
3ujpjing Ja3u3) Y314 - 00V JuBWLedaQ

39



9%9- (6re'ssy) ¢ (es6‘t9p)  $ (8er'z6E)  $ sasuadh [e10L
%0T (908ew) $ (vze'ee) $ (€18°82) S 3oueansu|
%91- (000°S) $ (s96's) $ (s99T) $ SuOlIedUNLIWO)
%00T (0sT) $ (s2) s - S a9eyso4 pue Suuud
%00T- - $ (e8) $ (vst) $ uoneanpy
%TT (zo¥'pT) $ (6z6'CT) $ (6tT'9T) S BRI
%0V {oo¥'T) s (000'1) ¢ (L48) $ suwopun
%e- (5c1°8T) $ (552'82) $ (99252} $ aouesnsuj dnotn
%02 (€957) $ (ov1'?) $ (ob1?) $ saxe} JuawAhojdwaun
%0 (595°TT) $ (to9‘t1) $ (z80'eT) $ soxe] jjoshed
%0 z1ist) ¢ (659'Tst)  § (eve'svr)  $ SoLIE|ES
%E (6€€'T) $ (00€T) $ (szeT) $ I3M35/I1EM - SN
%SeT- (000'€T) $ (es€'LT) $ (Lpo'sT) $ Ju18|3 - SN
%05- (0008) $ (e¥6°sT) s (8z6'ZT) S seg [eimieN -saaN
%0Y (00L) s (o09) $ - S wawdinb3 jjews
%0 (o0s‘s) $ (oos‘s} $ (1P1'g) S say ddng
%ET- (000's8) $ (000°86) $ {ot¥'8s) $ wewdinb3 sajaiyaA 11o/end
%Th- {0002} ¢ (ooo‘et) $ (s61'8T) $  sPEeuo) JuleN/sased] dinb3
%I- (000°£S) ¢ (o0g‘ss) $ (T0T'vt) S asuadx3 asueuajute
Z10Z SA €102 NV1id NV1d TNV
aduey) adejuaasad €102 Zroz TT0Z

0449
06£9
0S€9
SEE9
0919
0t®9
0ct19
ST19
0119
0079
0tELS
0cis
014LS
qEvS
OEvS
oS
otvs
S0Zs

sasuadX3 pue SINUIAIY J0 JUBWANELS

juswdinb3 13 doys - oSy wuswuedaq

40



%T (ssz'got) $ (sse‘zot) $ (816'SOT) $ asuadxg |ejo)
%IT {oov8) s (695°2) $ (e82'9) S ddueinsu|
%0ST (0s2) $ (oot) s - S suopesuNwwo)
%E- {os2'T) s (00871) $ (6££'T) ¢ 38eisod pue Sunuud
%0 (5889) $ (988%9) $ (988) $ saxe] ||osAed
%0 {000°06) $ (000°06) $ (000'06) $ sauejes
%0 (000°T) $ (0007T) $ (zr0'T) S sayddng
TT0T SA €102 NV1d NV1d NV
aduey) adejuadag €T0Z F4 14 1102

0449
06€9
0se9
0t19
0019
(413 4

Sasuady 3 pue SaNUIAY JO 1UIWIIRIS
SIBUOISSIWIWO) - 009V Iuswiedag

41



%LT (voo'ver) ¢ (6z0'991) ¢ (zxv'svr)  §
%0T (0g8) $ (oos) s (019} S
%0 (o001} $ (000'T) $ {¥9s) S
%0 (085"€T) $ (085°€T) $ (tze't) S
%0T (0sz‘2) $ (oo0se) $ (6TL'E) S
%0 (0g) $ (og) s () S
%0 {0s9's) S (0s9's) $ {svs'?) S
%0 {00S'9T) $ (00s'9T) $ (9¥9) $
%Y (z18°66) $ (oog'vs) $ (zet9s) S
%9T (zo0'v) $ (ott'e) $ (s€9'€) S
%02 {182'1) $ (0207) $ (0z0'T) S
%T (sz1'€) $ (280°€) $ (sor'e) S
%t (966°TY) $ (96Z'0v) s (6T9'8€) S
%S (000') $ (528'€) s (615'€) $
ZT0Z SA €102 NVid NVd wnov
aduey) ddejuaiad £T0Z oz 1102

asuadg |e101

aJuelnsu|

asemyos pue Jjazndwo)
adejsoqg pue Junuid

s)ULI3d ‘suopduasqns ‘sang
uolieanpy

ELL:IS]

SUuO[18|9Y Jawo3sn)/ALUnLUWoD
Suisiuaapy/Bunanien

JUWI

saxe} JusawAojdwaun
saxe] [jolAed
sale|es

saiddns

0L£9
95¢€9
0se9
ove9
SEE9
pee9
02e9
00€9
0919
ST19
0119
0019
0EVS

sasuadxg pue $2NuUAN3Y JO JUILLIDIEIS
Sunavsepy /iuawdojaaaq ssauisng - 00LV uswpedaqg

42



%2 (0sg'zze) ¢ (eer's9z) § (vsz'ssz)  §
%6t (002't) s (Lg€?) $ (94£7) S
%L {000'9%) $ (€06°Z) s (zse'st) 3
%CT- {osz'T) $ {009T) $ (18€'1) $
%09 {o8) $ (0s) $ (g2) $
%02 (ozT) $ (oo1) $ (ozy) S
%TE {sTE'eT) $ (zee'en) $ (692'st) $
%Y (s€L'8t) $ (ovL'sv) $ (18¢e'ey) $
%02 (tv8'e) s (11Z°e) s (o12’) $
%0zZ (zos'pr) ¢ (soz'zm) ¢ (gesZm)
%€ (b18'zer) S (65L'6ET) & (Sev'eer) S
%IT- (008) s (006) $ (606) S
ZT0Z SA ET0T NVd NV1d NIV
afuey) a3eju013d €102 102 102

sasuadx] |e301
ajueinsuj

sadiAJas SpISIND
93e1504 pue Bunuid
uoneanpy

[ET:H

JHINI

asueinsu] dnoto
saxe] JuawAojdwsaun
saxe] [jojAed
sajejes

sal|ddng

0LLS
4259
0S€9
SEE9
01531
0919
o9
STI19
0t19
0019
Oetrs

sasuadxz pue sariuaAay jo WIS

Suiunolay - o8y Juswpedag

43



CHICAGOL ANDS

DUPAGE FLIGHT CENTER 9‘

44



%IT 69E 09T S BIYIPD'L $ EOT9EST $
%I {p6'z6a'0t) § (zse'ossor) ¢ (BEVSLE'OT) S
%0T {ooo’stT) $ {oo0’s01) $ (e61°66) s
%88~ {o02'T) ¢ (oooot) $ (s60°t) S
(00s°€) 5 - $ (5Z1'e) $
%001~ = 3 (oo0's) 5 (s60'€) $
%bT- (oot't) $ (ewe'v) s (91'y) S
%OE- (c00's) $ {oo0’0T) $ (oze's) $
%9 {000'0€E] 4 (00z'82) s {v60'82) s
%02- (oo} $ (oo00t) $ (€19) $
%£9- (ses) ¢ (o0s?) $ (g9g) s
%bS (o0L"9) s (oseE'y) $ (g89'E) s
%bS (000'sE) $ (008'22) ¢ (ses'ttl $
%9t (zs0's8) $ (ger'si) $ (cze'6L) $
%L (zg9'6) $ (0008} S (8.L'%) S
%0T (ooo's¥z) $ (vzo'eze) ¢ (810"002) $
%0z {o16'92) $ (eev'ea) ¢ (ssz'ze) s
%9 (z89'0L) $ (zrs'es) $ (T1£'s9) $
%9 (av6'cz6) $ (stt'698) $ (gza'ees) s
%LE- {00gz) $ (zs9'e) $ (esv'e) $
%001~ = $ {oos) ¢ (svil $
%1 {oo0'zet) $ (es5'0zT) $ (66L'6TT) S
%0 (00E"Y) $ (oog'v) $ (sos'v) S
%0 (tz0eT) s (000'82) $ (669°47) $
%0 {oog'£2) $ (o0g'22) s (60£'s2) $
%b- {osT9g) $ (c£0'06) $ (ss¥'ze) S
%0 {ooo'sy) $ (ooo'sy) $ (ooo'sy) S
%0 {o00°297) $ (oo0'£9T1) $ (gzT'oLT) S
%62~ (oo0'se) $ (o00's€) $ (TeL'LT) g
%0 {eovpess) ¢ (960®es'e) ¢ (gsr'svs’E)  §
%Z OTE'LST'ZT S 0L2'teo’TT  $ THITIEIT §
%007- . % 00ST $ I8 S
%I- 0068 $ 0006 $ ser'6 3
%ZT 000°9€ $ OOC'zE $ 999'7¢ S
%I §TH9S $ 000'¢8 § 9¥Tss S
%00T- 3 ¢ (000°sE) $ {(98p'v) $
%T S86'086'TT ¢ O0L0'BILTT  $ TSE'9TITT  $
%8 000°L2Z $ 000'se $ 918’6z $
%9 000°8+T $  000°0FT $ [9L'T0C S
CTAZ SAETO0C NVid NYld NV
a3uey) afejuadiag €707 0T TI0Z

aduruajuiey Jofew 10 uoneidag Suipnjpul I0U AWOIU| 1aN

Isuadxy [ejo)

3JUBINSU|

SIDIAIAS IPISINg

S3TYAIS SURYNSUOD
sadiey) jueg
suonesIUNWWe)

Jremyos pue jandwio)
23e7504d pue Bunuig
SpuLIdg ‘suoiduIsgns ‘sINg
uonenp3

{3nel]

SuisiuRApy /Bulayiew
JHIAI

suofun

aoueinsu| dnoso

saxe] Juawhojdwaun

saxe] ||csAed

saleles

233 - sAIN
punosSyreg/3unss) nia/1od
wawdinby [EudY

sayddns

uawdinb3 s3pIYsA [10/19nd4
asuadxg dueuu BN
$90J - pood

Isuadxg jusy

3suadxy pied upald

SpO0D JO 1503 =

53|26 JO 150) IO pUE [3nd

SnuUaAldy jeoL
BWOdU| 1S3183U|

JMUIAIY IUBUIUIEIA/a5EST/1URY P[SIHIY UON
Juuaie) yenuly

1310 - DIIAIIS 3ur]

918qay Awn|oA

S3{es |0 pue |ang

$39) JYBILI3AQ °g SUMOQ 31} “‘dwey

s[ejuay 1a5ueH

0LL8
£259
5759
0EVS
069
95€9
0SE9
oved
SEE9
DEEI
00€9
0379

oz
ST19
o119
0019
0zZLs

9ErS
Otrs
otbs
S0ZS
STEY
SOeY
00EY
8744 4
oocy

0.6t
66CE
STZE
otze
T0ZE
o.174
T61E
081E

sasuadig pue saNUSAIY O JUIWIIS
suonesadg Ja3ua) WB14 - 00T udWpedag

45



Prcinic 4
* Landing

S

46



%48 zZIe's 0r0'SZ {sse'ssz)  leor'iob)  (pZL'0T) 156°s¥l
%9 989982 #¥1'969'2 870'gce'z  Sez'gzl'z  L16'$S9'z  L¥B'LZ6T
%z €65'0SL RN $60'9ZL G6L'2G. 00518l LGh'18
%E Lov'1s8 6.1'068 ziv'ece Z¥e'9e8 syl'ivl Lsg'ess
%004 yIZ'se
%001 evao'se
%li- 28€' 21y 100'28% g10'68¢€ goe'ser  Liv'ier €96'66%
%eE- 8ev'3L p69'S1L 662'G6 zeg'ee) egl'sel 069'tSt
%95 $aE'LSE cv.'vee 1Si'vZe s¥L'0LE €6l'6lz vZECTIC
%L 66L'ZrE 65.'028 v65°02¢ £68'€9¢ 1Z6'66¢€ £95°E8€
S 950'2.8'C  ¥BLYZLZ 019'786'Z _ L6L'429'Z  J8L'VYO'T  86LLS0E
%9L- SIE'E oL’y SBZ'Y gig's 0£8'LL 181'6
%00} 9ze'shl
%00} sie'1ol
%le- Zvs'62s 0££'699 K- ¥4 4 v8'ver veZ'18v £92'¥c9
%ZE" BEb'8L £68'5k 206'.S Zil'se €91'18 1v6'86
%E 000'09¢ sy2'L82 19E'ere gul'ese  cel'lle zog'6le
%L 000'969'L 90Z'c89'tL 165'509'} ¥¥Z'182'L  BLLZEL'L  SYE'WI0E
ZLOZ SAEL0Z uejd ueid L0z ooz 6002 002
ebumyp ebejuaaied €102 Z1oz IYL1OL IV10L 1viol TvioL
lanvy lany Lanv liany

SWODNI 13N

S3SN3IdHE TYI0L
BoueUajuley
uofensuipy
sBugno

SJUSA] SjeAlld
sbuippap

SMEH AN
obeleAsyg ¢ poo4
suogesado Jloo

SINNIAIY TV1OL
uwpy - oS
sbuno

SJUaA3 ejeAlld
sEuippap

sme Al
abeloAsg '3 pood
suoyieiedo 410D

SISNIdX3 ANY SINNIAIY 40 INIWILVIS
qn|) j|09 BulpueT auield

ISNIIXT

SNNIAIY

47



%E (980'8v8) ¢ {691'9Z8) ¢ (£11'828) $ aaueuzguie JofelA Jo uonenaidag upnpu| Jou swedu| 39N

%E (19t'158) ¢ (ezr'oes)  § (zrv'zes) $ asuadxy (304
%9 00000Zy) S (95€1spy) § (00'8ss‘zy) S @aueInsu| 0249
%6C- (00°000's) ¢ (oooo0'z)  $ {oo'v9s’e)  $ a1emyjos pue Ja3ndwod 9£59
%0S (00°000°€) $ (00000'27)  § (00°SL6) $ [eSa7 SES9
%T- (oo'szs'or) ¢ (oo'sac'er) ¢ (oo'ses’zt)  § $92IAIBS IPISIND 7259
%00T- = ¢ (ooo00't) § (009TL'%) S safey) yueg 0E¥9
%0 (o0o0e’tt) ¢ (ooooe'yT)  § (00'09T'vT)  $ SUONEIUNWWIO) 06€9
%ze- (00°00t'7) ¢ (oo'seo'e)  $ (006167 S ade3jsod pue Junuiid 0555
%Z- {o000L'6) ¢ (oo'seg’s) ¢ (oo'ees’s) S s)uLIad ‘suonduasqns ‘sang OvES
%Ly {o000€) $ (0s7£5) s (00°€8) S uongeanp3 SEE9g
%0b- {00°00€) s (o000S) $ (00'8€9) $ suoije|3y Jawolsn)/AyuUnLILIC) 0zg9
%z (oooo0'ss)  § (oorszr'es) § (00'8Ev'SS) § BuispeApy/BUnayIeiN 00€9
%2 (00'000'9S7) ¢ (00°000°057) § (00'TTS9ET) $ xe] Ausdosg 0079
(ooegt2zT) $ - 5 - $ JuUNI 0913
{00°090°£€) ¢ - s - S aJueInsu| yijeay a3kojdwy 4 1]
%L06 (00°2S€") $ {0s°628) s (00g98) $ saxe} JuawAojduaun ST19
%bEST (00809"%1) $ (vp'ssL) s (00'622) $ saxej ||oJAed 0119
%LT- loo0s6'06T)  § (00'5£8°297) $ (0U'6008L2) $ saliejes 00T9
%001~ - $ (00°052) s (ooT9t'e) S asuadx3 snoaue||SIsIN 6665
%9T- (00'0St'9) $ looosg’) ¢ (oos9z's) S 13M3s/IS1eM - SAIUIDN 0£LS
%T- (oo0s9'0Y) $ (oooov'ty) S (o0est'e) U3 - 53 0z5
%0¢- {00'sze's) ¢ (00'szo'tt) ¢ loovve's) $ 5B [RINIEN -SAIIN 0TLS
%€~ (00°009'T) $ (000s9'T) $ (00°8LS'T) S 28 uaLl] ‘Bmoy - |EJUaYy LEVS
%L- (00°005°2) $ (oo'0s0’s) ¢ (ooOTT'Z)  § sajjddns 0EwS
%0 {00°000°2) ¢ {00000%7) S (005989} SIS [RLIONUET 9T¥S
%8- (00002°2) $ (oooov'z) $ (oosOL'T) S [enoway aisem/adeqen STYS
%E loc'coo'sE) ¢ (00000'vE)  $ (00'ZPEDY) S asuadx3 3jueuajuieiy 5025
%bT {00°005°9) $ (o000L's) $ (007282) $ 'sdwo) - ;awolsn) BunAno ‘ussy 0ovY
%It (oorooszs) ¢ (ooooz'ov)  $ (00°606°0S)  $ asuadig pued) Jipas) 00SY

%91~ SLE'S S 010 $ S6Z'v S anuaAly B0
%0T- SLE'E S SSL'E S L0 S Swiodu] 5N 066€
%00T- - § g5¢ LY Y4 S WO 153IR1U| OL6E

ZI02 A €107 NY1d NY1d LY
asuey) a8ejuariad £T0Z [41174 1102

sasuadx3 pue sanuIAaY JO JUSWaALE]S
UOREJISIUIWPY J|0D - 00Td uawiedaqg

48



49

%z (£65°05L) $ (89s5'28L) $ (v60'9zc) $ asuadxg jejoL
%1 (00°Lp1's) $ (8L560'S) $ (00's68's) S asueinsuj 0£Z9
%TT- {00"00¥'T) ¢ {00008T) $ (00'896°T) S S3DIAI9S SPISINQ LTSI
%ET- (0000€2) ¢ (00000'€) $ (009€0'7) S Sunsuo) 759
%yl (oo'sLS'Y) $ (007000'Y) ¢ {00221’V $ SUOIIEIIUNWILG) OEEY
%IT (00°000'T) ¢ (00°006) $ (00°568) S sHwJad ‘suonduasqns ‘sang OVE9
(00°000°T) s - $ (00°€52) S uoi1eanp3 GEE9
%SS {oo"002°Z€) ¢ (52/8L2°02) $ (00'095L€) $ 44INI 09T9
%00ET {00°008°2) $ {(00002) ¢ (00°'T55°2) S suuiopun QET9
%E {0005£°52) $ (06'9L5%2) ¢ (00°2bL'9T) S aueJnsu| yyeay dasojdwsl 0ZT9
%2l {oo'80€'v¢) $ (s6z8L'1T) ¢ (00'ZER'LT) S saxe} JuawAojdwaun STI9
%E- (00°€T8'CE) $ (66'268'€€) $ (00'969°TE) S saxe] ||oJAed OTT9
%E- {o0°sZ6"82Y) ¢ {coTTr'Ery) S (00°LOE'STY) ] suejes 0019
%9T- l00'sLL'D) $ (00°0DE'E) $ {00'T28?) S JIMas/Ia1eM-SAIUNIN 0ELS
9%5- (00°szS'2T) ¢ (00STY'ET) s (00zos'oT) S 311933 - SN 0Z£S
%Iz- {00'5£5'T) $ {o0"09z'e) s (00'v09°7) S seo JesnjeN - SAUIN OTLS
%ER {00°005'S) $ (00'000€) $ (0006£°T) S juawdinby [e3UaY SES
%0 {00000'58) $ (o0'000's8)  $ (00°EZT'S8) $ S9pIONSad/IazIIHAS YEYS
%SLT {00°000'€) s (00'008) $ (00°0€5'7) S sa)|ddng adeaspue Zevs
%6T {00°000°S) $ (00°002°t) $ (00°€00Y) $ sa|ddns QogtS
%6E (00°000's2) $ (00°000°8T) $ (00TZs'va) S no/iend ozes
%EE- {00°00¢) s (o0"0St) $ (00°202) S SIS {BLIOJIUES QTS
%€ {00°00T'7) $ (00°0¥0°2) $ (00'556°T) 5 [eAOWRY S15EM/352QIED) STHS
%I- {00"000'St) $ (o00SZ'sy) $ (00'T20°6E) S a5u3dxg JVUBUSIUEN SOZS

Z10Z A €102 NV1d NY1d NV
afuey) adejuariad €102 10T TI02

mUmCUaxm pue SsSNUIADY JO JUSWIIELS
33uBUDIUIBIAl JOD - 00Zd udwedaq



9%1- TOZ'ESE'T $ opp'Z9E'T  $ E00'SETT $  @sueudjuie Jofew 1o uopepasdad Suipnpul Jou awodul I8N
%L (66L2vE) $ (esL0z€) $ (ves‘oLE) $ asuadxj |10l
%L (00°€08°T) $ (008897) $ (00'€sy'T) $ 3oueInsu| 0LL9
%0 {00"008‘t) $ {00°008'%) $ (00'098%) 5 $321AIG BPISING £759
x $ - S (0o0"€80°¢) S sywiad ‘suondiiosqns ‘ssnd obE9
%00T- - $ los'£8) $ (oo'sv) S uoneanp3 GEES
%ZE- (00:00L°2) ¢ (66057TT) S (00'Z93°€T) S JHI 0919
%0 (00'005'T) 4 (00°005°T) $ (00'SEV'T) S swuojun OET9
%9E (oooov'ez) ¢ (vzsov'eT) ¢ (00'9808T) S aouelnsu| yljeaH ashoidwy octg
%22 (ooezeor) § {ET69Y'8) $ {(00°€26'6) S soxe} Juawoduizun ST19
%0T- ooerTier) ¢ (Lvies'er) S (oos0E’ST) S saxe] joJAed 0TT9
%z- {oootz'vvt) ¢ (0o'essovt) $ (0U'STIELT) S sajiejes 0019
%lY (ocroooat)  § loooos’0T) S (oo'seg’tt) S soyddng 0EYS
%0 (oo'00szT) ¢ (0oc0oszr) ¢ (0ovSELT) S asuadx3 adueualue 5075
%L1 (00'00¥'soT)  $ (66'90/8'68)  $ (00TYT'66) S 90D-3sipueydiaiy 11337
%Y 000'969'T ¢ 902‘e89'T  § £65'S09'T $ aNuUBAIY |EI01
%0T 000'SST $ POEOVT $ eLz'svt S asIpuUeLPIIN 40D 08cE
%zTT 000°0ST s osLTer $ SIS'ElT S 191U el 0Ses
%95- 000t S 0006 $ 0eL's S AuRpEdY JI0D oves
%02 0002 $ gz8's $ 6£99 S sjeluay qnp OEEE
%CE 000'EST $ 000°9TT ¢ 18Z'sTT $ sdiysIagqIIBIA 31R1I0SSY ozss
%E 000°LL2 $ 955'892 $ TIe6TL S sjejuay 148D J09 OTEE
%L~ 000°056 $ 100t $ T/'ES6 S saa4 suUaaly 0OEE
ZT0Z A €102 NV1d NV1d TYNLIY
afuey) adejuanizd €102 (A {1 91174

sasuadxy pue sanuaAay Jo 1uswalels
suopjesado 40D - 00Ed Iuswiiedag

50



51

%BEY- (bSE‘TH) $ E00°LZ ¢ otZ'el s asueuajuie|y Jofewy Jo uoyepasdag Suipnpu] 10U 3wiodU] 312N

%95 (¥5E TSE) ¢ (evevze)  $ ist'ved) S asuadxg [e10L

%Y cozeor) & (05g9'e)  § (00'958°€) s JaueInsy| 0249
(00°00S) $ ¢ (00'8zT) S uonesnp3 SEE9

%yl (oo'ses've) ¢ (OT'E0ETT) S (00"025'02) S 4N 0979

%0 (00000'7) ¢ (000007) § {00°EY9'T) $ suLiopun 0519

%T (ooszz'ov)  § (pzseeze) ¢ (00°€09°0€) S asuelnsu| yyeay aakojdwy 019

%9E (oocop'zr) ¢ (8s960'6) S (00°0618) $ saxe] Juswholdwaun STT9

%IV (ootzo'er) ¢ (eruav'tr) $ (00€T0ET) $ saxe] jjoIAed oT19

%1T (oo'szr'avt) ¢ (oooszTer) $ (00°0¥0'TZT) $ sayejes 0019

%002 (00'000'9) ¢ (00'0007) $ (00WEZ'D) S juawdinbyl jews SEVS

%SE (00'000'sT) ¢ (000OT'TT) § (00°ZTSYI) $ sa|iddng OEYS

%0 (ocrooo’ot) ¢ (00'000'0T) $ (00°TTH6) $ asuadx3 sJueuadiuley 174
(oo'see’sy) S - $ - $ 90J-93eiaA3y ocey
(oo'sot'sy) S§ - $ - $ 502-pood SIEY

%E 000092 $ SyL'1ISe $ TOE'EVT S anuaAay |E301

%S 0007LT $ 8E6'YIT S TL8YIT S sajes 25rJanag 019¢

%1- 000’98 S L0898 S 06v'8L S s9|eg poo4 009€

ZT0Z A €102 Nv1d NVId WALV
aduey) afejuadsad €102 (4714 TI02

sasuadxj pue SanuaAdy JO IUBLIAIELS
aSeianag '3 poo4 - 00d Iuawnedaq



%St~ soz'eIt $ 6zZE'202 ¢ Z6v'Z8 $
%YT- zse'cww) ¢ (oozev)  § (810°6BE) $
%YTT (o0zooy) § (svessT) § (00'6€L2) S
%0 (ooroo0'T) ¢ (00000'T)  § (00°v0S) S
%.L6 (00'zot’'st) ¢ (8eT89’z) ¢ (o0'€sL's) $
%97 (00'ss6'61)  § (ozzsL'st) $ (00°S09%T) S
%ZE (00°s2T'68T) ¢ (000TS'sbT) ¢ (00'666°EET) S
%0 (ooco0'se) ¢ (00'000'€7) $ (00'¥6T'0T) S
%v6T {oo'oo0’0z)  $ (000089)  $ (00°Z8E™) S
%9¢ (oo000'sT) ¢ (007000'TT)  $ {00°ELT'S) $
%6t (00'9es'sy) S (czsvi'es) $ (00°0T8'6L) $
%61~ (00°29s'v8) ¢ (SE's£9'99T) ¢ (00'622'9TT) $
%YT- rs'6TS $ 0£€699 $ OIS'TLV S
%0T ov0'eL $ 0€£'99 $ TES'SE S
%ve- 20595t $ 000€09 S 6/9°CeY S
ZT0Z A £T0Z NVid NV1d wnY
aduey) adejuadiad £10Z ratir4 TT0?

aoueuajurel Jofely Jo uojiepaldaq Sujpnjoul 30U 3WOdU| I3N

asuadxy @101
dURINSU|
swiopun

saxe] wawho|dwaun
saxe] ||oJAed
salees
suaur]-eway
awdinb3 [euay
saqddns
90D-23e1anag
90J-pooy

anuaAly [eyol
awoay| [eluay 1anbueg
sajes pooJ-3uippam

sasuadxg pue saNUIAAY JO JUIWIEILS

s3uippaM - 005d uswyedaq

0LL9
0€T9
ST19
ot
0019
LEVS
9evS
1347
(1743 4
ST

079t
009¢

52



LZL'1eT S = S - $ asueudjuiep Jofey J0 uonen3sdag Juipnjoul Jou wodu| 13N
(8v9°6E) 5 = B = $ asuadxy [e3ol
(00'2L8€T) § - s - S H0J-28eIaA3g ozEY
(ooteL'sty) $ - s - S 90J-pao4 STEY
SLET9T  $§ - $§ - $ anuaAay [e101
682'TT § = s - S aWwodu| {eIudy 19nbueg 029¢
OTT'6ET ¢ . ¢ 2 $ $a|eS pO04-JUdAT 31BALY 009€
Nvd NV1id IVNLY
€10¢ Z10¢ T10¢

SISUAAXT PUE SINUIAIY JO JUBWDIRIS
SJU3AT 3jeAlld - 009d uawpedaq

53



_ZITBOT S

dprefee) S

(o0'sze'ZT) S
(00°688'22) S

“REEPT S

<
S,
$
$

0LL°6T S
9GS€ZT ¢

.

U}U‘I-rhn

Nvid
€10T

NVid
(4114

wvnLv

asueu3ajuleN Jolell Jo uoneaaudag Suipnau| 10U 3WodU| 19N

asuadyx3 [ejoL
D0J-28e13A3g ozZEY
50)J-poo4 SIEY

INUIAIY [R10L
swaly] |ejusy wusucmm 0¢9¢
s3[es poo4-8uinQ 009€

sasuadx3 pue sanuaAly JO JuBWS]eLS
sSunp - 004d usWUedaIq

55



%00T- E: $ (0) ¢ (zsg'LE) $ asueuajuiei Jolepy Jo uonepaidaa Suipnpu] jou dwodu| 19N

%2E- (gev'ss)  $ (wes'stt)  $ (652°S6) S asuadx3 8301
%0L- 00veeT) § (e66.17) ¢ (00sst?)  § ajue.nsu| 0449
%tr- (0o'szs) ¢ loooos)  $ (ooross) $ suonduasqns g sang oves
%00T- - ¢ (ogoor)  $ (00'TL) $ uonelnpl SEE9
%00T- - ¢ (ooovd) S - $ adeajiN/|aARIL 0€€9
%S (oo'szs) ¢ (oooos)  § - $ SuisiusApy/BunayeiN 00€9
%TE- (oozes's) ¢ (ozTsow) ¢ (00°LIEE) S 4N 0919
%EE (oooos) ¢ {oosze)  § (00'z8¢) $ suopun 0S19
%9€- (000886l $ (9zsy'sT) § (00°88EY) S @oueInsu| yyeaH aahojdw oz19
%61~ (0000s'T) § (£oToR'T) § (00789  $ sexe1 wiawAodwaun ST19
%9E- (00zse?) ¢ (ooosg'e) $ (009LTE) S saxe_ JjoiAed ot19
9%SE- (oo008'62) $ (00'000'9%) $ (00'STOLE) S saLe(es 0019
s $ . $ (002) ¢ asuadx3g snoaue|RIsIN 6665
%S {(coooz’¥) ¢ (ooooo't) ¢ (00TS0W) S SL1I3[F-sAU[IN oTLs
9%00T- 2 $ (oo000T) S (ooev0'T)  $ wawdinb3 jews SEYS
%EY- (oooog’s) ¢ (ooose’s)  $ looTezr) % saliddns (11374
%L {ooogs) $ (oooos) ¢ (00°TSE) S jesodsiq a1sem SIPS
%0Z- (oo0007) $ (0000sT) § {ooTTvT) S asuadx3 dueuajutey S07S
%L1~ (oo'sze't)  $ (szoog'r) ¢ (ooszov) $ 90)-38eianag (\[43
%be- (00°000'sT) $ (sz9gs'Te) ¢ (00'0€T9T) S 950)-pood SIEY
%0€- (oo'szr’t) ¢ (00009'T)  $ (00'659'T) S asuadxg pJed upas) 00St

9%ZE- SEV'SL ¢ £68'STT S L06'LS $ anuaAay [e10L
%I~ 8ET'SE S 7€8'6S g e S WSLIASINQIY SSOT YMEH ALy 0089
%00T- - S Iib R A T4 S awoau] [eudy Sulaie) 0z9s
%L 00S°S $ sz's $ L1279 S sajes adelanag 019¢
%ET- 000°0€ S 001'6E S 0/8°0v $ sajes poo4 009€
%EE- 00L'L S STt $ £05°0T S Suuale) STZE

ZI0Z A €102 NVid NVd VNIV
afuey) 23ejuddiad €102 Z10¢ TTOZ

sasuadx3 pue S3NUAAIY JO Juawalels
3jed meH AN - 006d wuawnedag

56



57

%6 069°0SZ $ CEE'6LT $ ZOL10T $ aoueuasuiel Jofep Jo uoneaidag uipnjaul Jou 3wody) 9N
%ZT (ess‘evs)  § (vbr'169)  $ (69T'€T9) $ suadiy |01
%6Y cove0s) ¢ (ee'szy’s) ¢ (00°565'9) $ asuelnsy| 0LL9
(0000S) $ - $ (00'8ZT) ) ucneINp3 GEE9
%t (oo'sesve)  $ (OT'E0ETT) $ {00"025°02) $ 24N 0919
%0 {o0000e) ¢ (ooooo'e)  $ (00°L¥TT) $ swuoyun O£T9
%Pz (coszz'or)  $ (vesee'ze) § (00'£09°0E) S soueunsu| yijesH aaAajdw3 0z19
%b9 (00's05'22) $ (962zL9T) $ (00°€L6'9T) S saxe] JwawAodwaun STT19
%CE (oo'sz0'eg)  $ (e9voz'er) ¢ (00°819'92) $ saxe] {{oJAed 0T19
%LT (00-00s'ses) ¢ (00°02£'v97) $ (00°6€0°SST) S saliejeg 0019
%0 (00'000’sz) ¢ (00000°€T) $ (00¥6T0T) S suaurn-feluay LEVS
%61 (oo000’0z) ¢ (00008'9)  § (00Z8ED) 3 juswdinby jeuay 9EYS
%002 (00'000’s) S (00000'7) & (00tET'T) S wawdinb] jlews SEVS
%9€E (co'oo0’0g) ¢ (00'00T'ZZ) $ (00°S89'6T) S saiddns 05vS
%0 (oo'oo0'0T)  $ (00'0000T) $ (00°ZTH6) S asuadxg 2UBUSIE S07S
%6 {oo'sc9'z6) ¢ (tzsve'e8) $ (000T8'6L) S 502-35eIaA3g ozEY
%6 (00°zes'T8T) ¢ (S€'5£9'99T) ¢ (00°62L°9TT) S DOD-poo4 STSEY
%6T EYZ'Y60'T $ SLO'TZ6 $ TL8VIL $ anuaaay (2101
%EL 690'STT $ 0g£g'99 S T1£88¢ S aWodu| jeluay Janbueg 0Z9¢€
%S 000'PLT S 8E6't9T $ TL8Y9T S s3|es adesanag (1) 8:1
%L1 vL1'S08 $ [08689 $ 69T'TIS S sa|es poo4 009€
ZIOZ A ET0Z NY1d NVid WNLOVY
aduey) 2dejuadiagd €102 41174 1102

sasuadx3 pue SANUIAY JO JUSWIIILLS
pauiqwiod 00Zd N4Y1 00bd Iudwnedad



DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

CHICAGOL ANDS

DUPAGE FLIGHT CENTER

Praitie
Landing

CAPITAL & MAJOR
MAINTENANCE SUMMARY
2013

58



| Capital Summary I
Airpart F1A075,350
DEC $ 1,502,300
PLGC $ 1,195,000
Total $16,873,250
[ Major Malntenance Summary |
Alrport § 614,640
PLGC s 57,700
§ 732,300

|Total Capital plus Maintenance

$17,605,590 I

| Major Malntenance

OAA Bullding  Replace Flight canturlnd and 3ed floor carpet 121,440 Major Maintensaca
DAR Fleld Misc atphalt rehab § 100,000 Major Maintenance
DAA Fleld Misc Pavement Rehab Concrate § 50,000 Major Maintansnce
DAA BuRding  Hangar Roof Repair $ 85,000 Major Maintenance
DAA lding L JUtiltty Dis: § 73,000 Major Maintansnca
DA all Equipment Cantingency $ 50,000 MsjorMaintenance
DAA Buliding  E~20 Mansard repalr/removal § 44,000 Major Meintenance
DAA Buliding  Hangar flaor Refinish $ 40,000 Masjor Maltenance
Goll Buliding  Banquetroom carpet $ 31,000 Major Maintensnce
DAA Bufiding  ATCT Aoof Replacement § 29,000 MajorMaintenance
DAA Bullding  Control Tower HVAC Repalrs $ 17,700 MajorMaintenance
Aol Sufiding  GrM Roam A/C $ 12200 MsjorMantanmea
DAA Buliding  McDonald's hangar sast rooftop unit $ 11,000 MajorMalntenance
DAA Building  Coniral Tower A/C Compresaor Replacement L] 9,500 Major Muintenance
Gl Bullding  PLGC Clubhousa Watar Heatars $ 8,500 Major Meintenance
Goll Building  Ha¥way café cooler daors § $.000 Major Malntensnce

Total Major Malnt @ § 112340
Capital

OAA Flald Widen Runway 2L/208 $ 9,200,000 Capital

DAA Bullding  Constructnew fire station $ 1,675,000 Capial

DFC Bullding  Flight Center Renouations Phase ll $ 1,300,000 Capltai

OAN Bullding  Flight Center Curtin Wall Replacement § 1,000,000 Capkal

DAA Fleld Upgrade Security and wildiife Fence § 577,000 Capkel-ourshare of $1.521M
DAA Buliding  Filght Centar Chiller $ 560,000 Caphal

Gol Flald Bunker Refinement $ 500,000 Capltsl

DAA Fleld flight Canter PCC loint Repalrs 4 150,000 Capkal

Gaolf Field Parking Lot repalr $ 185,000 Capkal

Goll | Ilers $ 140,000 Capital

GaM Equipmant Standhy Gensratar $ 120,000 Capial

DAA All Contingency $ 100,000 Capitsl

DAA Flald Rehahilitate Runway 10/28 § 05,000 Capkal-ourShare of $1.9M
NAA Buitdlng  High efficlency lighting praject $ 891,950 Capital

DfC Equipment Aheraft Tug $ 75,000 Capital

DAA Equipment 45-50 foot diesel arat (ife $ 70,000 Capital

PAA Equipment skid steer loader $  €5,000 CapMal

DAA Fleld Tower Road Stalrs/retaining Wall $ 60,000 Capitsl

Golf Equipment 300 gallan sprayer $  §0,000 Capital

DAA Equipment Twa 1 ton vans $ 56000 Capital

DFC Equipment Alrcraft Ground Powar Unit $ 55,000 Caphal

AN Equipment NewWebiltes far DAS, DFC, PLGC $ 50,000 Caphsl

Gol Equipment Banquet Chaks ¢ 50,000 Capital

0AA Equip k $ 40,000 Caphal

OFC Equipment PassengerVan 4 30,000 Capital

GoM Flald PLGC Entrance Dealgn $ 30,000 capftal

Gal Field Clubhouse Landscaping $ 30,000 Capital

oaA Field Farm THa Oralnage 4 30,000 Capital (axtend useful iife)
DAA tk Securlty Enh t $ 25000 Caphal

oAA Equipment DFC Hollday Décor $ 15,000 Capital

DAA Flald Nosth Perimeter Access kaad $ 25,000 Capltal ourchara of $500K
Drc Equipment Courtesy Vahicle § 24,000 Capltal

G Equipment Chair/Tables for Grill Groam $ 24,000 Capital

Golf BuMding  Ladder Plstforms 4 22,000 Capital

DAA Frald C Aoad vy 10 End $ 20500 Capitel- aurshara of $410K
DFc Equipment Hesvy Outy tow bar and heads $ 18,300 Capital

Golf Equipment Beveragecart $ 18,000 Capiual

DA Fleld Irvigation pump Coatrals 4 15,000 Capital

DAA Fleld WildiHe habitat Modification $ 15,000 Capital

DAA Equipment SQL Server 3 10,000 Capltal

0AA Equipment Exchange Sarver $ 10,000 Capltal

Gol Equipment Foad Stesmer $ 10,000 Capltal

DAA Equi Domaln ller/Flle-Print Server 4 8,000 Capltal

DAA Equipment E-Mafl Archivar Server $ 7,500 Capltal

Golf Equipment PLGE Server $ 6000 Capteal
DAA Equipment IP Carnera Addad to Access Contral Systam 1AA 5 5,000 Capltal

Total Capltal $16,873,250

59



DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

CHICAGOL ANDS

DUPAGE FLIGHT CENTER

Phainie
Panding

CAPITAL PROGRAM
2013



2013 Capital Program

DuPage Airport - Field Projects

Widen Runway 2L/20R $9,200,000
One of the work elements of the Master Plan was to identify and evaluate alternatives for greater cross-
wind capacity. According to analysis performed by the Jacobs team, the most cost effective means is to
increase widen the runway from 100’ to 150°.

Upgrade Security and Wildlife Fence $1,521,000 (our share
of the project Is $77,000 for the fence and $500,000 for the wild iife barrier)

Currently the lllinois Division of Aeranautics is seeking discretionary money to replace the remaining 20
year old 6 foot perimeter fence with 8 foot fence along our south boundary. At the same time the
Airport will be adding a buried wildlife barrier to prevent wildlife from entering the airfield by burrowing
under the fence.

Flight Center Apron PCC Joint Repairs $350,000
The joints between the cancrete panels on the Flight Center Apron are in need of being resealed to
prevent water infiltration through the joints into the sub-base. This will extend the life of the pavement.

Rehabilitate Runway 10-28 $1,900,000 (our share $95,000)
Runway 10-28, our secondary instrument runway, was last rehabilitated in 1998 and is now approaching
the end of its designed life and needs to be rehabilitated to prevent further deterioration. The lllinois
Department of Transportation Division of Aeronautics has agreed with our determination. This project
will mill and replace the asphalt runway surface.

Repair/Replace Tower Road Stairs / Retaining Walls $60,000
Concrete stairs and hand railings located at the entrances to the hangars on West Tower Road have
deteriorated beyond the point of normal maintenance.  This project will extend the original useful life
of these hangar access points.

Farm Tile Drainage Repairs $30,000

The Airport currently rents out about 250 acres of land on the airfield and north of North Avenue. The
existing farm tiles were installed more than 50 years ago and have failed in multiple places. The failed
tiles are causing areas to become too wet to farm so they are turning into wetlands and are a wildlife
attraction.

61



North Perimeter Access Road $500,000 (our share $25,000)
The Airport determined that it is in the best interest of the DAA to separate the movement of service
vehicles, un-licensed fuel trucks and/or slow moving malintenance vehicles from the vehicular traffic on
the Alrports roadway system. This project is the second phase and would complete the interior airport
perimeter roadway system that would aliow airport support vehicles to go from the Flight Center area to
the North ramp area without driving on any public accessible road and/or across runways.

Construct Perimeter Road Runway $410,000 (our share $20,500)
The Airport determined that it is in the best interest of the DAA to separate the movement of service
vehicles, un-licensed fuel trucks and/or slow moving maintenance vehicles from the vehicular traffic on
the Airports roadway system. This project would be the first phase of an interior airport perimeter
roadway system that would allow airport support vehicles to go from the Flight Center area to the North
ramp area without driving on any public accessible road and/or across runways.

Irrigation Pump Controls $15,000
Replacement of Flight Center landscaping irrigation pump and controls. Irrigation pump and controls
have become un-repairable and are beyond life expectancy.

Wildlife Habitat Modification $15,000
Clear overgrowth and/or improve drainage to reduce habitat attractions to wildlife on and adjacent to
the airfield.

DuPage Airport - Building Projects

Fire Station $1,675,000
Project will be to replace existing 40+ year old existing fire station. Location of fire station will be
moved to a more centrally located area of the airport. This location will offer better response time for
emergency equipment to the primary runways.

Flight Center Curtaln Wall Replacement $1,000,000
The Flight Center Building has been experiencing water infiltration through the curtain wall (window
glass) under certain weather conditions. This project will replace the remainder of the curtain wall not
replaced under the 2012 Flight Center renovation project.

Flight Center Chiller $560,000
Replacement of Chiller on the roof of the Flight Center building due to impending “end of life” issues,
These chillers serve as the only source of cooling for the building. Replacement will be of the more
efficient screw-type compressor chiller.

62



High efficiency lighting project $81,950
Remove and replace obsolete fixtures with energy efficient fixtures. This project will replace lights in
the elevators, Hallway, and 2™ and 3" floor lighting of the Flight Center building.

DuPage Airport — Equipment and Other

45'-50’ Dlesel Operated Off-road Aerfal Lift $70,000
Replace 1990 Ge'{\ie Z-30 Electric boom. Unit is aged and marginal for many applications needed at the
airport.

skid Steer Loader with Attachments and Trailer $65,000
Replace 1991 Bobcat loader. Current unit Is too small and does not have the hydraulic system to
operate certain attachments.

Two (2) 1-Ton Cargo Vans with Shelves and Racks $56,000
Replace a 2000 van and a 2002 1 ton van used in the building department,

Website development for DAA, DFC and PLGC $50,000
Discovery, development, design, creation and implementation of new websites for the airport, flight
center and golf course.

50Kw Towable generator $40,000
Replace 1991 USM 30Kw generator that does not offer the voltage selections required for all buildings
and is undersized.

DFC Hollday Décor $25,000
Professional design and purchase of holiday decorations for the DuPage Flight Center

Network Security Enhancement $25,000
Evaluation, consultation and implementation (including software, hardware, and programming) for anti-
virus, malware protection, internet monitoring, PCl compliance, firewall and disaster recovery.

SQL Server $10,000
Server to host SQL programs and additional data storage capability to act as a backup library for files.
Includes hardware and licensing costs.

Exchange Server $10,000
Server to host Exchange email program. Includes hardware and licensing costs. This will replace our
current Exchange server which is reaching the end of its useful life.

63



Domain Controller/File-Print Server $8,000
Domain controller and file server. Includes hardware and licensing costs. This will replace our current
domain controller/File-print server which is reaching the end of its useful life.

Emall Archive Server $7,500
Hardware to act as a mail archive. Includes hardware and licensing costs. The size of mailboxes keep
growing and this standalone server will ease taxing of our mail server.

IP Camera $5,000
Camera to be added to Access Control System at IAA. Price includes hardware, mount, and installation.
Location will be where a current radio and controller operates a man gate.

DuPage Flight Center — Building Projects

Flight Center Renovations Phase I - $1,300,000
The project includes the remaining areas of the 1* floor not renovated in Phase I. These areas include:
the North and South public bathrooms, crew lounge, VIP room, conference room and Café area. These
renovations will include bringing the finish schedule from Phase | into the remainder of the 1" floor and
allows the better utilization of space for airport customers. This project includes required furnishings
and equipment.

DuPage Flight Center — Equipment

Aircraft Tug $75,000
This tug is required to maintain operational capability to move larger aircraft. The tug is all-wheel drive
to allow for the ability to move mid to large aircraft during winter operations.

Aircraft Ground Power Unit $55,000

This unit will replace a 1998 unit that provides power to customer aircraft. The Flight Center operation
requires two of these units. The other unit, purchased in 2005, will be maintained. These diesel units
provide power while the aircraft is an the ground, prior to engine start. The purpose is to assist with
starting and to power systems and air conditioning prior to departure.

Flight Center Passenger Van $30,000
Replacement of a 2004 passenger van utilized for movement of customers and their baggage.

64



Flight Courtesy Vehicle $24,000
Vehicle will be utilized to provide a service to flight center crew members for short trips to the
immediate area for access to food and shopping. A courtesy vehicle is an amenity pravided at no-
charge in our industry. Currently we are reliant upon the rental car companies that service the Flight
Center to provide vehicles for this use.

Heavy Duty Tow bar and Heads $18,300

New heavy duty tow bar and interchangeable heads for large aircraft. This piece of equipment is utilized
for moving transient and based aircraft through the Flight Center operation. This tow bar system will
be used with the new aircraft tug.

Prairie Landing Golf Club — Field

Bunker Refinement $500,000
Bunker and design refinement —year 1. Scope of renovation work ta be determined by RTJ2 architect.
This will be year one of a three year phased bunker renovation project. Potentially includes removal of
some bunkers.

Parking Lot Overlay $185,000
Mill and overlay of both the upper and lower clubhouse parking lots. Needed as both lots have begun
to deteriorate and large cracks have formed.

Entrance Design Work $30,000
Route 38 overpass construction will impact the PLGC entrance. Design work will include both signage
and landscaping.

Clubhouse Landscaping $30,000
Clubhouse is in need of updated landscaping and plantings to provide a better visual experience for
wedding and banquets. Design work and installation of plants and fencing around loading dock area
are included.

Prairie Landing Golf Club — Building

Ladder Platforms $22,000
Fabrication and installation of ladder platforms on both east and west roof access points at clubhouse to
facilitate maintenance of equipment mounted on separate roofs. These platforms will be made from
aluminum and permanently installed. Engineering, fabrication, and installation are included.

65



Prairie Landing Golf Club - Equipment

Irrigation Controllers $140,000
Replacement of our existing Toro Network 8000 irrigation satellite controllers as needed. Toro has
phased out this line of controllers and will no longer support or inventory replacement parts.

Standby Generator $120,000
150kw Standby Generator for Prairie Landing Club House to be used to maintain critical systems in the
event of a prolonged power outage.

300 gallon Dedicated Sprayer $60,000
300 gallon turf sprayer with Sharpshooter and EnvsioPro control options. Currently there are two
dedicated turf sprayers in our fleet which were purchased in 1992 and 2008. The 1992 sprayer is
unreliable, inefficient and not safe to operate without risk of turf injury.

Banquet Chairs $50,000
Our current banquet chairs are 12 years old and in worn shape. This is to purchase 200 chairs, which
will also reduce our need to rent chairs far larger events.

Grill Room Furniture $24,000
Tables and chairs are mismatched and worn. The current chairs are also difficult to move and store
when needed. The new furniture would better match PLGC décor and be easier to move and store.

Beverage Cart $18,000
Purchase of this larger car would enable us to stock more product and increase sales. Existing cart
would be used for outings and busy days rather than utility cart we currently use on such occasions.

Food Steamer $10,000
Our steamer has failed and is unrepairable. Our current and future event calendars require the
replacement of the steamer in order to perform the necessary cooking valume.

PLGC Server $6,000
Domain Controller and File server for Prairie Landing. Pricing includes hardware and licensing. The
server is to replace current domain controller/file server which is past useful life.

66



ﬁ\,«

DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

CHICAGOL ANDS

DUPAGE FLIGHT CENTER

Prainie
Landing

MAJOR MAINTENANCE
2013

66A



2013 Major Maintenance Program

DuPage Airport - Field Projects

Asphalt Pavement Repair $100,000
Remove and replace failing asphalt on roadways and in parking lots in various locations.

Pavement Rehab $90,000
Remove and replace various cracked/failing concrete panels on aprons, sidewalks, and curbs.

DuPage Airport - Building Projects

Replace Flight Center Carpet $121,440
Replace 20 year old carpet in 2™ floor offices and in the 2" and 3" floor hallways.

Hangar Roof Repair $85,000
Repair storm damage to 99 Jet and E-10 Hangars

Building Demolition/Utillty disconnects $73,000
Demolition of “Old Cameron Aircraft” building and stabilization of N-7 Hangar. Disconnections of
utilities from “Old Ross/Cameron Aircraft hangars” and the abandoned NIU site at the business center.

E-20 Mansard Removal $48,000
Structural steel that is supporting the mansard on hangar E20 has rusted beyond economic repair and
must be removed.

Hangar Floor Refinish $40,000
Funding to refurbish up to 10,000 sq. feet of hangar floor coating in existing hangars.

ATCT Roof Replacement $29,000
Control Tower roof is approximately 20 years old and recently experienced recurrent leakage. This

project would re-coat the existing membrane roof with a membrane and sealer.

Control Tower HVAC Repairs $17,700
Cost to replace leaking refrigerant lines serving the FAA base building A/C units.

1955 N. Aviation Avenue Hangar office East rooftop unit $11,000
Replacement of East rooftop unit due to age and failing heat exchanger.

67



Control Tower A/C Compressor Replacement $9,500
Change 2 A/C compressors for the South SAC unit that provides cooling to the Control Tower cab.
One compressor has failed and the other unit could fail due to age.

Prairie Landing Golf Club — Building

Banquet Room Carpet $31,000
Replacement of carpet from the sunroom, through ballroom, into sales office and down the bathroom
hallway. Carpet is showing signs of wear and tear and has many stains.

Prairie Landing Grill room A/C $13,200
End of service life. Needs replacement for reliability and service cost issues. Will be replaced with
more energy efficient and environmentally friendly system.

PLGC Clubhouse Hot water Heater $8,500
Replacement of domestic hot water heater due to age. Similar heater has already been replaced.

Halfway House Cooler Doors $5,000
Cooler doors in halfway house are failing. Parts are no longer available for this model. Doors do not
currently function properly. Will replace sliding doors with hinged doors.

68



DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

TO: DuPage Airport Authority
Board of Comynissioners

FROM: David Bird /
Executive Dir

RE: Proposed Ordinance 2013-261; An Ordinance of the DuPage Airport Authority
Promulgating Regulations Under the Freedom of Information Act.

DATE: January 2, 2013

SUMMARY:

Each year, the Airport Authority is required to repeal the Ordinance that pertains to the availability of public
records and the procedures to be followed for obtaining such public records in compliance with the Freedom
of Information Act. The annual repeal of this Ordinance is necessary to update information regarding
descriptions, procedures, fees, record availability and current listing of Officers and Commissioners; the
information relating to Board Officers/Commissioners will be updated pursuant to approval at the Annual
Board Meeting.

P () MMITT RD N:

January 26, 2012 — Annual Board Meeting. The Board of Commissioners passed Ordinance

2012-248; An Ordinance of the DuPage Airport Authority Promulgating Regulations Under the Freedom
of Information Act.

REVEN R FUNDIN PLICATIONS:
N/A

EHOLD )
N/A

LEGAL REVIEW:
This repeal is a routine annual function for the purposes of updating information.

ATTACHMENTS:
Proposed Ordinance 2013-261; An Ordinance of the DuPage Airport Authority Promulgating Regulations
Under the Freedom of Information Act.

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board can deny, modify or amend this issue.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is the recommendation of the Executive Director that the Board approve Proposed Ordinance
2013-261; An Ordinance of the DuPage Airport Authority Promulgating Regulations Under the Freedom of
Information Act.

69



ORDINANCE 2013 -261

AN ORDINANCE OF THE DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY

PROMULGATING REGULATIONS UNDER THE FREEDOM

OF INFORMATION ACT

RECITALS

A, The DuPage Airport Authority (“DAA™), an Illinois Special District, is a public body
within the meaning of the Freedom of Information Act (“Act”) (5 ILCS 140/1 et seq.)

B. Under Section 3 of the Act, DAA is empowered to promulgate regulations pertaining to
the availability of public records and procedures to be followed for obtaining such public
records.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage
Airport Authority as follows:

SECTION 1. Definitions:

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Executive Director: The person appointed by the DAA to manage and operate
the DuPage Airport including any such person who is appointed acting Director.

Applicant: Any person making application to the DAA for inspection and/or
copying of public records.

Head of the DAA: Within the meaning of Section 2(¢) of the Act, the Chairman
of the Board of Commissioners shall be deemed the “Head of the Public Body.”

DAA Office Hours: From 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. on Monday through Friday of
each week, except on legal holidays.

Freedom of Information Officer(s). Pamela Miller and Diane DeWitte are
hereby designated as the Freedom of Information Officer(s) pursuant to § 3.5 of
the Act.

SECTION 2. Application for Inspection or Copying:

2.1

The Executive Director shall prepare and make available at the DAA office a
suggested form of written application for requests for public documents under the
Act [See Exhibit “A” attached]. Said application form shall require the following
written information regarding each request under the Act:

A. Name, address and telephone number of the applicant.

B. If the application is on behalf of a public body, business organization,

70



P12

23

24

2.5

civic organization or any other organization, the name and address of the
organization and the office or position of the applicant with that
organization.

C. Written description of the public record requested with sufficient

particularity to allow determination of whether such a public record exists .

and to allow location of the public record within a reasonable time.

All applicants for inspection or copying of public records in the possession of the
DAA shall submit a written request containing the information set forth in section
2.1 at the DAA office during working hours.

All inspection of public records so requested shall be done during office hours at
the DAA office, in the presence of DAA personnel. To the extent feasible,

duplicating shall be done by DAA personnel at the DAA office during office
hours.

The fees charged by the DAA for reproduction and certification of public records
shall be set from time to time by the Executive Director. A written schedule of
said fees shall be available to the applicant at the DAA office. Said fees shall not
include costs for the search for documents. Black-and-white, letter-, legal- and
ledger-size copies shall be charged at 15¢ per page. Copies of items reproduced
on electronic media will be charged at the actual cost for each electronic media
device (i.e., CD-Rom, DVD, etc.). If copy services outside the DAA office are
required for large documents, blue prints, color copies or the like, the applicant
shall reimburse the DAA for the actual cost of reproduction charged by the
outside copy service. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the DAA shall not charge
for the first 50 pages of black-and-white, letter-, legal- and ledger-size copies.
The fee to certify a copy shall be $1.00.

No public record shall be delivered to any applicant until all fees for reproduction
have been paid.

SECTION 3. Denial of Request and Appeal:

3.1

3.2

Denial of an application for inspection and/or copying of public records shall be
in writing, shall state a detailed factual basis for the denial or the application of
any exemption(s) claimed and shall be signed by a Freedom of Information
Officer or his/her designee. The response shall also inform the applicant of
his/her right to review by the Public Access Counselor of any denial and shall
provide the telephone number and address of the Public Access Counselor.

A written denial of an applicant’s request shall be deemed delivered when
deposited in the U.S. mail, first class, postage paid.

71



SECTION 4. Effective Date of Ordinance: The provisions of this ordinance shall be in
full force and effect upon adoption by the Board of Commissioners.

SECTION 5. Prior Ordinances: This ordinance repeals Ordinance 2012-248 and shall
be placed in DuPage Airport Authority Code.

SECTION 6. Separable Provisions: If any provision of this Ordinance shall be found

by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining provisions shall remain in full
force and effect.

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority
this 9th day of January, 2013.

Roll Call:

Stephen L. Davis Peter H. Huizenga
Charles E. Donnelly Gina R. LaMantia
Dayle M. Gillett David J. Sabathne’
Daniel L. Goodwin Perry R. Thompson
Gerald M. Gorski

1]

11

Chairman

Secretary

ORDINANCE 2013-261

72



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Fee Schedule for Duplication of Public Records

Cost for copies effective date: January 1, 2013
Paper copy from paper original on copy machine:

Black-and-white, Letter-size, legal-size, ledger-size: no charge for the first 50 pages; 15¢
per page thereafter.

Duplication in electronic format on electronic media shall be charged at the actual cost of the
electronic media device(s).

All other copies (i.e., color copies, oversize documents, etc.) will be at the DAA's actual cost
from the supplier of the copies.

All fees for copying are payable in advance.

73



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY

DESCRIPTIONS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 4 OF THE
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT

Description of DuPage Airport Authority:

The DuPage Airport Authority is an IHlinois Special District located within
DuPage County, Illinois. Its purpose is the ownership and operation of the
DuPage Airport. Its Administrative office is located at 2700 International Drive,
Suite 200, West Chicago, IL 60185. A nine-member Board of Commissioners
governs the DAA. The DAA operates the DuPage Flight Center, a limited fixed
base operation on the field, which provides fuel and line service. The DAA also
owns, Prairie Landing Golf Club at 2325 Longest Drive, West Chicago, IL.

On January 1, 2013, the DAA had 63 full-time employees and 16 part-time employees.
The total budgeted operating revenue is $25,285,526 for the fiscal year ending December
31, 2013. The total budgeted expenditures for the year are $37.409,294. This includes
$19,803,704 for general operating costs and $17,605,590 for capital expenditures and
major maintenance projects.

Procedure for Requesting Information and Public Records:

Any person may obtain public records for inspection or copying in accordance
with the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act by submitting a written
request to the DAA providing the name, address and telephone number of the
applicant and describing the documents sought. DAA suggests, but shall not
require, that applicants submit the request on a Request for Public Records (Form
FOI 500) to the DAA's office during normal working hours. The request shall
state whether any record shall be used in any form for sale, resale or solicitation
or advertisement for sales or services. FOI Requests should be directed to the
attention of the DAA's Freedom of Information Officer, DuPage Airport
Authority, 2700 International Drive, Suite 200, West Chicago, IL 60185. The
requested record will be provided promptly and in accordance with DAA
Ordinance 2013-261 (an Ordinance of DAA promulgating regulations under the
Freedom of Information Act). Except for unusual circumstances permitted under
the Act and for records requested for a commercial purpose as defined by the Act,
the record will be supplied within five (5) business days of receipt of the written
request. Under certain conditions permitted by law, the DAA may extend this
time limit by another five (5) business days. Records requested for a commercial
purpose, as defined by the Act, will be provided in the time frame provided in the
Act for such records. In the event that the Request for Public Records cannot be
complied with, a written denial stating the detailed factual basis for the denial of
the application or any claimed exemption(s) will be mailed to the person making
the request within five (5) business days after receipt of the request or after the

1



extension of time, if extended. This denial notice will also include information on
the right to review by the Public Access Counselor and his/her address and
telephone number.

Fee Charged for Copies of Records:

There is no charge for the first 50 pages of black-and-white, letter-, legal- or
ledger-size copies of records, Unless otherwise specified, the fee for each
photocopy thereafter of a black-and-white, letter-, legal- or ledger-size item is
fifteen cents (15¢) per page.

Copies of documents provided in electronic format on electronic media will be
provided at the DAA's actual cost of the electronic media device(s).

Color copies andfor oversize copies will be charged at the actual cost of
reproduction.

75



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
CATEGORIES OF RECORDS AVAILABLE IN AUTHORITY OFFICE

Information on the individual Board of Commissioners such as name, title, current term
of office, appointment papers, and standing committee membership.

DAA budget, appropriations, expenditures, minutes of budget hearing meetings.
DAA Rules & Regulations and Minimum Standards.

Meeting schedules for all Committee and Board meetings for a given calendar year.
Board approved minutes of all Board and Committee meetings.

Board approved resolutions and ordinances.

Miscellaneous reports prepared by the DAA staff, provided that said reports are not ina
draft or preliminary form.

Board approved engineering plans and specifications.

Board approved contracts and agreements relating to aviation services and miscellaneous
aviation related records.

DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY

David Bird
Executive Director

76



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
EXHIBIT “A”
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT FORMS
Request for Inspection or Copying of Public Records (FOI 500)
Approval of Request for Public Records (FOI 501)
Partial Approval of Request for Public Records (FOI 502)

Deferral of Response to Request for Public Records (FOI 503)

Denial of Request for Public Records (FOI 504)

77



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
A-1.
REQUEST FOR INSPECTION OR COPYING OF PUBLIC RECORDS

Identification of person requesting information:
a) Name:
b) Address:
c) Telephone:

Additional information relating to organization. If this request is on behalf of a public body or a
business, civic or other organization, please state the following:

a) Name of Organization:
b) Address of Organization:
c) Office or title within organization of person requesting information:

Description of public records requested. Please describe the records requested with sufficient
detail to allow DAA office personnel to determine whether such public record exists and to locate
it within a reasonable time:

(If additional space is required, use the reverse side of this sheet).

4.

Specify documents of which copies are requested:

5.
advertisement for sales or services?

Will any part of the requested records be used in any form for sale, resale or solicitation or

Signature

For DAA Use Only

Date Received Time Received Date Response Due

Notations regarding oral communications or other items:

____FOIA Form 500

78



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
A-2.
APPROVAL OF REQUEST FOR PUBLIC RECORDS

TO: FROM:

Name Name

Address Office or Title

DESCRIPTION OF REQUESTED RECORD(S):

Your request dated for the above-captioned records has been approved.

e n = The documents you requested are enclosed.

The documents will be made available upon payment of copying costs in the
amount of $

You may inspect the records at

on

DAA Approval Date

- FOIA Form 501

78A



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
A-3.
PARTIAL APPROVAL OF REQUEST FOR PUBLIC RECORDS

TO: FROM:

Name Name

Address Office or Title

DESCRIPTION OF REQUESTED RECORD(S):

Your request dated for the above-captioned records has been partially approved. Those parts of
your request which have been approved:

Are enclosed.
Will be made available upon payment of copying costs in the amount of §

May be inspected at on

The following portions of your request have been denied for the reasons cited:

You have the right to review of this denial by a Public Access Counsclor. The Public Access Counselor may be
contacted at:

Public Access Bureau

Office of the Attorney General

500 S. Second Street

Springfield, IL 62706
217-558-0486

e-mail: publicaccess @atg.state.il.us

In requesting a review, you should include your original request as well as this denial.

DAA Freedom of Information Officers
Pamela Miller and Diane DeWitte

79



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
A-4.
DEFERRAL OF RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PUBLIC RECORDS

TO: FROM:

Name Name

Address Office or Title

DESCRIPTION OF REQUESTED RECORD(S):

The response to your request dated for the above-captioned

records must be deferred. The delay in responding to your request is in accordance with
Section 3 (€) of the Freedom of Information Act, specifically:

You will be notified by as to the action taken on your request. By
law, a five (5) business day extension to any request for public records is permitted. The DAA
will respond to your request by

DAA Freedom of Information Officers Date
Pamela Miller and Diane DeWitte

FOIA Form 503

80



TO:

DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
A-S.
DENIAL OF REQUEST FOR PUBLIC RECORDS

FROM:

Name

Name

Address

Office or Title

DESCRIPTION OF REQUESTED RECORD(S):

Your request dated

reasoas.

for the above-described records has been denied for the following

The request creates an undue burden on the public body in accordance with Section 3(g)
of the Freedom of Information Act, and we were unable to negotiate a more reasonable

request.

The materials requested are exempt under Section 7
Information Act for the following reasons:

of

You have the right to review of the denial of the records you have requested by a Public Access Counselor. The
Public Access Counselor may be contacted at:

Public Access Bureau

Office of the Attorney General

500 S. Second Street

Springfield, IL 62706
217-558-0486

e-mail: publicaccess @atg.state.il.us

In requesting a review, you should include your original request as well as this denial.

DAA Freedom of Information Officers Date
Pamela Miller and Diane DeWitte

B FOIA Form 504

80A



MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Commissioners

From: Phillip A. Luetkehans

Date: December 31, 2012

File: DuPage Airport Authority/2407

Re: DuPage County Ethics Ordinance and IGA

As you will recall, in September 2012, the Authority adopted almost all of the County’s Ethics
Ordinance as its Ethics Ordinance at the request of the County and also approved an
Intergovernmental Agreement with the County approving of the use of shared Ethics Officers
(the “IGA™). The Board also advised this law firm to send a letter with the approved IGA
advising the County, among other things, of concerns we had with certain language in the Ethics
Ordinance as it related to entities such as the Authority. Before I sent that letter to the County, I
learned that the County was already in the process of revising its Ethics Ordinance and the IGA.

Fortunately, much of the ambiguities we found in the first Ethics Ordinance proposed by the
County have now been corrected. Accordingly, we feel that the passage of this revised Ethics
Ordinance is appropriate for the Authority. However, the revised Ethics Ordinance still contains
the Contractor Disclosure provisions (Section 2-476) that the Authority opted not to include in its
prior Ordinance because the County’s Contractor Disclosure section was less stringent than the
one found in the Authority’s Procurement Code. Accordingly, the attached Ordinance 2013-262
again removes Section 2-476 from the Ethics Ordinance being passed by the Authority.

As for the IGA, the version in your packet now also includes new Sections 5.5, 5.6 and 5.7.
Sections 5.5 and 5.6 are the two sections that were discussed at our last meeting that the County
revised for the DuPage Water Commission. These two sections provide an ability to verify
expenses and reserve the right to take action against any employees who violate the Ethics
Ordinance, including referring the matter to the State’s Attorney’s Office. Section 5.7 provides a
method for adopting and enforcing future amendments that may be made to the County’s Ethics
Ordinance.

You should also note that the automatic termination date of December 2012 in the original IGA
has now been removed. However, the IGA is still terminable by either party with thirty (30)
days written notice.

With these changes, we would recommend the enactment of Ordinance 2013-262 and Resolution
2013-1703 by the Airport Authority Board of Commissioners.

81



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-262

AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AN ETHICS ORDINANCE
AND REPEALING ORDINANCE 2012-258

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority (hereafter the "Authority") is a duly
authorized and existing Special District authority under the laws of the State of Illinois;

WHEREAS, on September 26, 2012, the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport
Authority (the "Board") previously passed an ethics ordinance under Ordinance 2012-258
substantially similar to the Ethics Ordinance enacted by the County of DuPage (the "DuPage
Airport Authority Ethics Ordinance”);

WHEREAS, the County of DuPage (the “County”) has revised its Ethics Ordinance in a
manner that has provided clarity to certain provisions of its Ethics Ordinance;

WHEREAS, the Board believes that it will further promote efficiency and consistency to
have the DuPage Airport Authority’s Ethics Ordinance mirror the Ethics Ordinance enacted by the
County attached hereto as Exhibit A;

WHEREAS, the current Procurement Code of the Authority provides more stringent
disclosure requirements then does Section 2-476 of the Ethics Ordinance of the County of DuPage;

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the public and the Authority to
keep the more stringent disclosure requirements in place and not include Section 2-476 of the
County’s Ethics Ordinance in the DuPage Airport Authority Ethics Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it necessary and in the best interests of the public and the

Authority to repeal Ordinance 2012-258 and enact the Ethics Ordinance attached hereto as
Exhibit A;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the
DuPage Airport Authority as follows:

1. The Board does hereby approve and adopt the DuPage Airport Authority Ethics
Ordinance which is attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A.

2. The Board hereby repeals DuPage Airport Authority Ordinance 2012-258.

3. Executive Director David Bird shall take the necessary steps to effectuate the terms
of the Ethics Ordinance attached hereto as Exhibit A.

82



This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and
approval,

Stephen Davis Peter H. Huizenga
Charles E. Donnelly Gina LaMantia
Dayle M. Gillett David J. Sabathne’
Daniel L. Goodwin Perry R. Thompson
Gerald M. Gorski

Passed & approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority this
9th day of January, 2013.

CHAIRMAN

(ATTEST)

SECRETARY

ORDINANCE 2013-262

83



DuPage County Ethics Ordinance of 2012

Adopted Pursuant to 5 {LCS 430/70-5

CODE OF DU PAGE COUNTY
CHAPTER 2. ADMINISTRATION.

ARTICLE VIl DUPAGE COUNTY ETHICS ORDINANCE OF 2012

Part 1 — GENEral PrOVISIONS. ......c..cciiiiiriiiicasiesssnsensessessesssasasssesssessersessasssessssssnssnsssssssesssbnanssssbasssnss s tsessnsssnssssnnesanssssns 3
Subpart A= PUrpose and SHOME Title......cevioirerrrrrreresees e essseesssesssasssesseesesssneas s ssasas s sseana s b s s s acsanmenassnserassares 3
SECHION 2-450 = PUIPOSE ... .cvieeeciiirciinteninn e rtrrstss st et nsernensstesiasssrassasassssasseassasssnssssbisessssensstnesnansosratsnisssnes aasnse 3
SECtiON 2-451 = SHOME TIHIE....covtiirriiri it ot ettt et sne b e ses se e eab e e aR RS E s geRe b e bbb ne e sb s e 3
Subpart B — Application and Adoption by Governmental ENtities ... e 3
Section 2-452 — Application of OrdiNANCE . .....cvciiceiir s e s e et s s s e et 3
Section 2-453 ~ Adoption by Other Governmental Entities
Section 2-454 — Shared Enforcement AGFEBMENES. ... cvomumss st issbssssssscsass s snrsas e s s s s 4
SUDDATE € — DEfINILIONS .uvirrerirererssrerirstiseriseiieesirrsasesianeesessserastonessbesssaentessstsness suassinestassbesestsssnsrssessstosssnnsnesessses 4
Section 2-455 — Definitions.........cocmmemmmmesiecriinnnenniesnsnnniens! T AU U YL . 4
Subpart D — Employee ReSpoOnSIBIlItIES ........cccceiiiierieriirieniriise et ss s st ses aes e essesas st evanssasnesmoss 7
Section 2-456 — Employee Cooperation
Section 2-457 — Whistleblower Protection.........oir i s, 7
SECLION 2-458 =TrAININE ceucreverirenrrerericeerieres s sere s s b es bt ras s sesasn s s b s m b e saseras b samsessesnnrsns B
Subpart E - Miscellaneous Provisions
Section 2-459 — Severability
Section 2-460 — Transition
Section 2-461 — Application of the Freedom of Information and Open Meetings Acts....c..ocrimeiniinriinniin 8
SECHION 2-462 — NOUICES 1..evtieeiiriiiiriiier e enceesseesssisssssrns s aa s s asassesasbassbasssenasbesshnssysrsasasatsensssnnsnansssasnssnsesssssass 9
SECtION 2-463 — EffECIVE DAtO.....cciicirrrareceesnessinrierierasrssssssaasassasan b s ssas e nsssanssssas sasssbabnssasnanastsss dassssnnsiassnssisnss 9
Part 2 — EthiCs OffiCeIS..c.u ettt st se s st et rae shsebsabas e sd e bat o R sone s he e ds et s oR s HEB e R AT R e 4 e 113 AU b kst et b ey 9
Subpart A — General Provisions

Sectlon 2-464 — Indemnification of Ethics OffiCers... ...t saisasrssssn ssssnsasssesssssses 9

84



Section 2-465 — Compensation of ELhics OffiCers.....u st s ssssssinssasss

Subpart B ~ Ethics Commission

Section 2-466 — Composition and Organization of the Ethics Commission

Section 2-467 — Powers and Duties of the Ethics COmmMISSION.....vviveeicceimmneiner e enecemninsssnsn

Subpart C — EEhiCs AQVISOT i ciisissiiumionissiisvse it asisosevitasosssss sassiis dnnsi i sass iesosisnsssmes svmssobomsvismsni asaiasss aviins

Section 2-468 Appointment and Qualifications of the Ethics Adviser
Section 2-469 — Duties of the Ethics Adviser

Section 2-470 — Appointment and Qualifications of the Investigator General ......c.cccoieninniieiiinninnn,
Section 2-471 — Powers and Duties of the Investigator GENeral........ccceesmmmimirme e
Section 2-472 — Assistant Investigators GENEral ..........cvverrriieeiiecicieesissics s
[T g Il o0 gy 1T 4T =Te J0a T T L ot e R S LT DNt R RRE
SUDPArt A — GIft BAN vivveincienmsaimmemnnsnsenssmanasinssnsmssisssmntsennssssssssnnsnssersssas saiasstassssssasans sansn s busammssnsssnsyssppnssovsssassassens
Section 2-473 — Gift BaN iiiiiaiiiviiossisiassssssarssivsssssss posssssasaaiasnaisssininsians susbionissasssetvanaiisesisanasiiorsnrsonaiions

Section 2-474 — Exceptions

Subpart B — POltiCal CONMEIIBUTIONS ..v.ueeeevereesermreeersiesessesesas saessrssssssesasssssnsstsas sressssnssssnssansssensesnssssanssns

Section 2-475 — Political Contribution Limits
Section 2-476 — Contractor Disclosure of Campaign Contributions
Subpart C — Prohibited Political Activity
Section 2-477 — Prohibited Political Activity Defined
Section 2-478 — Prohibitions
Subpart D — Conflicts of Interest

Section 2-479 — Financial Interest Disclosure

Section 2-480 — CONTlICE OF INEEIESL ......coeeicerrier it areeriesie s ssieesesssassessasbasasssrnsssesstanssnassssbnssesssnssessinnnsnsnas

Section 2-481 — Future Employment

Section 2-482 — Former Emplayment RelationShips ....ceveeoieniimimmniare s ssnssnsssrssisssissersassnssnss smnsssnsnes

Saction 2-483 — Prohibited Employment
Section 2-484 — Improper Use of Proprietary or Confidential information
Subpart E — Other Prohibited Conduct
Section 2-485 — Disregard of Obligations Under this Ordinance

Section 2-486 — Whistleblower Protection

Part 4 — Complaint and HEaring PrOCEAUIES ......ccvw: ieriiresssisiaiissisissesshssssinra e a s srssssaes s s saas sne s srssn s b anarasensisinians

............................................................................................................................

.....................................................

SUBPArt D — INVESHIZATOr GENEFA! ...c.eicirsiitimererisione s st s e st snssases st asa s en s e s aa e e rbemea s eee s ans s e e pesmars s banenes

..............................................................................................................................

...................................................................................................

........................................

........................

..............................................................................................................

..............................................................

............................................................................................................................

DT R T Y T R L R L RN L R L TR R L T T Ry P P TN P RN AR P YR PR LT

........................

..................................................................................................

...............................................................................................................

.........................................................................................................

................................................................................................................

.............................................

85



Section 2-487 — Complaint Filing ProcadUre......c.iuiiiinciniiisieeciase e tsssss s rsasss sesesssssctsannnasnens vees 21

Section 2-488 — Investigative Procedure by Investigator General ..., 22
Section 2-489 — Hearing Procedure by Ethics COMMISSION ...vciererirnnerieismmeisssiisssies insnssssssnsssssnssenasnesnesanesears 24
Section 2-490 — Ethics Commission Decisions and Reconsideration...........cieeirecnsimesniisinotseesasieen ionessses 24
Part 5 — AULNOIZEd DISPOSIHIONS ......ovvveriiieeiieieieeiaeseensiaessisasast st sbbstasssssesss s sensssssssvassnssassnnnsssnssasassnssnsssasessnssasasases 29
Section 2-491 - Recommendations for DISCIPINE ... st 25
Section 2-492 — IMPOSIION OF FINES.....cccieerciniiiireietiesreissnssssessssnsessesessssssnssessassssssssassiansssarnsssssssnsassasnssnesssnss 20
Section 2-493 — Collective Bargaining RESIIICHION ....ovccv oot sssenss s snassnsesns 20
Part 6 — AMINISTIAtIVE REVIEW...uiceicirieiiiineinencassiscsinis s rsasennisressersisssnsvassessss isssssassasas soesssaassssasessunashansssessnsnns sares 26
Section 2-494 — AdMINISTrative RBVIEW ...cceruvierrirniseiis s serseses s stsassrsnsss s asssbastasn s sms shs s b as b st easessnmoes 26

Part 1 - General Provisions

Subpart A - Purpose and Short Title
Section 2-450 - Purpose

It is the goal of the chairman of the county board and each of its members to guarantee fair, efficient, and
honest government and to ensure the integrity and objectivity of county officers and emplayees. The purpose of
this ordinance is to provide a framework for ethical activities for county officers and employees to follow while
conducting the business of government and to provide a roadmap for other public officers and entities,
including countywide officers, other units of local government, and their employees to follow in their efforts on
behalf of the community they serve. No one policy can comprehensively encompass all aspects of appropriate
business behavior. The fundamental principle underlying all policies is that all activities of public officials and
employees must meet appropriate ethical and legal standards.

Section 2-451 ~ Short Title

This ordinance may be cited as the “DuPage County Ethics Ordinance of 2012.”

Subpart B - Application and Adoption by Governmental Entities

Section 2-452 - Application of Ordinance

This ordinance applies to the following entities and persons upon its effective date:
(a) The county board.

(b) All governmental boards, commissions, committees or ather entities created by the county board.

3

86



{c) All governmental boards, commissions, committees or other entities for which the county board
may by law define powers and duties, or to which ordinances adopted by the county board are
generally applicable,

(d) Any governmental entity which has adopted this ordinance and any of that entity’s subordinate
bodies.

(2) All officers and employees of any of the above entities, including, but not limited to the chairman
and each member of the county board.

Section 2-453 - Adoption by Other Governmental Entities

The county board encourages other governmental entities, including, but not limited to, countywide officers,
independent hoards or commissions whose gaverning bodies are appointed by the chairman of the county
board, or by the county hoard, and other units of local gavernment to adopt this ordinance in whole, or in part
or to maintain an ethies policy with provisions ha less restrictive than those contained herein,

Section 2-454 - Shared Enforcement Agreements

The county may enter into an agreement with any governmental entity that has adopted this ordinance, or an
ordinance or policy substantially similar to it, when that governmental entity desires that the county’s ethics
officers shall also serve as its ethics officers. Any agreement adopted under this section shall fully set forth the
ethics ordinance or policy of the other entity and shall provide that the other entity shall be solely responsible
for any costs associated with the investigation or adjudication of any ethics complaint.

Subpart C - Definitions

Section 2-455 - Definitions

For purposes of this ordinance, the following terms are defined as follows:

(a) “business entity” means the actual organization or individual to which a governmental entity subject
to this ordinance has awarded a contract or to which such contract is to be awarded and includes
any of the business’s principals, family members of the business’s principals, and any other legal
entities in which those principals or family members have a controlling interest or have control over
the disbursement of funds of the business.

{b) “campaign for elective office” means any activity in furtherance of an effort to influence the
selection, nomination, election or appointment of any Individual to any federal, state or local public
office or office in a palitical organization, or the selectian, nomination, or election of presidential or
vice-presidential electors, but does not include activities (1) relating to the support or opposition of
any executive, legislative or administrative action, (2) relating to collective bargaining, or (3) that are
otherwise in furtherance of a person’s official duties.

(c) “candidate” means an individual who has filed nominating papers or petitions for nomination or
election to an elected office, or who has been appointed to fill a vacancy in nomination, and who
remains eligible for placement on the ballot at a regular election, as defined in Section 1-3 of the
Election Code (10 iLCS 5/1-3).

87



(d)

(e)

(f)

(8)

(h)

1

(k)

U

(m)

(n)

(o)

“collective bargaining” has the same meaning as that term is defined in Section 3 of the llinois
Public Labor Relations Act (5 ILCS 315/3).

“compensated time” means, with respect to an employee, any time worked by or credited to the
employee that counts toward any minimum work time requirement imposed as a condition of his or
her employment, but for purposes of this ardinance, does not include any designated holidays,
vacation periods, personal time, compensatory time off or any period when the employee is on a
leave of absence. With respect to an officer, employee, or other appointee whose hours are not
fixed, “compensated time” includes any period of time when such person is executing his or her
official duties, regardless of lacation.

“compensatory time off” means authorized time off earned by or awarded to an employee to
compensate In whole or in part for time worked in excess of minimum work time required of that
employee as a condition of his or her employment.

“contractor or vendor” means owners, officers, managers, lobbyists, agents, consultants, bond
caunsel and underwriters’ counsel, subcantractors and corporate entities under the control of the

contracting entity, and political action committees to which the contracting person has made
contributions.

“contribution” has the same meaning as the term is defined in Section 9-1.4 of the Election Code (10
ILCS 5/9-1.4).

“cammission” means the ethics commission created pursuant to this ordinance.

“countywide officials” means the auditor, clerk, clerk of the circuit court, coroner, recorder of deeds,
regional superintendent of education, sheriff, state’s attorney, and treasurer.

“ethics officers” means the members of the commission, the ethics adviser, the investigator general
and his or her assistants, collectively.

“employee” means any person, other than an officer, employed by a governmental entity subject to
this ordinance on a full time, part time, temporary, or contractual basis, but does nhot include an
independent contractor. “Employee” includes current employees and any person who was
employed at the time of the conduct which is the subject of any complaint filed with the commission
in confarmance with the provisions of this ordinance.

“family member” means those Individuals related to a person subject to this ordinance as father,
mother, son, daughter, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, husband, wife, father-In-law, mother-in-law,
son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, stepfather, stepmother, stepson, stepdaughter,
stepbrother, and stepsister.

“gift” means any gratuity, discount, entertainment, hospitality, loan, forbearance, or other tangible
or intangible item having a fair cash market value including but not limited to cash, food, drink and
honoraria for speaking engagemenits related to or attributable to government employment or the
official pasition of any offlcer or employee subject to this ordinance.

“gavernmental entity” means any legislative, executive, administrative, judicial, or advisary bodies
of the State, state universities and colleges, counties, countywide officials, townships, cities, villages,
incorporated towns, school districts and all other municipal corporations, boards, bureaus,

88



(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

v)

(w)

(x)

{v)

(1)

committees, or commissions of this State or another, any subsidiary bodies of any of the foregoing
Including but not limited to committees and subcommittees thereof.

“intra-governmental gift” means any gift given ta a person by an officer or employee of the same
governmental entity.

“inter-governmental gift” means any gift given to a person by an officer or employee of another
governmental entity.

“market value” means the price that a gift would bring for tangible or intangible assets of like type,
guality and quantity in the local market at the time of acquisition.

“officer” means a person elected or appointed to the principal executive office of a governmental
entity subject to this ordinance or as a member of any administrative or legislative body thereof, for
a term as defined by law. Officers include, but are not limited to, the chairman and each member of
the county board, elected countywide officers subject to this ordinance, and members of all boards,
commissions or committees subject to this ordinance.

“person” or “person subject to this ordinance” means any officer or emplayee of a governmental
entity subject to this ordinance.

“palitical” means any activity in support of or in connection with any campaign for elective office or
any political organization, but does not include activities (1) relating to the support or opposition of
any executive, legislative or administrative action or (2) relating to collective bargaining, or (3) that
are otherwise in furtherance of the person’s official dutles.

“political organization” means a party, committee, association, fund or other organization (whether
or not incorporated) that is required to file a statement of organization with the State Board of
Efections or a county clerk under Section S-3 of the Election Code (10 ILCS 5/9-3}, but only with
ragard to those activities that require filing with the State Board of Elections or a caunty clerk.

“principals” of a business shall mean an officer of a business entity, a majority shareholder of a
corporation, or the majority equity owner of a business entity.

“prohihited source” means any person or entity who (1) is seeking official action by an officer; or in
the case of an employee, by the employee, or by an officer or another employee directing that
employee; (2) does business or seeks to do business with the governmental entity subject to this
ordinance or in the case of an employee, by the employee or by the officer, or another employee
directing the employee; (3) conducts activities regulated by the officer or in the case of an
employee, by the employee or by the officer, or another employee directing the employee; (4) has
interests that may be substantially affected by the performance or non-performance of the official
duties of the person subject to this ordinance; (5) is registered or required to be registered with the
Secretary of State under the Lobhyist Registration Act or ordinance pertaining to the registration of
lobhyists enacted by the governmental entity , except that an entity not otherwise a prohibited
source does not become a prohibited source merely because a registered lobbyist is one of its
members or serves on its board of directors; or (6) is a political action committee to which a
prohibited source has contributed.

“ultimate jurisdictional authority” means

In the case of an employee, the head of any department to which the employee reports;
6

89



(2)

(3)

(4)

In the case of the head of a department, the highest-ranking employee of the governmental
entity or that person’s designee;

In the case of the highest-ranking employee of a governmental entity, the presiding officer of

the entity’s corporate authorities or the officer authorized by law to control the entity’s internal
operations; and

For the presiding officer of a governmental entity’s corporate authorities or any member of such
entity’s corporate autharities, the remaining members of such corporate authorities.

Subpart D - Employee Responsibilities

Section 2-456 - Employee Cooperation

All persons subject to this ordinance shall be obligated to cooperate during the course of an investigation and to
comply with requests for information from the investigator general and the commission. Subject to
constitutional or statutory limitations, the failure or refusal of any person to comply with reasonable requests
for information shall constitute a violation of this ordinance and may be considered by the ultimate jurisdictional
authority as grounds for discipline consistent with the enforcement provisions of this ordinance.

Section 2-457 - Whistleblower Protection

{a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Whenever any persan subject to this ordinance reasonably believes evidence exists that another
employee has perpetrated gross mismanagement, gross misuse or waste of public resources or
funds, abuse of authority in connection with the administration of a public program or execution of
a public contract, a violation of a federal, state, or local law, rule or regulation which is not merely of
a technical or minimal nature, or a substantial and specific danger to the public health and safety
exists, such persan shall bring this evidence to the immediate attention of the chairman of the
county board, any of its members or its chief of staff, the state’s attorney, the auditor, or human
resources personnel. In the case of an employee of a governmental entity subject to this ordinance
other than the county, he or she may also bring such evidence to the attention of the entity’s chief
executive officer, corporate authorities or governing board, or legal counsel.

Any person who reports a violation or concern, in good faith, shall not be subjected to retaliation,
harassment, abuse, threats, and discrimination or any adverse employment consequences as a
result of coming forward.

Any person who reports a violation or concern in goed faith, on behalf of another person, shall not
be subjected to retallation, harassment, abuse, threats, and discrimination or any adverse
employment consequences as a result of coming forward.

This section shall not apply to any person who makes a report known to that person to be false an
his or her own behalf or on behalf of another.

The commission shall develop formal procedures and forms for reporting complaints of improper or
unethical behavior and shall make information avallable on the county’s intranet.

90



Section 2-458 -Training

All persons subject to this ordinance, within six (6) months after adoption of this ordinance and at least annually
thereafter, must complete an ethics training program approved by the commission. A new employee must
complete his or her initial ethics training during orientation within the first month of employment or as soon
thereafter as such training is available within the first six (6) months of employment, Officers shall attend a
tralning program within six (6) months of being elected or appointed (or as soon thereafter as an ethics training
is available) and at least annually thereafter, an ethics training program approved by the commission in
conjunction with the ethics adviser. The ethics adviser shall assist human resources personnel in maintaining
records related to each person’s completion of such training programs.

Subpart E - Miscellaneous Provisions
Section 2-459 - Severability
(a) The provisions of this ordinance are severable.

(b) If any court of competent jurisdiction shall adjudge any provision, or part thereof, of this ordinance
to be invalid, such judgment shall not affect any other provision, or part thereof, of this ordinance
which are not declared to be invalid in said judgment.

{c) if any court of competent jurisdiction shall adjudge invalid the application of any provision, or part
thereof, of this ardinance to a particular person, such judgment shall not affect the application of
said provision, or part thereof, to any other person not specifically included in said judgment.

Section 2-460 - Transition

(a) Members of the DuPage County Ethics Commission appointed pursuant to OFI-003C-04 shall
continue as members of the commission for the duration of the terms to which they were
appointed.

(b) The Ethics Officer of DuPage County appointed pursuant to OFI-003C-04 shall serve as the ethics
adviser for the duration of the term to which he or she was appointed.

(c) The Investigator General of DuPage County appointed pursuant to OFI-003C-04 shall serve as the
investigator general for the duration of the term to which he or she was appainted.

Section 2-461 — Application of the Freedom of Informatian and Open Meetings Acts

(a) Documents generated by the Investigator general under this ardinance are exempt as allowed by
law from the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act.

(b} Any allegations and related pleadings submitted to the commission are exempt from the Freedom of
information Act so long as the commission does not make a finding of a vlolation of this ordinance.

(c) If the commission finds that a violation has occurred, the entire record of proceedings before the
commission, the decision and recommendations and the mandatory repart are not exempt from the
provisions of the Freedom of Information Act, but information contained therein that is otherwise
exempt from the Freedom of Information Act must be redacted before disclosure as provided in
Section 8 of the Freedom of Information Act.

8

91



(d) The commission may close portians of its meeting including hearings under ordinance in the manner
authorized by the Open Meetings Act.

Section 2-462 - Notices

(a) Whenever any provision of this ordinance requires an ethics officer to provide written notice to any
individual or entity, such officer shall provide such notice through the use of certified mail, return
recelpt requested, unless, except In the case of a complainant or respondent as set forth in Part 4,
the ethics officer and the individual or entity to whom such officer is to provide notice agree in
writing to accept such correspondence in any other written form, including electronic mail, provided
that such officer retains a physical copy of all such correspondence.

(b) Failure of an ethics officer to provide notice to any individual or entity other than a respondent in

the manner required by paragraph (a) shall not Invalidate any action taken by such officer or the
commission.

Section 2-463 - Effective Date

This ordinance becomes effective on January 1, 2013.

Part 2 - Ethics Officers

Subpart A - General Provisions

Section 2-464 - Indemnification of Ethics Officers

The ethics officers shall be entitled to all immunities and defenses available to employees and officers of a local
public entity, including those immunities and defenses granted by the Local Governmental and Gavernmental
Employees Tort Immunity Act (745 ILCS 10/1-101 et. seq.), for any claims, lawsuits or actions brought against
them for injuries arising out of the performance of their duties under this ordinance or state law. Additionally,
such persons shall be entitled to the indemnification provided pursuant to the provisions of the ordinance to
indemnify County Officers and Employees (OFI-008A-99), enacted on September 14, 1939 and as may be
subsequently revised.

Section 2-465 - Compensation of Ethics Officers

(a) The chairman of the ethics commission, the investigator general and his or her assistants, and the
ethics adviser shall be compensated at the rate of $185 per hour for all time spent in the
furtherance of his or her official duties and shall be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred in
the performance of such duties.

{(b) The members of the commission shall be compensated at a per diem rate of $175 for official
meetings of the commission,

92



Subpart B - Ethics Commission

Section 2-466 - Composition and Organization of the Ethics Commission

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

The commission shall consist of five (5) commissioners appointed by the county hoard upon the
nomination of the chairman of the county board.

The chairman of the county board shall from time to time designate one commissioner to serve as
chairman of the commission.

All commissioners shall be residents of DuPage County, No commissioner may during his or her term
of appointment: (1) become a candidate for any elective public office; or (2) hold any other elected
or appointed public office, except for appointment to a governmental advisory board, study
commission, or as an ethics official of another governmental entity; provided, however, a
commissioner may resign to become a candidate for elective office or to accept an appointment to 3
public office. No more than three (3) commissioners shall be members of the same political party.
Prior to nomination, the chairman of the county board shall obtain a sworn affidavit of party
affiliation from each prospective appointee.

Each commissioner shall serve a term of two (2) years and until their successors are appointed and
qualified. Commissioners serving as members of the commission established pursuant to OFI-003C-
04 shall continue to serve as ethics commissioners under this ordinance until such time as their
terms have expired or thelr successors are appointed and qualified. Thereafter, the chairman shall
nominate commissioners for appointment to two {2) year terms, or in the case of an unexpired
term, to the remalnder of the term.

The commission shall hold an organizational meeting within thirty (30) days of its appointment and
thereafter as often as necessary to perform Its duties and shall meet at least annually on the
anniversary of its first meeting. The Commission shall meet upon the call of its chairman, any twa (2)
commissioners, or the chairman af the county board.

Action at a hearing by the commission shall require the affirmative vote of four {4) commissioners.
Action of any other meeting by the commission shall require the affirmative vote of three {3)
commilssioners.

The chairman of the county board may remave a commissioner, with or without cause upon written
notice of removal presented to the county board, with a copy sent to the commissioner by certified
mail, return receipt requested. The county board may overrule the removal of the commissioner by
majority vote of such members elected within sixty (60) days of the notice at a regularly-scheduled
meeting

Section 2-467 - Powers and Duties of the Ethics Commission

The commission shall have the following powers and duties:

(a)
(b)

To exercise jurisdiction over ali persons subject to this ordinance.

To promulgate procedures and rules in addition to those contained in this ordinance governing the
perfarmance of its duties and the exercise of its powers and those of the investigator general,

10

93



(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(8)

(h)

(i)

(i)

(k)

)

Ta act only upon the receipt of a repart or petition from the investigator general and not on its own
prerogative.

To consider an investigator general’s petition to proceed to a hearing on a formal complaint and to
consider any written argument of the respondent which is filed within thirty (30] days of
respondent’s receipt of the petition of the investigator general.

To receive, review and rule on the record of the investigator general and respondent’s submission.
The commission shall either concur in the investigator general’s recommendation to issue a farmal
complaint or reject the recommendation of the investigator general and dispose of the original
complaint.

To refer to the investigator general for investigation any allegations of violations of this ordinance
received by the commission.

To the extent authorized by this ordinance and in accordance with law to deliberate, issue
recommendations for disciplinary actions, impase fines and/or penalties, if appropriate, and refer to
the appropriate authority violatlons of law outside the purview of this ordinance.

To conduct a fair administrative hearing, receive evidence, under oath, in support of the complaint
and from the subject of the complaint in defense of the allegations in the complaint. The
cormmission may compel attendance of witnesses and the production of materials relevant to
matters to be heard and, if hecessary, petition the Clrcuit Court of DuPage County for an order that
a party comply with the commission’s requests. The commission shall employ a court reporter, the
reasonable cost of which shall be paid by DuPage County after submission and approval of an
invoice.

To prepare, file and serve a written report to include findings of fact and a decision regarding a
complaint, assessment of fines, penalties and recommendation for disposition by the ultimate
jurisdictional authority.

To exercise its powers and duties strictly limited to matters clearly within the purview of this
ordinance.

To seek and receive legal advice from the state’s attarney who shall provide legal advice withaut
charge to the commission.

To employ necessary staff persons and contract for services that cannot be satisfactorily performed
by the county employees; provided, however, that the costs thereof shall be paid by the county
pursuant to approved budget, or If there is no budget, to a maximum of $5,000 without speclfic
autharization of the ultimate jurisdictional autharity.

Subpart C - Ethics Adviser

Section 2-468 Appointment and Qualifications of the Ethics Adviser

(a)

An ethics adviser shall be appointed by the county board upon the nomination of the chairman of
the county board for a term of two (2) years and until his or her successor is appointed and
qualified.

11

94



(b)

(c)

(d)

The chairman of the county board may remove the ethics adviser, with or without cause, by notice
to the ethics adviser, by certified mail, return receipt requested. The county board may overrule the

removal of the ethics adviser at its next regularly scheduled meeting by a majority vote of the
members elected.

The ethics adviser shall not (1) become a candidate for any elective office; or (2) hold any other
elected or appointed public office except for appointment to a governmental advisory board, study
commission, or as an ethics official of another governmental entity; provided, however, the ethics

adviser may resign to become a candidate for elective office ar to accept an appointment to a public
office.

if the ethics adviser [s a county employee, the county board shall determine the rate at which he or
she is compensated in lieu the provisions of this ordinance.

Section 2-469 - Duties of the Ethics Adviser

The ethics adviser shall:

(a)

{b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Provide guidance to any person subject to this ordinance in the interpretation and implementation
of this ordinance, upon a written inquiry, with a written response;

Review statements of economic interest and disclosure forms of any person subject to this
ordinance;

Assist in the preparation and publication of manuals and guides explaining the duties of indlviduals
covered by this ordinance;

Assist in the preparation of public information materials to facilitate compliance, implementation,
and enfarcement of this ordinance;

Assist in maintaining accurate records of attendance of persons at training seminars and appropriate
distribution of compliance materials; and

Provide such guidance and assistance as set forth in this section to all persons subject to the
ordinance.

Subpart D - Investigator General

Section 2-470 - Appointment and Qualifications of the Investigator General

(a)

(b}
(c)
(d)

The county board shall appoint an investigator general upon the nomination of the chairman of the
county board for a period of four (4) years and until his or her successor is appolnted and qualified.
A person serving as investigator general under OFI-003C-04 on the effective date of this ordinance
shall serve as investigator general for the duration of such person’s term and until his or her
successor is appointed and qualified.

The investigator general shall not be an employee of any governmental entity.
The investigator general shall be an attarney licensed to practice law in the State of [llinois.

During the time in which the investigator general holds office, he or she shall not (1) become a
candidate for any elective office, or (2) hold any other elected or appointed public office except for

12

95



(e)

appointment to an uncompensated advisory board or study commission or as an ethics official to
another governmental entity; provided, however, the investigator general may resign to become a
candidate for elective office or to accept an appointment to a public office.

The chairman of the county board may remove an investigator general with or without cause, by
notice to the chairman of the commission and the investigator general, by certified mail, return
receipt requested, provided that a majority of the members elected to the county board may

overrule the removal of the investigator general at the county board's next regularly-scheduled
meeting.

Section 2-471 - Powers and Duties of the Investigator General

The investigator general shall:

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(g)
{h)

Provide guidance to the commission and assist it in the discharge of its duties;

Provide fair notice to each person alleged to have violated this ordinance In accordance with the
procedures set forth in this ordinance;

Receive complaints, and conduct investigations in accordance with the procedures set forth in this
ordinance;

Provide a status report to the commission within thirty (30) days after receipt of a complaint, and
every thirty (30) days thereafter until the investigation is closed and the cause concluded;

In the course of the preliminary investigation, compel testimony under oath and the production of
any materlal from any person or source relevant to the preliminary investigation, and, if necessary,
petition the Circuit Court of DuPage County for the issuance of a court order compelling compliance;

Give written notice to a person providing information under this Section of his or her right to:
(1) refuse to provide self-incriminating testimony;
(2) retain an attorney at his or her sole option and expense;

(3) have such an attorney or, if required by any collective bargaining agreement, a union
representative present during any interview; and

(4) when the person being interviewed is the subject of the investigation, be informed in writing of
the nature of the investigation.

Present evidence of alleged violatians of this ordinance to the commission;

Compile and refer to the chairman of the commission and to the chairman of the county board, an
annual statistical report for each year consisting of:

(1)  the number of complaints filed,

(2) the number of complaints he or she deemed to have sufficiently alleged a violation of this
ordinance,

{3)  the number of complaints resolved,

13

96



{4)  the decision issued for each complaint resoived, and
(5) the status of any pending complaints.
Section 2-472 - Assistant Investigators General

The county board may, in its discretion, appoint such assistant investigators general as the chairman of the
county board may nominate to assist the investigator general in the performance of his or her duties under this
ordinance for a term of two (2] years. Such assistant investigators general shall possess the same qualifications
of the investigator general and be vested with all of the powers and duties of the investigator general under this
ordinance subject to the control and direction of the investigator general, provided that in the event a conflict
exists between the investigator general and a matter to be investigated, the chairman of the commission shall
authorize an assistant investigator general to perform his or her duties absent the control and direction of the
investigator general.

Part 3 - Prohibited Conduct

Subpart A - Gift Ban
Section 2-473 - Gift Ban

(a) No person subject to this ordinance, or a spouse or family member of such person (collectively
hereinafter referred to as “recipients”) shall intentionally solicit or accept any gift from any
prohibited source or in violation of any ordinance, federal or state statute, rule or regulation. No
prohibited source shall intentionally offer or make a gift that violates this section.

(b) A recipient does not violate this section if the reciplent promptly takes reasonable action to return
the prohibited gift to its source.

(c) A recipient does not violate this section if the reciplent gives the gift or an amount equal to its value
to 'an appropriate charity that is exempt from income taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as now or hereafter amended, renumbered or succeeded.

Section 2-474 - Exceptions

The restrictions set forth in this Subpart A of this ordinance shall not apply to the following exceptions, each of
which is mutually exclusive and independent of one another:

(a) Opportunities, benefits and services which are available on the same conditions as for the general
public.

(b) Anything for which the recipient pays the fair cash market value.

(c) Any (1) contribution that is lawfully made under the Election Code or under this ordinance or (2)
activities associated with a fund-raising event in support of a political arganization or candidate.

(d) Educational materials and missions.

(e) Travel expenses related to meetings to discuss official governmental business.

14



(f)

(g}

(h)

(i)

i)
(k)
)

A gift from a relative, meaning (for the purposes of the gift ban provisions of this ordinance only)
those people related to the recipient as a family member, fiancé or fiancée, or a half-brother, half-

sister, or the father, mother, grandfather, or grandmother of the recipient’s spouse , fiancé or
fiancée.

Anything provided to a recipient on the basis of a personal friendship, unless the recipient has
reason to believe that, under the circumstances, the gift was provided because of the official
position or employment of the recipient and not because of the personal friendship. In determining
whether a gift is provided on the basis of a personal friendship, the recipient shall consider the
circumstances under which the gift was offered, such as: (1) the history of the relationship between
the individual giving the gift and the recipient, including any previous exchange of gifts between
those individuals; (2) whether to the actual knowledge of the recipient, the individual who gave the
gift personally paid for the gift or sought a tax deduction or business reimbursement for the gift; and
(3) whether to the actual knowledge of the recipient the individual who gave the glft also at the
same time gave the same or similar gifts to other recipients.

Food or refreshments not exceeding $25 per person in value on a single calendar day; provided that
the food or refreshments are (1) consumed on the premises from which they were purchased or
prepared or (2} catered. For the purpose of this section, “catered” means food or refreshments that
are purchased ready to consume which are delivered by any means.

Food, refreshments, lodging, transportation and other benefits resulting from the outside business
or employment activities (ar outside activities that are not connected to the duties of the recipients)
of the recipients if the benefits have not been offered or enhanced because of the official position
or employment of the recipient and are customarity provided to others in similar circumstances.

Intra-governmental and inter-governmental gifts.
Bequests, inheritances and other transfers at death.

Any item or items from any one prohibited source during any calendar year having a cumulative
total value of less than $25.

Subpart B - Political Contributions

Section 2-475 - Political Contribution Limits

{a)

(1)

(2)

No officer shall intentionally solicit or accept

cumulative campaign contributions in excess of $1,000 per calendar year from any prohibited
source which has obtained or is seeking contracts or change orders, or from lobbyists, agents or
representatives in which their owners, officers, managers, lobbyists, agents or consuitants are
members who have obtained or are seeking contracts or change orders with the entity such
officer serves; or

cumulative campaign contributions in excess of $1,000 per calendar year from any Individual
appointed or applying for appointment by the officer to serve on a board, commission,
authority, task force, advisory committee or other governmental entity when such officer is
empowered by law to nominate or vote to give his or her advice and consent to such
appointment.

15

98



(b)

(b)

This prohibition applies to contracts for all goods and services, including those for professional
services and those otherwise exempt from bid under lllinois law or any ordinance or policy
applicable to the governmental entity subject to this ordinance.

ion-2-476—Contractor-Biselosure-of Camprign-Contributions

persan responsible for preparing a cantract for the procurement of goods or services, or change
or thereto, for consideration by a governmental entity shall, prior to approval, obtain from the
contractdr. union, or other vendar, a written disclosure of all contributions made by such entity
within the cutrept and previous calendar year to any incumbent officer wha will, in any way,
participate in, or whose office will benefit, from the award of such contract or change order. Such
disclosure shall be updatéthgnnually during the term of a multi-year contract on the anniversary of
the contract’s award.

The requirements of this Section apply t& rocurements, including change orders and renewals,
in excess of the threshold amount including these in which the governmental entity employed a

procurement process other than competitive bidding.to award the contract for such goods or
services.

For the purpose of this Section, “threshold amount” means an amountat or in excess of $5,000 less
than an amount set by the statute applicable to the governmental entity-that would otherwise
require procurement through a competitive bidding process. In the event that nd~s{atute imposes a
competitive bidding requirement upon the governmental entity, the threshold amougt shall be
$5,000 less than the amount set forth In Section 5-1022(a) of the Countles Code at the tim the

prnrurnmnn': -

Subpart C - Prohibited Political Activity

Section 2-477 - Prohibited Political Activity Defined

“Prohibited political activity” means:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

preparing for, organizing or participating in any political meeting, political rally, political
demonstration, or other political event; soliciting contributions, including but not limited to the
purchase of, selling, distributing or receiving payment for tickets for any political fundraiser, political
meeting, or other political event;

soliciting, planning the solicitation of, or preparing any document or report regarding anything of
value intended as a campaign contribution;

planning, conducting, or participating in a public opinion poll in connection with a campaign for
elective office or on behalf of a political organization for political purposes or for or against any
referendum question;

surveying or gathering information from potential or actual voters in an election to determine
probable vote outcome In connection with a campaign for elective office or on behalf of a political
organization for political purpases or for or against any referendum guestion;

assisting at the polls on election day on behalf of any political organization or candidate for elective
office or for or against any referendum question;

16

99



(f)

(g)

(h)

)

(k)
(1)

(m)

sollciting votes on behalf of a candidate for elective office or a political organization or for or against
any referendum question or helping in an effort to get voters to the polls;

initiating for circulation, preparing, circulating, reviewing, or filing any petition on behalf of a
candidate for elective office or for or against any referendum question;

making contributions on behalf of any candidate for elective office in that capacity or in connection
with a campaign for elective office;

preparing or reviewing respanses to candidate questionnaires;

distributing, preparing for distribution, or mailing campaign literature, campaign signs, or other
campaign material on hehalf of any candidate for elective office or for or against any referendum
question;

campaigning for any elective office or for or against any referendum question;

managing or working on a campaign for elective office or for or against any referendum question;
serving as a delegate, alternate, ar proxy to a palitical party convention; or

participating in any recount or challenge to the outcome of any election.

Section 2-478 - Prohibitions

(a)

(b)

{c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

No person subject to this ordinance shall intentionally perform any prohibited palitical activity
during any compensated time. Nor shall such person intentionally use any public property or
resources in connection with any prohibited political activity for the benefit of any campaign for
elective office, any political organization or for or against any referendum guestion.

No person subject to this ordinance shall at any time intentionally misappropriate the services of
any employee by requiring that employee to perform any prohibited political activity (1) as part of
that employee’s duties, (2) as a condition of employment, or (3) during any time off that is
compensated, including, but not limited to vacation, holidays or personal time off.

No person subject to this ordinance shall require an emplayee at any time to participate in any
prohibited political activity in consideration for that employee being awarded any additional
compensation or employee benefit, in the form of salary adjustment, bonus, compensatory time off,
continued employment or otherwise awarded any additional compensation or employee benefit in
consideration of participating in any prohibited political activity.

No person subject to this ordinance shall award an employee any additional compensation or
employee benefit, in the form of salary adjustment, bonus, compensatory time off, continued
employment or otherwise awarded any additional compensation or employee benefit in
consideration of voluntarily participating in any prohibited political activity.

No person subject to this ordinance shall deny or deprive an employee of employment or tenure
solely because such person is a member or an officer of a political committee, political party,
political organization, or political club.

Na person subject to this ardinance shall require an employee to (1) purchase tickets, solicit athers

ta purchase tickets, sell, distribute or receive payment for political tickets for any political fundraiser

or campaign fund for a specific candidate for political office or (2) financially contribute to any
17

100



(8)

(h)

political organization, political party, political rally, political fundraiser, political meeting or political
event.

No person subject to this ordinance shall intentionally solicit or accept political contributions upon
the real property of a governmental entity subject to this ordinance. An inadvertent acceptance of a
political contribution shall not be considered a violation of this ordinance, if reasonable and timely
action is taken to return the contribution to its source.

Nothing in this section prohibits actlvities that are otherwise appropriate for an employee to engage
in as a part of his or her official empioyment duties or activities that he or she undertakes on a
voluntary basis as permitted by law.

Subpart D - Conflicts of Interest

Section 2-479 - Financial Interest Disclosure

{a)

(b)

(1)

(2)
(3)

All officers subject to this ordinance shall disclose their financial interests and holdings in any
business seeking a relationship with the government entity in which the officer holds office where
such person has an ownership interest of 7 %% or greater in the manner required by the Public
Officer Prohlbited Actlvities Act, (50 ILCS 105/et seq.).

An officer making a disclosure as required by paragraph (a) shall:

publicly disclose the nature and extent of interest prior to or during deliberations concerning the
proposed award of the contract;

withdraw from discussion of the subject matter; and

abstain from any vote on the award of the contract.

Section 2-480 - Conflict of Interest

(a)

(1)

)

(3)

(4)

No person, subject to this ordinance and while representing or employed by their governmental
entity, shall engage in any act that is in conflict with the performance such person’s official duties. A
conflict of interest exists whenever official action could result in a personal advantage or
disadvantage to the interested person, including, but not limited to the following:

receives or has any financial Interests in any purchase, sale or lease to or by the gavernmental
entity where that purchase, sale or lease was obtained with prior knowledge that the entity
intended to take such actich;

represents, or whose firm represents, any individual or business entity who would receive direct
financial benefit as a result of the official action under consideration;

accepts or seeks any employment, travel, compensation or gift from any person doing business
or seeking to do business with the governmental entity for which person has responsibility;

receives or accepts a gift, compensation, or travel that was given for the purpose of abtaining
special consideration or ta Influence official action where a reasonable and prudent person

18

101



(5)

()

(c)

(d)

would believe that the purpose was to obtain special consideration or ta influence official
action; or

violates any provision of the Public Officer Prohlbited Activities Act. (50 ILCS 105/01 et seq.)

Any officer who has a conflict situation should abstain from discussion and shall not vote on any
cantract with the person or business involved in the conflict. If the conflict situation Is an action that
is prohibited by the Public Officer Prohibited Activitles Act, an officer cannot avoid the conflict by
abstaining fram discussion or vote on the contract.

Any person who becomes aware that he or she may have a conflict of interest that arises in the
course of his or her official duties shall notify, in writing, his or her ultimate jurisdictional authority
or the ethics adviser of such conflict, The ethics adviser shall state the disposition of the potential
conflict in writing and maintain an official capy of such disposition. No officer shall participate in
deliberations where such officer has a conflict of interest as defined by this ordinance and shall not
in any way participate in the decision.

Notwithstanding any other law or ordinance, a person, his ar her family members living with that
person Is ineligible to serve on a board, commission, authority, or task force authorized or created
by the governmental entity with respect to which such person serves (1) if that person is entitled to
receive more than 7 %% of the total distributable income under a contract let by such entity other
than an employment contract or (2) if that person together with his or her family member living
with that persan are entitled to receive more than 15% in the aggregate of the total distributable
income under a contract let by such entity other than an employment contract; except this provision
does not apply to any of the following:

(i)  a person, his or her family member living with that person, who is serving in an elective public
office, whether elected or appointed to fill a vacancy; and

(i)  a person, his or her family member living with that person, who is serving on an advisory body
that makes nonh-binding recommendations ta an agency of the governmental entity, but does
not make binding recommendatians or determinations or take any other substantive action.

Section 2-481 - Future Employment

(a)

1

(2)

No person sublect to this ordinance, may accept or discuss an offer of future employment with any

individual or entity doing or seeking to do business with the governmental entity such persan serves
if either:

The person knows or has reasan to believe that the offer of employment was intended as
compensation or reward or to influence official action pertaining to the business;

The person has decision-making responsibility for a matter and that individual or entity is
offering employment to the decision maker unless that person has disclosed in writing to his or
her ultimate jurisdictional authority that the employee intends to discuss future employment
wlth this person or business. In this case, the person shall be removed from any decision-making
relative to this person or business. This section shall apply to persons with approval authority, or

19

102



(b)

input on approval or selection, but shall not include those persons who fill a review or
compliance function in the approval/selection process.

In the situation where an officer is offered future employment by an individual doing business with
such officer's governmental entity, the officer shall promptly, disclose to the ethics adviser, in
writing, the Intention of discussing future employment and such officer shall withdraw from
discussion and shall not vote on any contract with the business entity.

Section 2-482 - Former Employment Relationships

No employee, within one (1) year of entering employment with a governmental entity subject to this ordinance,
may participate in the decislon making or awarding of a contract to a business by whom they were formerly
employed unless the employee, in writing, has disclosed the prior employment relationship to such employee’s
ultimate jurisdictional autharity before participating in any decision making regarding the former employer.

Section 2-483 - Prohibited Employment

No person subject to this ordinance shall be employed in any other business, position or occupation (including
self-employment) or have an ownership interest in any company that interferes with such person’s official
position or the full and proper performance of such person’s duties, including, but not limited to:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

Employment with any vendor, individual or entity that transacts any business with the governmental
entity which such person serves,

Any employment that interferes with or compromises the employee’s position with said
governmental entity in order to further such person’s own personal interests or those of another.

Any employment that the public may reasonably interpret to be in conflict with the persan’s official
duties.

Any employment that conflicts with sald governmental entity’s purpose, duties and interests.

Any ownership interest in any business or entity which transacts or engages in any business with
said governmental entity.

Section 2-484 - Improper Use of Proprietary or Confidential Information

{a)

(b)

No person may intentionally disclose or use for his or her persanal benefit or for the benefit of
another, any information acquired In the course of official duties, which is not available as a matter
of public knowledge or public record.

The identity of any person reporting any possible or alleged misconduct to the investigator general
shall be kept confidential and may not be disclosed without the consent of that person, unless the
law otherwise requires such disclosure. However, the investigator general may provide any
information In his or her possession to any law enforcement agency with jurisdiction to investigate
any matter which has come to the investigator general's attention. The confidentiallty granted by
this section does not preclude the disclosure of the identity of a person in any capaclty other than as
the source of an allegation. Ethics commissioners, the investigator general, individuals appearing
before the commission and their representatives shall not disclose information which may lawfully
be exempted from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act or this ordinance.

20

103



(c)

No person subject to this ordinance may intentionally disclose any information discussed during a
meeting lawfully closed pursuant to the {llinois Open Meetings Act.

Subpart E - Other Prohibited Conduct

Section 2-485 - Disregard of Obligations Under this Ordinance

(a)

(b)

(c)

Subject to constitutional and statutory limitations, no person shall refuse to cooperate during the
course of an investigation or refuse to comply with requests for information from the investigator
general and the commission.

No person shall provide, or cause another to provide, any information such person knows to be
false, frivolous, or made in bad faith, to any ethics officer or ultimate jurisdictional authority in
relation to their duties under this ordinance.

No person shall intentionally obstruct or Interfere with any ethics officer, investigation, or hearing
conducted under this ordinance.

Section 2-486 - Whistleblower Protection

No person subject to this ordinance shall retaliate against any person who has reported a suspected violation of
this ordinance in good faith. Any such person who violates the provisions of this section subjects themself to
disciplinary action which may include, but is not limited to; a demotion, denial of promotion or merit increase,
reassignment of respansibilities, or other disciplinary action including termination of employment.

Part 4 - Complaint and Hearing Procedures

Section 2-487 - Complaint Filing Procedure

(a)

(1)

(2)

(3)

{4)

(b)

A person alleging a violation of this ardinance shall submit a written complaint to the office of the
investigator general. Such complaint shall include the following:

The complainant’s name and contact information, Including the complainant’s mailing address,
telephone number, and electronic mail address, if any;

The name, employment position held, and all contact information known to the complaint
regarding the person who is the subject of the complaint;

A detailed description of the act or acts alleged by the complainant to be violations of this
ordinance; and

A list of all known witnesses who may provide relevant information or testimony regarding the
allegations contained in the complaint, along with all known contact information for those
witnesses.

Whenever a person submits a complaint to an officer, governmental entity or employee subject ta
this ordinance other than the investigator general, the recipient of such complaint shall immediately
forward the complaint to the office of the investigator general.

21

104



(c)

(d)

Upon receipt of a complaint, the investigator general shall promptly notify the complainant and the
chairman of the commission in writing of his or her receipt of the complaint, including a copy of the
complaint in such correspondence.

Any persan who, acting in good faith, submits a complaint pursuant to this ordinance shall have all
of the protections against retaliation afforded to a whistieblower under the provisions of this
ordinance and the laws of the State of lllinais, and his or her identity shall be kept confidential and
may not be disclosed without his or her consent, unless the disclosure of the person's identity is
otherwise required by law. However, the disclasure of the identity of a complainant in any capacity
other than as the source of an allegation Is not prohibited, and, notwithstanding any other provision
of this ordinance or the laws of the State of lllinois, the investigator general is authorized to, as he or
she deems appropriate, provide any and all information, including the identity of a complainant, to
any adminlistrative or law enforcement agency with jurisdiction to investigate any suspected
criminality or other impropriety that may come to his or her attention.

Section 2-488 - Investigative Procedure by Investigator General

(a)

(1)

()

Upon receipt of a complaint, the investigator general shall promptly conduct a jurisdictional
investigation to determine whether the commission possesses persanal jurisdiction over the person,
and subject matter jurisdiction over the act{s), named and alleged in the complaint.

Should the jurisdictional investigation result in a finding that the commission does not possess
both personal jurisdiction over the person and subject matter jurisdiction over any act, named
and alleged in the complaint, then the investigator general shall close the investigation of the
complaint, and shall thereafter promptly notify the chairman of the commission and the
complainant in writing of the closure of the investigation of the complaint and the basis
therefore. If the investigator general determines that jurisdiction to investigate any person or
act alleged named or alleged in the complaint is vested with another authority, prior to closing
the investigation, the investigator shall notify the complainant of the proper authority with
which the complaint should be flled and, at the option and direction of the complainant (i)
forward the complaint to such authority or (ii) provide the complainant with information
necessary for the complainant to forward the complaint to such authority unless the public
interest requires the inspector general to immediately refer the complaint to the proper
authority. The closure of an investigation by the investigator general does not bar the
investigator general from resuming the investigation if the circumstances warrant, and is not
subject to review by any court or administrative tribunal absent fraud on the part of the
investigator general.

Should the jurisdictional investigation result in a finding that the cammission does possess both
personal jurisdiction over the person and subject matter jurisdiction over any act, named and
alleged in the complaint, the investigator general shall prom ptly notify the person subject to the
complaint (hereinafter referred to as the “respondent”) and the appropriate ultimate
jurisdictional authority in writing that a complaint against the respondent has been submitted to
the investigator general, and of the act ar acts alleged in the complaint, unless, in the sole
discretion of the investigator general, such natice would interfere with a potential or ongaing
law enforcement investigation or prosecution. The notice shall inform the respondent that he
or she shall, within thirty (30) days of the date of the notice, respond in writing to the complaint,
by submlitting a written response to the office of the investigator general.

22

105



(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(1)
()

(3)

(4)

(5)

Upan the investigator general’s determination that both personal and subject matter jurisdiction
exjsts over the matter as set forth in paragraph (a) of this section, the investigator general shall
promptly engage in a preliminary investigation to determine whether reasonable cause exists to
believe that a violation of this ordinance has occurred. In the course of the preliminary
investigation, the investigator general may compe! testimony under oath and the production of any
material from any person or source relevant to the preliminary investigation, and the investigator
general may, if necessary, petition the Circuit Court of DuPage County for the issuance of a court
order compelling compliance. The investigator general shall give written notice to a person
providing information under this Section of his or her right to (1) refuse to provide self-incriminating
testimony; (2) retain an attorney at his or her sole option and expense; and (3) to have such
attorney or, if required by any collective bargaining agreement, union representative, present
during any interview.

Upon the conclusion of the preliminary investigation, the investigator general shall promptly issue a
written summary report and deliver the same to the chairman of the commission, the complainant,
the respondent, and the appropriate ultimate jurisdictional authority. The summary report of the
preliminary investigation shall include the following:

a description of the act(s) alleged in the complaint to be violations of this ordinance;

the finding of the investigator general as to whether reasonable cause exists to believe that a
violation of the ordinance has occurred, and the basis therefore;

any recommendation for any corrective or disciplinary action to be taken as a result of the act(s)
alleged to be in violation of this ordinance, including but not limited to termination;

a determination by the investigatar general as to whether a petition for leave to file a formal
complaint will be submitted to the chairman of the commission; and

any other information that the investigator general deems appropriate and relevant to the
preliminary investigation, the finding, and any resulting recommendation.

Should the preliminary investigation result in a finding that no reasonable cause exists to believe
that a violation of this ordinance has accurred, the investigator general shall close the Investigation
of the complaint, and shall thereafter promptly notify the chairman of the commission, the
complainant, the respondent, and the appropriate ultimate jurisdictional authority, in writing, of the
closure of the investigation of the complaint and the basis therefore. The closure of an investigation
by the investigator general does not bar the investigator general from resuming the investigation if
the circumstances warrant, and is not subject to review by any court or administrative tribunal
absent fraud on the part of the investigator general.

Should the preliminary investigation result in a finding that reasonable cause exists to believe that a
violation of this ordinance has occurred, the investigator general may, in his or her sole discretion,
promptly submit to the chairman of the commission a petition for leave to file a formal complaint
against the respondent. The petition shall set forth the act(s) alleged to be in violation of this
ordinance, and the grounds that exist to support the issuance of a formal complaint. The
investigator general shall submit the petition to the chairman of the commission, and serve a copy
of the petition and written notice of the submission upon the respondent and the appropriate
ultimate jurisdictional authority. The notice shall inform the respondent of the nature of the

23

106



(f)

(e)

(1)

(2)

investigation, the respondent’s right to refuse to provide self-incriminating testimony and to retaln
an attorney at his or her sole option and expense, and that the respondent shall, within thirty (30}
days of the date of the notice respond in writing to the petition by submitting a written response to
the chairman of the commission, with a copy to the office of the investigator general.

Upon the submission of the respondent's written response to the petition of the investigator

general for the issuance of a formal complaint, the commission shall meet and determine whether it
shall grant or deny the petition.

Should the commission deny the petition, the commission shall close the cause and promptly
send written notice of its decision and the basis therefore to the investigator general, the
respondent, and the ultimate jurisdictional authority.

Should the commission grant the petition, the petition shall serve as the formal complaint
against the respondent and the commission shall set a hearing date within six (6) weeks
thereafter and promptly provide written notice of the decision to grant the petition and the

hearing date to the investigator general, the respondent, and the ultimate jurisdictional
authority.

During the course of an investigator general’s review of any complaint under this Section, the
investigator general shall provide a written status report to the commission within thirty (30) days

after receipt of a complaint, and every thirty (30) days thereafter until the investigation |s closed and
the cause concluded.

Section 2-489 - Hearing Procedure by Ethics Commission

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

The commission shall conduct any hearing upon any complaint befare it fairly and in accordance
with such rules as it may from time to time adopt.

The rules of evidence applicable to civil and/or criminal trials shall not strictly apply to the
commission hearings, but the chairman of the commisslon may exclude any material he or she
deems irrelevant, immaterial, incompetent or unduly repetitious.

On the hearing date scheduled by the commission, the commission shall conduct a closed meeting
as permitted by law. The commission shall make an audio recording of the praceedings, including of
all testimony presented to the commission and any of the commission”s deliberations. The
commission, may, in its sole discretion, retain the services of a court reporter.

The investigator general shall prosecute the complaint before the commission and carries the
burden of proving the allegations agalnst the respondent by a preponderance of the evidence.

The respondent may appear pro se at any commission hearing or, at the respondent’s option, retain
legal counsel at his or her own expense.

If required by any collective bargaining agreement, the respondent may have a union representative
present during any hearing.

Section 2-490 - Ethics Commission Decisions and Reconsideration

(a)

Within the appropriate time proscribed by rules of the commission, but not later than forty-five (45)
days from the close of the hearing, the commission shall (1) deny the complaint or (2) grant the

24

107



(b)

(c)

(d)

complaint and issue findings and any recommendation of discipline or imposition of any penalty
upon the respondent. The commission need not include a copy of evidence it received as part of its
written findings.

The commission shall promptly transmit written notice of its findings and recommendations to the
complainant, the respondent, the ultimate jurisdictional authority and the investigator general.
Where the commission recommends or imposes any disciplinary sanctions, the notice to the

respondent shall inform the respondent of his or her right to petition the commission for
reconsideration.

A respondent’s petition for reconsideration shall be in writing and flled with the commisslon within
fourteen (14) days of the commission’s mailing of its decision. The commission shall decide the
petition for reconsideration only an the formal record. The decision of the commission becomes
final upon the expiration of fourteen (14) day period following the commission’s mailing of its
findings to the respandent, or upon the commission’s decision on a petition for reconsideration of
the commission.

A decision by the commission to impose a penalty is subject to judicial review under the
Administrative Review Act. Al other decisions by the commission are final and not subject to
administrative or judicial review.

Part 5 - Authorized Dispositions

Section 2-491 - Recommendations for Discipline

(a)

(b)

(1)
(2)
(3)

(4)
{5)

When the investigator general has recommended that a complaint be resolved other than by formal
complaint or where the commission has found that a respondent has violated any provision of this
ordinance, the commission may recommend to a respondent’s ultimate jurisdictional authority one
or more of the following courses of disciplinary action against the respondent:

A reprimand.
To cease and desist the offensive action.

A return or refund of money or other items, or an amount of restitution for services, received in
violation of this ordinance.

Suspension or termination of an employee.
Donation to a charity of an amount equal to a prohibited gift or excess campaign contribution.

Upon receipt of any recommendations from the commission under this Section, the ultimate
jurisdictional authority of a respondent who violates any provision of this ordinance may take
disciplinary action against the respondent, as recommended by the commission or as it deems
apprapriate, to the extent it is constitutionally permissible for the ultimate jurisdictional authority to
take such action. The ultimate jurisdictional authority shall make its action, or determination to take
no action, available to the public.

25

108



Section 2-492 - Imposition of Fines

(a) The commission may impose an administrative fine of up to $5,000 per violation against any person
who violates any provision of this ordinance, which it shall require be depasited into the
governmental entity’s general revenue fund.

(b) No ultimate jurisdictional authority may waive or reduce any fine imposed under this Section.
Section 2-493 - Collective Bargaining Restriction

Any recommendation for discipline or any action taken against any employee pursuant to this ordinance by the
commission is subject to the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement or merit commission action that
apply to the employee on the effective date of this ordinance. Collective bargaining agreements executed after
the effective date of this ordinance shall include a provision which incorporates the substantive terms of this
ordinance as part of such agreement,

Part 6 - Administrative Review

Section 2-494 - Administrative Review

The decision of the commission to dismiss a complaint is not subject to administrative review under the llinois
Code of Civil Procedure. The commission’s imposition of any penalty, fine or sanction Is a final decision and
subject to administrative review pursuant ta the lliinois Code of Civil Procedure.

26

109



'RESOLUTION 2013-1703

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF DUPAGE AND REPEALING
RESOLUTION 2012-1674

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority (the “Authority”) on September 26,
2012 enacted Resolution 2012-1674 adopting an Intergovernmental Agreement with the
County of DuPage (the “County”) relating to shared Ethics Officers;

WHEREAS, the County has proposed a revised Intergovernmental Agreement
relating to shared Ethics Officers in a manner that has provided further clarity to certain
provisions of the Intergovernmental Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that it is in the best interests of the
Authority to enter into the revised Intergovernmental Agreement with the County
attached hereto as Exhibit A and repeal Resolution 2012-1674.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the
DuPage Airport Authority as follows:

1. The Board does hereby approve and adopt the Intergovernmental Agreement
with the County of DuPage, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof
as Exhibit A.

2. The Board hereby repeals DuPage Airport Authority Ordinance 2012-1674.

3. Executive Director David Bird shall take the necessary steps to effectuate the
terms of the Intergovernmental Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A.

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption
and approval.

Stephen L. Davis Gerald M. Gorski

Charles E. Donnelly Peter H. Huizenga
Dayle M. Gillett Gina R. LaMantia
Daniel L. Goodwin David J. Sabathne’

Perry R. Thompson

Passed & approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority this
9th day of January, 2013.

CHAIRMAN

SECRETARY

RESOLUTION 2013-1703

110



Intergovernmental Agreement
Shared Ethics Officers

This INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (Agreement) is entered into by and between the County
of DuPage (County), Illinois, a body corporate and politicand the DuPage Airport Authority,
(contracting governmental entity) an Illinois Special District, (collectively “the Parties”).

Recitals

WHEREAS, the Illinois Constitution and Illinois law provide that any power or powers, privileges,
functions, or authority exercised or which may be exercised by a public agency of this State may be
exercised, combined, transferred, and enjoyed jointly with any other public agency of this State
except as prohibited by law; and

WHEREAS, the State Officials and Employees Ethics Act (Act) requires governmental entities to
adopt an ordinance or resolution that regulates, in a manner no less restrictive than the provisions
of the Act, (i) the political activities of officers and employees of the governmental entity and (ii) the
soliciting and accepting of gifts by and the offering and making of gifts to officers and employees of
the governmental entity; and

WHEREAS, in compliance with the Act, the County has adopted the Ethics Ordinance of DuPage
County;

WHEREAS, in compliance with the Act, the contracting governmental entity has adopted [the
DuPage County Ethics Ordinance of 2012 by reference with minor modifications , a certified copy of
which is attached to and incorporated into this document Agreement as Exhibit A;

WHEREAS, in order to promote uniformity, efficiency, and consistency in the application of ethical
standards throughout DuPage County, the Parties desire to utilize common ethics officers to
enforce their respective Ethics Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the use of a common ethics officers will result in a conservation of public resources and
enhanced transparency; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, the
Parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

Part 1 - Incorporation of the Recitals

Section 1.1 - Recitals Incorporated. The recitals set forth above are incorporated in this Agreement
by reference and made a part of this Agreement.

Part 2 - Common Ethics Adviser or Ethics Officer

Section 2.1 - Generally. The Ethics Adviser of DuPage County shall serve as the Ethics Adviser or
Ethics Officer, as the case may be, of the contracting governmental entity. In this capacity, he or she
shall have all of the powers and duties conferred by the ethics ordinance of the contracting
governmental entity on that officer.

111



Section 2.2 - Reimbursement for Services and Expenses. The contracting governmental entity shall
reimburse the County for all expenses incurred through the use of its Ethics Adviser pursuant to
this agreement. The County shall provide the contracting governmental entity with a detailed,
itemized invoice for all services rendered by the Ethics Adviser to it. The contracting governmental
entity shall pay such invoice in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Prompt
Payment Act.

Section 2.3 - Rate of Compensation for Services. An hourly rate of $185.00 an hour, billed at 1/6t
hour increments, shall be the rate of compensation for the services of the Ethics Adviser.

Section 2.4 — Expenses incurred by the Ethics Adviser or the County. The contracting governmental
entity shall reimburse the County for all expenses incurred by the County or by the Ethics Adviser.

Part 3 - Common Ethics Commission

Section 3.1 - Generally. The Ethics Commission of DuPage County appointed pursuant to the
DuPage County Ethics Ordinance shall serve as the as the Ethics Commission of the contracting
governmental entity. In this capacity, the Commission and its members shall have all of the powers
and duties conferred by the ethics ordinance of the contracting governmental entity on its Ethics
Commission.

Part 4 - Common Investigators General

Section 4.1 - Generally. The Investigator General of DuPage County or any of his or her assistants
appointed pursuant to the DuPage County Ethics Ordinance shall serve as the as the Investigator(s)
General of the contracting governmental entity. In this capacity, the Investigator(s) General and his
or her assistants shall have all of the powers and duties conferred by the ethics ordinance of
contracting governmental entity on its Investigator General.

Section 4.2 — Reimbursement for Services and Expenses. The contracting governmental entity shall
reimburse the County for all expenses incurred through the use of its Investigaor General pursuant
to this agreement. The County shall provide the contracting governmental entity with a detailed,
itemized invoice for all services rendered by the Investigator(s) General to it. The contracting
governmental entity shall pay such invoice in accordance with the provisions of the Local
Government Prompt Payment Act. '

Section 4.3 - Rate of Compensation for Services. An hourly rate of $185.00 an hour, billed at 1/6t
hour increments, shall be the rate of compensation for the services of the Investigator(s) General.

Section 4.4 - Expenses incurred by the Investigator(s) General or the County. The contracting
governmental entity shall reimburse the County for all expenses incurred by the County or by the
Investigator(s) General.

Part 5 - Additional Terms

Section 5.1 - Indemnification. The contracting governmental entity hereby releases and agrees that
it shall indemnify and hold harmless the County and all of its present, former and future officers,
including board members, commissioners, employees, attorneys, agents and assigns from and
against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, claims, demands, fines, penalties, causes of action,
costs and expenses whatsoever, including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees and court costs,

112



present or future, known or unknown, sounding in law or equity that arise out of or from or
otherwise relate, directly or indirectly, to this Agreement to the extent authorized by law.

Section 5.2 - Covenant Not to Sue. The contracting governmental entity hereby covenants and
agrees that it shall not sue, institute, cause to be instituted or permit to be instituted on its behalf, or
by or on behalf of its past, present or future officials, officers, employees, attorneys, agents or
assigns, any proceeding or other action with or before any local, state and/or federal agency, court
or other tribunal, against the County, its board members, officers, commissioners, employees,
attorneys, agents or assigns, arising out of, or from, or otherwise relating, directly or indirectly, to
this Agreement to the extent authorized by law.

Section 5.3 - No Joint Venture. This Agreement shall not be construed in such a way that either
party is deemed to be, the representative, agent, employee, partner, or joint venture of the other.
The Parties shall not have the authority to enter into any agreement, nor to assume any liability, on
behalf of the other party, nor to bind or commit the other party in any manner, except as expressly
provided herein.

Section 5.4 - Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of Parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all other prior and contemporary agreements,
understandings, representations, negotiations, and commitments between the Parties with respect
to the subject matter hereof.

Section 5.5 - Verification of Expenses. The contracting governmental entity shall retain the right to
verify all costs associated with services and expenses billed pursuant to Part 2 and Part 4 of this
Agreement. This shall include the right to request a current total of outstanding charges that have
been provided to the County’s billing department which have not yet been submitted to the
contracting governmental entity for reimbursement. In no case does this verification process allow
the contracting governmental entity to refuse to pay an invoice in accordance with the provisions of
the Local Government Prompt Payment Act.

Section 5.6. - Rights Reserved. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent the contracting
governmental entity from taking action against any of its officers or employees (up to and including
termination of employment) or from referring any matter to the State’s Attorney’s Office for
investigation or prosecution.

Section 5.7 - Subsequent Adoption of Amendments to County Ethics Ordinances. Whenever the
contracting governmental entity adopts ethics ordinances or policies which are the same or
substantially similar to ordinances or policies which have already been adopted by the County
Board, the contracting governmental entity may request that the authority of the Ethics
Commission and Investigator(s) General conferred by this Agreement be extended consistent with
the subsequent amendments. Such request shall be in writing, fully set forth the new ordinance or
policy adopted by the contracting governmental entity and directed to the Chairman of the DuPage
County Ethics Commission.

Part 6 - Term
Section 6.1. - Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall become effective upon ratification by the

Parties’ respective corporate authority. The Agreement shall remain in effect until or unless
terminated in accordance with Section 6.2.

113



Section 6.2 — Termination of Agreement. Either Party may cancel this Agreement at any time upon
thirty (30) day's written notice of such, authorized by the governing board of the cancelling Party,
directed to the Chairman or Chairperson of the other Party. However, any cancellation of this
Agreement shall not be effective as to any investigation by the County Investigator General or
proceeding before the County Ethics Commission pending at the time the cancellation is effective
and such investigation or proceeding shall remain with the County Investigator General or the
County Ethics Commission until concluded by them.

WHEREFORE, the Parties have signed and executed this Agreement as of the date written below in
the County of DuPage, State of Illinois.

COUNTY OF DUPAGE:

Daniel J. Cronin David Bird

DuPage County Board Chairman DuPage Airport Authority Executive Director
Attest: Attest:

DuPage County Clerk
Date: Date:

Attachment List: Exhibit A ~ DuPage Airport Authority Ethics Ordinance

114



DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

TO: DuPage Airport Authority
Board of Comimnissioners

FROM: David Birdﬁ»
Executive Difector

RE: Proposed Resolution 2013-1701; Resolution Approving the Use of Outside
Attorneys and Auditors for the Year 2013.

DATE: January 2, 2013

SUMMARY:

As required by the Airport Authority’s By-Laws, The Board of Commissioners each year must
approve the outside attorneys and auditors to be utilized by the Airport Authority. Itis
recommended that Wolf and Company be retained as the outside auditors and that

Schirott & Luetkehans and VedderPrice be retained as the outside attorneys for 2013.

The rates for 2013 are reflected in Exhibit A, B and C of the Proposed Resolution as well as

a comparison of the rates from 2012. Staff has obtained additional quotes from law firms and
auditing firms to establish fair and competitive rates.

REVIOUS COM E AR N:
January 26, 2012 — Annual Board Meeting. The Board of Commissioners passed Resolution
2012-1628; Resolution Approving the Use of Outside Auditors and Attorneys for the Year 2012.

REVE RF ING IMPLICATIONS;
Rates as provided have been included as part of the 20 13 Budget and Appropriations for the
Airport Authority.

STAKEHOLDER PROCESS:
N/A

LEGAL REVIEW:
N/A

ATTACHMENTS:
Proposed Resolution 2013-1701; Resolution Approving the Use of Outside Auditors and Attorneys
for the Year 2013.

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board can deny, modify or amend this issue.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is the recommendation of the Executive Director that the Board approve Proposed Resolution
2013-1701; Resolution Approving the Use of Outside Auditors and Attorneys for the Year 2013.

115



RESOLUTION 2013-1701
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE USE OF OUTSIDE
AUDITORS AND ATTORNEYS FOR THE YEAR 2013

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority (hereinafter "Authority"), DuPage County, Illinois
is a duly authorized and existing Special District under the laws of the State of Illinois; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously enacted By-Laws for its operation; and

WHEREAS, Article V of the Authority's By-Laws requires that outside auditors and attorney's
for the Authority be hired and approved by the Board of Commissioners on an annual basis; and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires and deems it to be in the best interest of the Authority to
appoint Wolf & Company as its outside auditor for the year 2013 at the hourly rates set forth in the
Attached Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires and deems it to be in the best interest of the Authority to
appoint Schirott & Luetkehans, PC and Vedder, Price PC, as its outside attorneys for the year 2013 at
the hourly rates attached hereto on Exhibits B and C respectively.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority hereby approves the hiring of
Wolf & Company as its outside auditors; and Schirott & Luetkehans, PC and Vedder Price PC as its
outside attomeys for the year 2013 at the hourly rates set forth on the attached Exhibits A, B and C.

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and approval.

Stephen L. Davis Peter H. Huizenga
Charles E. Donnelly Gina R. LaMantia
Dayle M. Gillett David J. Sabathne’
Daniel L. Goodwin Perry R. Thompson

Gerald M. Gorski

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority this gt day of
January, 2013.

Chairman

ATTEST:

Secretary

RESOLUTION 2013-1701

116



ENGAGEMENT PARTNER

CONCURRING PARTNER

MANAGER

SENIOR AUDITOR

STAFF AUDITOR

INTERN

ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

WOLF & COMPANY

HOURLY RATES
2012 2013
$240 $245
$210 $215
$178 $183
$162 $166
$146 $150
$90 $90
$50 $50
EXHIBIT A

117



SCHIROTT & LUETKEHANS PC

HOURLY RATE
2012
PARTNERS $200
ASSOCIATES $175
LAW CLERKS $ 65
EXHIBIT B

$200

$175

$70

118



VEDDER PRICE PC

HOURLY RATES
2012 2013
ALL ATTORNEYS $290 $300
EXHIBIT C

119



DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

TO: DuPage Airport Authority Board of Commissioners

FROM: David Bird 7 _
Executive Director

RE: Proposed Resolution 2013-1711; Authorizing the Execution of Contract
with Serafin and Associates Inc. for Marketing and Communications
Services

DATE: January 2, 2013

SUMMARY:

On January 11, 2011, the Airport Authority Board passed Resolution 2011-1561 authorizing the
execution of a contract with Serafin and Associates for marketing and communications services.
This contract amount has been used for the production of marketing materials, press releases
and coordination of events to promote the benefits of the Authority to the aviation industry and
to the community. Serafin and Associates has demonstrated a high level of competence in the
performance of the services contained in this agreement, and there are a number of significant
projects underway that are intended to enhance the competitive position of the DuPage Airport
that requires their expertise to maximize the marketing opportunities. Therefore it is
recommended that a contract be approved for Fiscal year 2013 beginning January 1, 2013 and
ending December 31, 2013 for an amount not to exceed $42,500.

COMMITTEE/BOARD ACTION:
None
F N P ONS:

Funds are available within the FY-2013 budget for this purpose.

STAKEHOLDER PROCESS:

N/A
LEGAL REVIEW:

The Contract will be reviewed and approved by Phil Luetkehans prior to execution.

ATTACHMENTS:
Proposed Resolution 2013-1711; Authorizing the Execution of a Contract with Serafin and
Associates Inc. for Marketing and Communications Services.

ALTE ES:
None
RECOMMENDATION: I recommended approving Proposed Resolution 2013-1711; Authorizing

the Execution of a Contract with Serafin and Associates Inc. for Marketing and Communications
Services.

120



RESOLUTION 2013-1711

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT WITH SERAFIN AND ASSOCIATES
INC. FOR MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority Board of Commissioners, on January 12,2011 passed
Resolution 2011-1561; Authorizing the Execution of a Contract with Serafin and Associates Inc. for
Marketing and Communications Services.

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority Board of Commissioners, on September 14, 2011 passed
Resolution 2011-1603; amending this agreement to increase the contract amount by $35,000 for a not-to-
exceed amount of $60,000.

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority Board of Commissioners, on May 16, 2012 passed
Resolution 2012-1664; amending this agreement to increase the contract amount by $35,000 for a not-to-
exceed amount of $95,000.

WHEREAS, Serafin and Associates, Inc., has performed these services in an exemplary manner and has
exhibited the expertise to continue providing these services; and

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority wishes to a contract with Serafin and Associates Inc. for
Marketing and Communication Services for a total not-to-exceed amount of $42,500 for Fiscal Year 2013
beginning January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013; and

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority has sufficient funds in the FY-2013 Budget to fund this
contract; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive Director of the DuPage Airport Authority
be authorized and directed to execute the Professional Services Agreement with Serafin and Associates,
Inc for a total amount not-to-exceed $42.500, and on behalf of the DuPage Airport Authority take
whatever steps necessary to effectuate the terms of said Amendment.

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and approval.

Stephen L. Davis Gerald M. Gorski

Charles E. Donnelly Peter H. Huizenga
Dayle M. Gillett Gina R. LaMantia
Daniel L. Goodwin David J. Sabathne’

Perry R. Thompson

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority this 9th day of
January, 2013.

CHAIRMAN

SECRETARY

RESOLUTION 2012-1664

121



DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

TO: DuPage Airport Authority
Board of Commissioners

FROM: John Schlaman, General Manager

Prairie Landing Golf Club

THROUGH: David Bird %’
Executive Director

RE: Proposed Resolution 2013-1705: Award of Contract to Reinders, Inc. for the
Procurement of Toro®Network VP Irrigation Satellite Controllers for
Prairie Landing Golf Club.

DATE: January 2, 2013

SUMMARY:

The 2012 Capital Budget for Prairie Landing included $140,000 for costs associated with the replacement
of twenty four (24) Toro®Network 8000 irrigation satellite controllers utilized for the purpose of golf
irrigation system control, including installation.

The Toro®Network 8000 satellite is a proprietary system that was originally installed during golf course
construction in 1992. In 2003, Toro®Co. introduced to the golf marketplace the Toro®VP irrigation
satellite controller and the new accompanying control platform. Toro also announced the beginning of the
phase out for Network 8000® satellites and replacement part productions. Toro has also committed to
continue repair parts support for existing users through December 2010 or until existing parts inventory
stock is exhausted. As a result the system in place at Prairie Landing is obsolete and no longer supported
by Toro.

This irrigation satellite replacement plan includes replacement of all necessary satellites and components,
operating software; lightning protection and radio interface hardware. This will provide for a fully-
operable upgrade and conversion to irrigation satellites of suitable format. The irrigation satellite
replacements shall include installation by a qualified irrigation contractor selected via a separate sealed
bid early next year.

Due to the proprietary Toro System in Place, the Toro® brand must be specified. Reinders, Inc. is the
only area distributor that exclusively supplies Toro® products in the Chicago Market. Reinders, Inc. is a
contracted member with National IPA, a cooperative purchasing client. The Toro®Network 8000
Irrigation Satellite Controllers cost is $100,164.66.

122



In order to ensure the cooperative purchasing price was the lowest, staff solicited sealed bids for the
procurement installation of satellite irrigation controllers in the November 14, 2012, edition of the Daily
Herald Newspaper. Three (3) sealed bids were received and

Opened at 2:00 p.m. on December 5, 2012. Bid tabulations were as follows:

Vendor Amount
National IPA Joint Purchasing/

Reinders, Inc.

Franklin Park, Dllinois $100,164.66
Reinders, Inc.

Franklin Park, Tllinois $100,264.66
Kenney Machinery Corporation

Indianapolis, Illinois $139,499.00
MTI1 Distributing

Brooklyn Center, MN $148,555.91

Upon Evaluation of the bids, it is apparent that Reinders, Inc. — Joint Purchasing Coop is the low and
responsible bidder.

PREVIOUS COMMITTEE/BOARD ACTION:
January 9, 2013 Finance, Budget, and Audit Committee — this item is being reviewed by the Committee.

REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS
In 2012, the Prairie Landing Golf Club budgeted $140,000 for the procurement of an Irrigation Satellite
Replacement Project. This cost is within the budgeted amount.

STAKEHOLDER PROCESS
No stakeholders have been identified at this time.

LEGAL REVIEW
Legal counsel has previously drafted the standard contract utilized for the procurement of this item.

ALTERNATIVES
The Board can deny, modify or amend these issues